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PART

This Annual Report on Form 10-K and other written or oral statements made by us or on behalf may
include forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events and future financial

performance Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are fOrward-looking statements You can

identify these forward-looking statements by our use of the words believes anticipates fOrecasts

projects could plans expects may will would intends estimates and similarexpressions

whether in the negative or offirmative We wish to caution you that any fOrward-looking statements made by us or

on our behalf are subject to uncertainties and other factors that could cause such statements to be wrong We

cannot guarantee that we actually will achieve these plans intentions or expectations Actual results or events

could materially from the plans intentions and expectations disclosed in the forward-looking statements that

we make and we cannot guarantee future results levels of activity and/or perfOrmance of achievements We do not

assume any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements that we make whether as result of new

infOrmation fiture events or otherwise

Factors that may impact fOrward-looking statements include among others the risks and other matters set

forth in the section entitled Item 1A Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K Although we have

attempted to list comprehensively these important factors we also wish to caution investors that other/actors may

prove to be important in the ji.ture in affecting our business and operating results New/actors emerge from time to

time and it is not possible for us to predict all of these fOctors nor can we assess the impact each factor or

combination of factors may have on our business

Item BUSINESS

Overview

Merge Healthcare Incorporated Delaware corporation and its subsidiaries or affiliates collectively

Merge we us or our develops healthcare information software solutions and delivers related services

Our solutions are designed to help solve some of the toughest challenges in health information exchange today such

as the incorporation of medical images and diagnostic information into broader health IT applications the

interoperability of proprietary software solutions advanced clinical tools like computer aided detection the

profitability of outpatient imaging practices in the face of declining reimbursement and the ability to improve the

efficiency and cost effectiveness of clinical trials

We sell these solutions through two segments Our Direct segment sells finished applications to hospitals

imaging centers and specialty clinics located in the U.S as well as global pharmaceutical medical device biotech

and contract research organizations and also distributes certain products through the Internet via our website Our

Indirect segment sells software development toolkits technologies and Computer Aided Detection CAD
applications to companies that develop manufacture or resell health IT or medical imaging software or devices as

well as finished applications to value added resellers VARs and foreign distributors For revenue and other

financial information regarding our segments as well as our geographic areas of operation refer to Item Note

Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies Segment Reporting and Note 16 Segment

Information of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

We were founded in 1987 and are incorporated in Delaware Our principal executive offices are located at

6737 West Washington Street Suite 2250 Milwaukee Wisconsin 532145650 and our telephone number there is

414 9774000 Our website address is www.merge.com We make available free of charge within the Investor

Relations portion of our website under the caption SEC Filings our annual reports on Form 10--K quarterly

reports on Form l0Q and current reports on Form 8K including any amendments to those reports as filed with or

furnished to the SEC by way of direct link to our Company on the SEC Internet site at www.sec.gov Materials we

file with or furnish to the SEC may also be read and copied at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street

NE Room 1580 Washington D.C 20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be

obtained by calling the SEC at -800-SEC-0330 Also the SEC Internet site contains reports proxy and information

statements and other information that we file electronically with the SEC

Business

Our business is health information technology software which can involve any aspect of development or

distribution of applications that provide electronic health information exchange In July 2009 we acquired etrials



Worldwide Inc formerly NASDAQ ETWC to expand the addressable market for solutions that we sell to the

clinical trials industry Upon completion of the acquisition we renamed the entity Merge eClinical In September

2009 we acquired Confirma Inc privately-held company that specializes in CAD for the MRI modality Upon

completion of the acquisition we renamed the entity Merge CAD Other significant business actions taken in 2009

include

The retention of our Chinese operations in January 2009 We signed an agreement to sell the

operations in the spring of 2008 However when the Chinese government did not approve the sale we

retained these operations

Expansion of our international network of VARs and distributors adding 34 net new contracts in 2009

and

The completion of registered direct equity offering in November 2009 The offering raised $25.2

million in net proceeds which were used in part to retire all of our outstanding debt

Our overall product lines consist of

Software development toolkits technologies and platforms which provide software developers with

resources to speed new product development and to enhance existing products

Diagnostic workstation software applications which bring specialized reading and review tools to the

clinicians desktop

Radiology Information Systems RIS and related applications which manage the business workflow

of an imaging enterprise

Picture Archiving and Communication Systems PACS and related applications which manage the

image workflow of an imaging enterprise

Advanced image post-processing applications like CAD which automate the reading of complex MR
imaging studies

Hosted software solutions for clinical trials data management including Electronic Data Capture

EDC Interactive Voice/Web Response IVRJIWR and electronic patient reported outcomes ePRO
software and devices and

Anesthesia Information Management Systems AIMS and data input device which collect and

integrate all pen-operative anesthesia information into an electronic health record

We generate revenue through licensing software upgrading and/or renewing those licenses ongoing

service and support of the solutions project or hourly consultative fees and pay-per-study managed services This

revenue has historically involved large upfront fees however our customers increasingly prefer pay as you go

pricing options

Our software solutions follow industry standards such as Digital Imaging and Communications in Medicine

DICOM which ensures that images from any DICOM-compliant modality can be displayed moved and stored

within standard set of guidelines and Health Level HL7 which provides standards for the movement of other

health information file formats In addition Merge participates in the Integrating the Healthcare Enterprise IHE
an organization dedicated to developing standard profiles for health information exchange Our long-time

involvement with the standards committees and continuous development of products like our DICOM and HL7

toolkits have enabled Merge to stay closely tied to industry innovation Interoperability through standards has

become more important to companies over the past year and we feel well-positioned to be part of these growth

opportunities

Our ability to go to market through our Indirect and Direct segments including the eCommerce channel

allows us to participate in the latest technology trends arising in the OEM market innovate quickly into the direct

market and then receive customer feedback for efficient ongoing development In 2009 we incurred research and

development expenses of $5.2 million and $5.0 millionwithin our Indirect and Direct segments respectively



Acquisition of AMICAS Inc

We have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger the Merger Agreement dated as of February 28

2010 by and among Merge Project Ready Corp Delaware corporation and our wholly-owned direct subsidiary

and AMICAS Inc AMICAS pursuant to which we will acquire all of the outstanding shares of AMICAS for

$6.05 per share in cash or an aggregate consideration of approximately $248 million the Acquisition Under the

terms of the Merger Agreement we will commence cash tender offer for all of AMICAS outstanding common

stock If the tender offer is consummated we will then consummate merger pursuant to which any untendered

shares of AMICAS common stock other than those shares held by AMICAS stockholders who have properly

exercised their dissenters rights will be converted into the right to receive the same $6.05 per
share cash price The

tender offer and merger are subject to certain closing conditions including but not limited to successful tender of

approximately 54% of the outstanding shares of common stock of AMICAS antitrust clearance and other regulatory

approvals There is no financing condition to the consummation of the Acquisition AMICAS is leading

independent provider of image and information management solutions for image-intensive specialties in health care

AMICAS offers comprehensive suite of image and information management solutions that are designed to drive

productivity and quality improvements for image-intensive specialties across the continuum of care AMICAS

solutions are installed at thousands of facilities across the United States ranging from the largest integrated

delivery networks IDNs to independent imaging centers AMICAS solution suite includes radiology PACS

cardiology PACS radiology information systems cardiovascular information management systems revenue cycle

management solutions and workflow and enterprise content management tools designed to manage integration of the

imaging component into the electronic medical record AMICAS is focused on two primary markets ambulatory

imaging businesses and acute care facilities We anticipate that the Acquisition will be completed in the second

quarter of 2010

Direct Segment Products and Services Description

Merge has four main product lines in the Direct segment

Fusion RIS/PACS MXTM automates image and information workflow for imaging practices from

procedure scheduling through the procedure the image reading and reporting by radiologist the

distribution of the report and finally the generation of bill for the exam This solution contains

several optional modules to enhance the workflow including referring physician web portal billing

and business analytics The Fusion RISTM and Fusion PACSTM can also be licensed and utilized

separately The Fusion PACSTM contains an integrated digital mammography application also sold as

standalone clinical workstation called Merge MammoTM Product innovation in 2009 focused on the

addition of hosted services embedded revenue cycle management and web portal module utilizing

zero-client technology We believe our solutions are differentiated by the tight integration of all of

these elements and the ability of customers to use the solutions across different locations

eFilm Workstation is one of the most widely used diagnostic workstations in the world with over

100000 downloads since 2000 and global brand name recognition eFilm Workstation is desktop

diagnostic image and analysis tool for viewing and interpreting medical images and is used in ways as

disparate as teaching imaging testing new imaging products veterinary imaging technologist quality

control remote reading and CD burning of images In 2009 we added eFilm ArchiveTM to bring

image storage to eFilm Workstation customers as well as localizing the product into several

languages

The Frontiers AIMSTM pen-operative management solution builds an electronic record of the patients

surgical experience while allowing the anesthesiologist to maintain patient contact An electronic

surgical dashboard application alerts the entire operating room to the status of each patient In 2009

we completed an upgrade of the base system adding customer-specified updates

Our etrials product line includes EDC IVRIIWR and eDiaries These products can be licensed and

utilized separately These adaptive web-based tools work together to coordinate data capture

logistics patient interaction and trial management turning data into intelligence and shortening the

pathway to an actionable study endpoint All etrials solutions are sold via software-as-a-service

SaaS model and may include engineering and professional services In addition we can provide

technology transfer agreements for the licensing of our solutions for use by contract research

organizations and sponsors of clinical trials In 2009 we released web portal to enable clinical trials



managers to combine all data across study into one dashboard With this solution the core clinical

data from trial is captured managed and synchronized through one platform and one vendor

In addition to our software products we provide our end-user customers services such as installation

training and maintenance and support In the clinical trials market these professional and technical services can be

significant portion of contract In connection with our software annual maintenance and support services we

may provide software updates including minor feature enhancements and bug fixes upgrades telephone support

and other services depending on the type of maintenance and support purchased

Indirect Segment Products Technologies and Services Descriptions

Our Indirect segment contains three major product lines as detailed below The Indirect segment also

includes the distribution of any of our products internationally through VARs or distributors

brand leader in the Indirect segment is our Merge-COMTM software development toolkit line of

products These toolkits are used by most of the modality vendors and health information technology

software providers as way to economically jump start the development of new imaging applications

The toolkits are available in all the major development languages and platforms and are continuously

updated to meet the industrys rigorous standards In fulfillment of our ongoing commitment to the

standard we released upgrades to the toolkit twice in 2009 We also expanded our toolkit capabilities

by releasing an HL7 toolkit

As an accompaniment to toolkits we offer clinical applications which vendors rebrand localize

integrate and/or develop upon to create their own end user solutions Cedara Open EyesTM is

development platform that incorporates reusable software libraries and toolkits to accelerate our

internal development as well as that of our OEM partners Virtually all of our OEM partners directly

or through our applications use one or more components of the Open Eyes suite within their business

applications We also offer complete web-enabled PACS solution Cedara I-ReachTM as well as

number of PACS review workstations that can be tailored easily into modules and plug-ins for the

needs of different OEM customers In 2009 we launched Cedara WebAccessTM for zero client web

viewing Cedara WebAccess has been sold to some of the major HIT companies and has served as

base technology for our direct portal solutions

Our CADstreamTM application provides CAD post-processing of certain MRI studies We believe that

CADstream is recognized globally as the leader in breast MRI CAD In addition to breast and prostate

applications we launched commercially-available liver-CAD application in December of 2009 We

believe it is the first MRI-CAD for liver application on the market All three applications can be

licensed and utilized together or separately

In addition to our software products we provide services to our OEMs VARs and distributors including

consulting engineering services professional services and maintenance and support services Our professional

services include installation and training as well as product consulting In connection with our software we offer

annual maintenance and support services pursuant to which we may provide software updates and upgrades and

telephone support depending on the type of maintenance and support purchased

Markets

Our business model allows us to deliver solutions to many different healthcare market segments on global

basis Although healthcare is basic global requirement it cannot be delivered on global level In each country

the government is the largest payer for services and as such exerts some national control In 2009 healthcare

spending grew at dramatically different rates depending on countrys particular government priorities population

health needs and infrastructure status For example according to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

CMS healthcare in the US increased from 15.9% of the countrys GDP in 2007 to 16.2% in 2008 which

represented market of over $2.3 trillion In comparison according to Medical Products Outsourcing China

healthcare spending has jumped in the past few years from less than 1% of its GDP to 5% in 2009 which represents

market of $170 billion Details on some of our market segments include

Our largest product market remains the North American RIS/PACS market According to 2009 Frost

and Sullivan report the market size was $1.1 billion in 2008 Although this represents decrease of



8.2% from the prior year the market is expected to grow at compounded annual rate of 3.7% to reach

$1.4 billion in 2015 Market trends include the following

current downturn due to economic pressure and the dynamics of the PACS replacement

market and

Expected growth starting slowly in 2010 which is expected to arise from adoption of

RIS/PACS solutions in the lower tiers of the market and PACS replacements at the higher end

of the market

Our CAD product line accompanies PACS solutions as post-processing application According to

US Markets for Computer-Aided Diagnostic Imaging Products report recently issued by the

Medtech Insight division of Elsevier Business Intelligence the current market size is approximately

$120 million CAD industry revenues dropped 10% in 2009 as result of the overall decline in the

capital equipment market However the market is expected to grow at compounded annual rate of

11.1% to reach an estimated $185 million by the year 2013 led by the development of new CAD

applications

The overall US health IT market changed dramatically in 2009 due to the passing of the American

Recovery and Reinvestment Act ARRA and the HITECH Act within it According to INPUT

research the market size which was $7.6 billion in 2009 will grow to $9.6 billion in 2014 This

market trend is closely aligned to the adoption of Electronic Health Records EHRs to meet I-IITECH

funding requirements Almost 40% of hospitals delayed or cancelled 2009 capital projects according

to MEDACorp survey conducted with Leerink Swan Oct 2009 However 40% of hospitals say

they do not meet meaningful use requirements as defined by HITECH and 87% plan to accelerate

spending to meet 2011 deadline

The primary market for our Indirect solutions continues to be medical imaging and device

manufacturers According to Global Markets Direct study published in June 2009 the global market

for medical imaging technology was about $15.8 billion in 2008 and is expected to grow at 7%

compounded annual rate to reach $24.6 billion in 2015 survey of medical device industry

executives by Emergo Group Inc found that 71.7% expect medical imaging technology sales to

increase in 2010

The clinical trials market is driven mainly by the global pharmaceutical market which was estimated

by industry analysts IMS Health and BCC Research to be over $820 billion in 2009 This market is

expected to grow to more than $1 trillion by 2013

According to market reports from Frost Sullivan the market for our solutions in the clinical trial

space is currently $500 million and growing 16.4% per year

In addition to the global economic environment we believe the following market trends will impact our

business

Interoperability with other Health IT systems and vendors The HITECH Act and particularly the

provisions relating to condition of meaningful use has driven increased concern about the

incorporation of imaging information into the electronic health record EHR In addition the Act

provides $1.2 billion of incentives to promote the use of Health Information Exchanges HIEs These

applications require even broader interoperability As result many of the proprietary software

applications that have been the core of widely used healthcare IT solutions now need to have new

interfacing capabilities incorporated in them

Mobile information technologies The number of applications built for the Apple iPhone has grown

exponentially in the last year to the point where Apple announced in November 2009 that there are

now over 10000 apps which have received over billion downloads In addition competitors of the

iPhone are being introduced in both smart phone format and tablet PC format

Telemedicine An ABI research report indicates that remote patient monitoring devices are projected to

grow at 77% compounded annual rate to almost $940 million in 2014 These requirements are

driving market opportunity for web-based and mobile solutions



Medical Regulatory and Government Standards and Reforms

As highly regulated and socially essential industry worldwide healthcare is subject to constantly

changing political technological economic and regulatory influences These influences have become stronger over

the past few years in both their direct impact on our product approval processes and in their impact on our

customers 2009 contained many new government regulations such as

The HITECH Act This legislation passed in February 2009 appropriated almost $20 billion to

providers who can demonstrate by 2011 that they are using health IT applications in meaningful ways

that reduce overall healthcare costs The application an EHR sparked lot of market interest in EHR

solutions but minimal actual purchasing

The U.S governments attempt to pass widespread healthcare reform While this legislation is still

under consideration there has been lot of industry concern about the implications of various

proposals The proposed reform legislation also contains provisions which reduce some of the annual

reimbursement changes supported by the CMS causing additional confusion For example CMS

proposed changing the 2010 utilization factor for medical imaging equipment costing more than $1

million from 50% to 90% This would cause dramatic reduction in reimbursement for MRI PET and

CT services because the utilization factor is key component in calculating the general reimbursement

rate for any facility In the House of Representatives proposed version of healthcare reform however

the utilization rate is to change from 50% to 75% starting in 2013 In the Senates version it is to

change from 50% to 65% in 2010 and transition to 75% over 10 years

The U.S Food and Drug Administrations FDA role in the healthcare industry The FDA is

responsible for regulating the medical device industry under the Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act

It has regulatory jurisdiction over computer software applications when they are labeled or intended to

be used in the diagnosis of disease or other medical conditions The FDA has come under increasing

scrutiny over its backlog the thoroughness of its approval process and its ability to monitor product

safety after approval We monitor the FDA and all global regulatory requirements closely

Global healthcare reform Major economies like Russia and China have passed major

healthcare legislation in 2009 These have and will continue to generate increased healthcare spending

in these countries For example China has committed to provide basic healthcare for all citizens

investment in healthcare infrastructure and eliminating disparities between rural and urban healthcare

services As result it is estimated that the government will invest $126 billion in healthcare from

2009 to 2011

We believe that we have positioned ourselves to provide value added services to our customers amidst

potential changes in industry standards and regulations However we cannot predict the impact of new proposals

healthcare reforms or standards on our business our financial condition or our results of operations See Item 1A
Risk Factors on Form 10-K of this Annual Report for description of various industry standards and regulatory

risks

Competition

Merge product lines each participate in highly competitive markets However we believe there is no single

company that competes against us in every one of our product lines and do not currently consider there to be

competitor to our overall company

At the product line level competition is as follows

Our direct RIS/PACS solutions compete with over 35 other companies in the North American PACS

market according to Frost and Sullivan Of these companies Merge is identified as Tier vendor

along with other vendors including NovaRad Corporation and DR Systems

Our eCommerce product line faces number of small competitors some of which offer their products

as freeware These open source solutions are difficult to compete against on price but most are not

FDA approved for diagnostic review



Our CAD product line for breast liver and/or prostate cancer diagnostic support competes with iCAD

InVivo Philips Sentinelle and Hologic We are not aware of any other vendor currently selling MRI

CAD for liver

Our eClinical product line is in highly competitive market The leaders are Phase Forward and

Medidata In addition there are many smaller EDC companies in this market

Our OEM toolkits face limited number of competitors We believe we are the only vendor to provide

combined DICOM and HL7 toolkit

Our OEM technologies most often compete with internal development departments Some of our

portal technologies face competition from companies such as ZioSoft and Calgary Scientific

Our ability to compete successfully depends on number of factors both within and beyond our control

They include existing customer relationships ongoing rapid product innovation product quality and performance

price experienced sales marketing and service professionals and product and policy decisions developed by

competitors

Strategy

In 2009 our major strategic initiatives focused on

International expansion through VAR and distributor relationships

Ongoing innovation and Intellectual Property IP portfolio expansion

Continued innovation in web portal and mobile technologies and

Synergistic acquisitions

We have expanded our product portfolio through the acquisitions previously discussed including our

proposed acquisition of AMICAS and we expect to make future acquisitions Mergers and acquisitions of high-

technology companies are inherently risky No assurance can be given that our previous acquisitions our AMICAS

acquisition or our future acquisitions will be successful or will not materially adversely affect our financial condition

or operating results Prior acquisitions have resulted in wide range of outcomes from successful introduction of

new products and technologies to an inability to do so The risks associated with acquisitions are more fully

discussed in Item lA Risk Factors including the risk factor entitled If we are unable to successfully identify or

effectively integrate acquisitions our financial results may be adversely affected

Employees

As of December 31 2009 we had approximately 385 employees world-wide Competition for technical

personnel in the industry in which we compete is intense We believe that our future success depends in part on our

continued ability to hire assimilate and retain qualified personnel

Sales Marketing and Distribution

We employ quota carrying sales teams for both our Direct and Indirect segments In each of these we have

specialty sales teams for particular product lines In addition we have sales teams dedicated to establishing and

maintaining VAR and distributor relationships outside of the U.S Where feasible we have concentrated inside and

telesales staff in one location in order to bring economies of scale in management and process Our sales teams are

complemented by staff of lead generation and marketing employees These teams have the benefit of online tools

and resources that streamline and track the sales process

Our marketing efforts are mainly electronic utilizing our website and our extensive email database of

eStore customers for our communication campaigns as well as our website for online communities and certain

social media Beyond electronic media we employ consistent media relations efforts for market communication In

addition we participate in the major industry trade shows for our respective product lines We also have an active

User Group for our U.S imaging center and hospital customers This group has become mostly self-managed Our

customers vote for the officers who dedicate significant time to planning the meeting and communicating customer

priorities to us



Intellectual Property Rights

We currently own 44 patents issued by the intellectual property offices of various jurisdictions We

continue to expand our IP portfolio and have applied for 35 additional patents There can be no assurance that these

patents will afford any commercial benefits We do not however rely principally on patent protection with respect

to our products We also rely on combination of copyright and trade secret laws employee and third party

confidentiality agreements product license agreements and other measures to protect intellectual property rights

pertaining to our systems and technology

We currently hold 23 registered trademarks in the United States and 40 non-U.S trademarks These

trademarks help protect our product brand assets

Item 1A RISK FACTORS

Discussion of our business and operating results included in this annual report on Form 10-K should be

read together with the risk/actors set forth below They describe various risks and uncertainties to which we are or

may become subject These risks and uncertainties together with other/actors described elsewhere in this report

have the potential to affect our business financial condition results of operations cash flows strategies or

prospects in material and adverse manner New risks may emerge at any time and we cannot predict those risks

or estimate the extent to which they may affect financial perfOrmance We undertake no obligation to update or

revise the statements

Our business could be harmed by adverse general economic and market conditions which could lead to reduced

spending on information technology products

We have seen our markets become increasingly affected by the continuing global macroeconomic

downturn The downturn which first started in the U.S has also impacted our customers in other parts of the

world We believe that it is likely that this economic downturn will continue to persist however we cannot predict

its severity duration or impact on our future operating results As our business expands globally we have become

increasingly subject to the risks arising from adverse changes in domestic and global economic and political

conditions Economic growth in the U.S and other countries has slowed since the second half of 2008 which

caused our customers to delay or reduce information technology purchases As result of slowing global economic

growth the credit market crisis declining consumer and business confidence shifts in consumer spending patterns

increased unemployment reduced levels of capital expenditures fluctuating commodity prices bankruptcies and

other challenges currently affecting the global economy our clients might experience deterioration of their

businesses cash flow shortages and difficulty obtaining financing If economic conditions in the U.S and other

countries continue to deteriorate customers may continue to delay or further reduce purchases This could result in

additional reductions in sales of our products longer sales cycles slower adoption of new technologies and

increased price competition In addition weakness in the end-user market could negatively affect the cash flow of

our OEM and VAR customers who could in turn delay paying their obligations which would increase our credit

risk exposure and cause decrease in operating cash flows Also if OEM and VAR customers experience excessive

financial difficulties and/or insolvency and we are unable to successfully transition end-users to purchase products

from other vendors or directly from us sales could decline significantly Any of these events would likely harm our

business results of operations and financial condition

Continued disruption in credit markets and world-wide economic changes may adversely affect our business

financial condition and results of operations

Continued disruptions in the financial and credit markets may adversely affect our business and financial

results The tightening of credit markets may reduce the funds available to our customers to buy our products and

services It may also result in customers extending the length of time in which they pay and in our having higher

customer receivables with increased default rates General concerns about the fundamental soundness of domestic

and foreign economies may also cause customers to reduce their purchases even if they have cash or if credit is

available to them

We may not successfully complete our acquisition of AMICAS

Our acquisition of AMICAS is subject to number of conditions including without limitation successful

tender of more than 54% of the outstanding shares of common stock of AMICAS antitrust clearance and other

regulatory approvals There is no guarantee that these conditions will be satisfied and that we will complete the

Acquisition In connection with the Acquisition we have already incurred and anticipate incurring significant



indebtedness issuing substantial amounts of new equity securities and incurring significant costs related to the

acquisition debt offering and stock issuances We anticipate total costs of these transactions to be incurred by both

parties including the break-up fee already paid to former potential acquiror of AMICAS will approximate $32

million In addition we would become liable to AMICAS for significant termination fees if we fail to obtain the

necessary financing or otherwise breach our obligations under our AMICAS acquisition agreement As result if

we fail to complete the Acquisition after incurring these costs our business will be materially and adversely

affected In addition our acquisition of AMICAS is not subject to financing condition

We may not be able to realize the anticipated benefits from the AMICAS Acquisition

We may not be able to realize the anticipated benefits from the AMICAS Acquisition Achieving those

benefits depends on the timely efficient and successful execution of number of post-acquisition events including

integrating AMICAS diversified businesses into our company Factors that could affect our ability to achieve these

benefits include

The failure of AMICAS businesses to perform in accordance with our expectations

Difficulties in integrating and managing personnel financial reporting and other systems used by

AMICAS businesses into our company

Any future goodwill impairment charges that we may incur with respect to the assets of AMICAS

Failure to achieve anticipated synergies between our business units and the business units of AMICAS

The loss of AMICAS customers or our customers and

The loss of any of the key employees of AMICAS or our company

If AMICAS businesses do not operate as we anticipate it could materially harm our business financial

condition and results of operations In addition as result of the AMICAS Acquisition we will assume all of

AMICAS liabilities We may learn additional information about AMICAS business that adversely affects us such

as unknown or contingent liabilities issues relating to internal controls over financial reporting and issues relating to

compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act or other applicable laws As result there can be no assurance that the

AMICAS Acquisition will be successful or will not in fact harm our business Among other things if AMICAS

liabilities are greater than projected or if there are obligations of AMICAS of which we are not aware at the time of

completion of the acquisition our business could be materially adversely affected

The successful integration of AMICAS businesses into our company following the AMICAS Acquisition will

present significant challenges

We anticipate that the AMICAS Acquisition will place significant demands on our administrative

operational and financial resources and we cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully integrate

AMICAS businesses into our company Our failure to successfully integrate AMICAS with our company and to

manage the challenges presented by the integration process successfully may prevent us from achieving the

anticipated benefits of the acquisition and could have material adverse effect on our business

We will incur sign ficant indebtedness in connection with our proposed acquisition of AMICAS which could

harm our operating flexibility and competitive position

We will incur substantial additional indebtedness to finance the AMICAS Acquisition We anticipate

financing the acquisition through the sale of high yield notes or bridge financing The terms of this indebtedness

will contain limitations on the amount of additional indebtedness that we and our subsidiaries may incur and place

other restrictions on the operation of our business The indebtedness will require significant interest and principal

payments Our level of debt as result of the AMICAS Acquisition and the limitations imposed on us by the debt

agreements related to such indebtedness could adversely affect our operating flexibility and put us at competitive

disadvantage Our substantial debt level may adversely affect our future performance because among other things

We may be placed at competitive disadvantage relative to our competitors some of which have

lower debt service obligations and greater financial resources than we do

Our ability to complete future acquisitions may be limited

We will have to use portion of our cash flow for debt service rather than for operations
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We may not be able to obtain further debt financing and may have to pay more for financing

We may not be able to take advantage of business opportunities

The indebtedness may bear interest at variable interest rates making us vulnerable to increases in

interest rates and

We will be more vulnerable to adverse economic conditions

Our ability to make scheduled payments of principal to pay interest on or to refinance our indebtedness

and to satisfy our other debt obligations will depend upon our future operating performance which may be affected

by factors beyond our control In addition there can be no assurance that future borrowings or equity financing will

be available to us on favorable terms or at all for the payment or refinancing of our indebtedness If we are unable

to service our indebtedness our business financial condition and results of operations would be materially adversely

affected

Our future capital needs are uncertain and our ability to access additional financing may be negatively impacted

by the volatility and disruption of the capital and credit markets and adverse changes in the global economy

Our capital requirements in the future will depend on many factors including

Acceptance of and demand for our products

The extent to which we invest in new technology and product development

The costs of developing new products services or technologies

Our interest and principal payment obligations under the indebtedness that we will incur in connection

with our acquisition of AMICAS

The number and method of financing of acquisitions and other strategic transactions and

The costs associated with the growth of our business if any

If adverse global economic conditions persist or worsen we could experience decrease in cash flows from

operations and may need additional financing to fund operations Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital

markets including debt private equity venture capital and traditional bank lending access to additional debt or

equity may not be available on acceptable terms or at all In addition the terms of the indebtedness that we incur in

connection with our acquisition of AMICAS may restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness If we cannot

raise funds on acceptable terms when necessary we may not be able to develop or enhance products and services

execute our business plan take advantage of future opportunities or respond to competitive pressures or

unanticipated customer requirements

We may incur additional debt in the future

We must continue to enhance and expand our product and service offerings in order to maintain our

competitive position satisfy our working capital obligations and to increase our market share As result the

continuing operations of our business may require substantial capital infusions For example in June 2008 we

borrowed $20.0 million from Merrick RIS LLC an affiliate of Merrick Ventures LLC in exchange for $15.0

million senior secured term note which was repaid in full on November 18 2009 and 21085715 shares of our

common stock Our ability to obtain additional debt in the future may be difficult or on disadvantageous terms We

currently do not have credit facility and such facility may be difficult to obtain in the future given the amount of

indebtedness that we will incur in connection with our acquisition of AMICAS and future market conditions

Unless we can achieve cash flow levels sufficient to support our operations we may require additional borrowings

or the sale of debt or equity securities sale of non-strategic assets or some combination thereof to provide funding

for our operations Our ability to borrow in the future is dependent upon our ability to manage business operations

and generate sufficient cash flows to service such debt If we are unable to generate sufficient working capital or

obtain alternative financing we may not be able to borrow or otherwise obtain additional funds to finance our

operations when needed our financial condition and operating results would be materially adversely affected
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Healthcare industiy consolidation could impose pressure on our software prices reduce our potential client base

and reduce demand for our software

Many hospitals and imaging centers have consolidated to create larger healthcare enterprises with greater

market power If this consolidation trend continues it could reduce the size of our potential customer base and give

the resulting enterprises greater bargaining power which may lead to erosion of the prices for our software In

addition when hospitals and imaging centers combine they often consolidate infrastructure and consolidation of

our customers could erode our revenue base

We may experience sign ificant fluctuations in revenue growth rates and operating results

We may not be able to accurately forecast our growth rate We base expense levels and investment plans

on sales estimates and review all estimates on quarterly basis Many of our expenses and investments are fixed

and we may not be able to adjust spending quickly enough if sales are lower than expected

Our revenue growth may not be sustainable and our percentage growth rates may decrease or fluctuate

significantly Our revenue and operating profit growth depends on the continued growth of demand for our products

and services offered through us or our OEM and VAR customers and our business is affected by general economic

and business conditions worldwide softening of demand whether caused by changes in customer preferences or

weakening of the U.S or global economies may result in decreased revenue or growth

Our net sales and operating results will also fluctuate for many other reasons including due to risks

described elsewhere in this section and the following

Demand for our software solutions and services

Our sales cycle

Economic cycles

The level of reimbursements to our end-user customers from government sponsored healthcare

programs principally Medicare and Medicaid

Accounting policy changes mandated by regulating entities

Delays due to customers internal budgets and procedures for approving capital expenditures by

competing needs for other capital expenditures and the deployment of new technologies and personnel

resources

Our ability to retain and increase sales to existing customers attract new customers and satisfy our

customers demands

Our ability to fulfill orders

The introduction of competitive products and services

Price decreases

Changes in the usage of the Internet and eCommerce including in non-U.S markets

Changes to regulatory approval processes and/or requirements

Timing effectiveness and costs of expansion and changes in our systems and infrastructure

The outcomes of legal proceedings and claims involving us and

Variations in the mix of products and services offered by us

Delays in the expected sales or installation of our software may have significant impact on our anticipated

quarterly revenues and consequently our earnings since significant percentage of expenses are relatively fixed

Additionally we sometimes depend in part upon large contracts with small number of OEM customers to meet

sales goals in any particular quarter Delays in the expected sales or installation of solutions under these large

contracts may have significant impact on our quarterly net sales and consequently our earnings particularly

because significant percentage of expenses are fixed
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The length of our sales and implementation cycles may adversely affect our operating results

We have experienced long sales and implementation cycles How and when to implement replace expand

or substantially modify medical imaging management software or to modify or add business processes are major

decisions for our end-user target market The sales cycle for our software ranges from six to 18 months or more

from initial contact to contract execution Our end-user implementation cycle has generally ranged from three to

nine months from contract execution to completion of implementation During the sales and implementation cycles

we will expend substantial time effort and resources preparing contract proposals negotiating the contract and

implementing the software and may not realize any revenues to offset these expenditures Additionally any

decision by our customers to delay or cancel purchases or the implementation of our software may adversely affect

net sales

We operate in competitive markets which may adversely affect our market share and financial results

Some of our competitors are focused on sub-markets within targeted industries while others have

significant financial and information-gathering resources with recognized brands technological expertise and

market experience We believe that competitors are continuously enhancing their products and services developing

new products and services and investing in technology to better serve the needs of their existing customers and to

attract new customers

We face competition in specific industries and with respect to specific offerings We may also face

competition from organizations and businesses that have not traditionally competed with us but that could adapt

their products and services to meet the demands of our customers Increased competition may require us to reduce

the prices of our offerings or make additional capital investments that would adversely affect margins If we are

unable or unwilling to do so we may lose market share in target markets and our financial results may be adversely

affected

We face aggressive competition in many areas and our business will be harmed if we fail to compete effrctively

The markets for medical imaging solutions are highly competitive and subject to rapid technological

change We may be unable to maintain our competitive position against current and potential competitors Many of

our current and potential competitors have greater financial technical product development marketing and other

resources and we may not be able to compete effectively with them In addition new competitors may emerge and

our system and software solution offerings may be threatened by new technologies or market trends that reduce the

value of our solutions

We often compete with our OEM customers own internal software engineering groups The size and

competency of these groups may create additional competition In the area of RIS and PACS workflow

applications many competitors offer portions of an integrated radiology solution through their RIS and PACS

Additionally certain competitors are integrating RIS and PACS technologies through development partnership and

acquisition activities

The development and acquisition of additional products services and technologies and the improvement of

our existing products and services require significant investments in research and development For example our

current product candidates are in various stages of development and may require significant further research

development pre-clinical or clinical testing regulatory approval and commercialization If we fail to successfully

sell new products and update existing products our operating results may decline as existing products reach the end

of their commercial life cycles

If we are unable to successfully identijj or efftctively integrate acquisitions our financial results may be

adversely affrcted

We have in the past and may in the future acquire and make investments in companies products or

technologies that we believe complement or expand our existing business and assist in quickly bringing new

products to market In 2009 we completed significant acquisitions etrials on July 20 2009 and Confirma on

September 2009 There can be no assurance that we will be able to identify suitable candidates for successful

acquisitions at acceptable prices In addition our ability to achieve the expected returns and synergies from past and

future acquisitions and alliances depends in part upon our ability to integrate the offerings technology

administrative functions and personnel of these businesses into our business in an efficient and effective manner

We cannot predict whether we will be successful in integrating acquired businesses or that our acquired businesses

will perform at anticipated levels In addition our past and future acquisitions may subject us to unanticipated risks
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or liabilities or disrupt operations and divert managements attention from day-to-day operations In addition we

may use our capital stock to acquire acquisition targets which could be dilutive to the existing stockholders and

cause decline in the price of our Common Stock

In making or attempting to make acquisitions or investments we face number of risks including risks

related to

Identifying suitable candidates performing appropriate due diligence identifying potential liabilities

and negotiating acceptable terms

Reducing our working capital and hindering our ability to expand or maintain our business if

acquisitions are made using cash

The potential distraction of our management diversion of our resources and disruption to our business

Retaining and motivating key employees of the acquired companies

Managing operations that are distant from our current headquarters and operational locations

Entering into industries or geographic markets in which we have little or no prior experience

Competing for acquisition opportunities with competitors that are larger or have greater financial and

other resources than us

Accurately forecasting the financial impact of transaction

Assuming liabilities of acquired companies including existing or potential litigation related to the

operation of the business prior to the acquisition

Maintaining good relations with the customers and suppliers of the acquired company and

Effectively integrating acquired companies and achieving expected synergies

In addition any acquired business products or technologies may not generate sufficient revenue and net

income to offset the associated costs of such acquisitions and such acquisitions could result in other adverse effects

Moreover from time to time we may enter into negotiations for the acquisition of businesses products or

technologies but be unable or unwilling to consummate the acquisitions under consideration This can be expensive

and could cause significant diversion of managerial attention and resources

Our acquisitions could trigger certain provisions contained in agreements between third parties and acquired

companies that could permit such parties to terminate that agreement

The companies we acquire may be party to agreements that permit counter-party to terminate an

agreement or receive payments because the acquisition would cause default or violate an anti-assignment change

of control or similar clause in such agreements If this happens we may have to seek to replace that agreement with

new agreement or make additional payments under such agreements However we may be unable to replace

terminated agreement on comparable terms or at all Depending on the importance of such agreement to the

acquired business the failure to replace terminated agreement on similar terms or at all and requirements to pay

additional amounts may increase our costs of operating the acquired business or prevent us from operating the

acquired business

We have incurred and may continue to incur significant costs associated with acquisition activities

In the year
ended December 31 2009 we incurred $1.2 million of acquisition related costs All such direct

acquisition costs have been expensed as incurred by us In addition we believe we may incur charges to operations

in the quarters following an acquisition to reflect costs associated with integrating acquired companies We may

incur additional material charges in subsequent quarters associated with acquisitions We anticipate that our

acquisition activities will require significant cash outflows directly related to completing acquisitions as well as

costs related to integration efforts If the benefits of an acquisition do not exceed the costs of integrating the

businesses our financial results may be adversely affected
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portion of our business relies upon network of independent contractors and distributors whose actions could

have an adverse effect on our business

We obtain some critical information from independent contractors In addition we rely on network of

VARs and distributors to sell our offerings in locations where we do not maintain sales office or sales team

These independent contractors and distributors are not our employees As result we have limited ability to

monitor and direct their activities The loss of significant number of these independent contractors or dealers

could disrupt our sales marketing and distribution efforts Furthermore if any
actions or business practices of these

individuals or entities violate our policies or procedures or otherwise are deemed inappropriate or illegal we could

be subject to litigation regulatory sanctions or reputation damage any of which could adversely affect our business

and require us to terminate relationships with them

Our investments in technology may not be sufficient and may not result in an increase in our revenues or

decrease in our operating costs

As the technological landscape continues to evolve it may become increasingly difficult for us to make

timely cost-effective changes to our offerings in manner that adequately differentiates them from those of our

competitors We cannot provide any assurance that our investments have been or will be sufficient to maintain or

improve our competitive position or that the development of new or improved technologies and products by our

competitors will not have material adverse effect on our business

Our performance and future success depends on our ability to attract integrate and retain qualijied technical

managerial and sales personneL

We are dependent in part upon the services of our senior executives and other key business and technical

personnel We do not currently maintain key-man life insurance on our senior executives The loss of the services

of any of our senior executives or key employees could have material adverse effect on our business Our

commercial success will depend upon among other things the successful recruiting and retention of highly skilled

technical managerial and sales personnel with experience in similar business activities Competition for the type of

highly skilled individuals that we seek is intense We may not be able to retain existing key employees or be able to

find attract and retain skilled personnel on acceptable terms

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property rights or may be accused of infringing

intellectual property rights of third parties

We regard our trademarks service marks copyrights patents trade secrets proprietary technology and

similar intellectual property as critical to our success We rely on trademark copyright and patent law trade secret

protection and confidentiality andlor license agreements with employees customers and others to protect our

proprietary rights Effective intellectual property protection may not be available in every country in which our

products and services are made available We also may not be able to acquire or maintain appropriate intellectual

property rights in all countries where we do business

We may not be able to discover or determine the extent of any unauthorized use of our proprietary rights

Third parties that license our proprietary rights also may take actions that diminish the value of these rights Such

claims whether or not meritorious may result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources

injunctions against us or the payment of damages We may need to obtain licenses from third parties who allege that

we have infringed on their rights but such licenses may not be available on terms acceptable to us or at all In

addition we may not be able to obtain or utilize on favorable terms or at all licenses or other rights with respect to

intellectual property we do not own in providing services under commercial agreements These risks have been

amplified by the increase in third parties whose sole or primary business is to assert such claims

We also rely on proprietary know how and confidential information and employ various methods such as

entering into confidentiality and non-compete agreements with our current employees and with certain third parties

to whom we have divulged proprietary information to protect the processes concepts ideas and documentation

associated with our solutions Such methods may not afford sufficient protection and we may not be able to protect

trade secrets adequately or ensure that other companies would not acquire information that we consider proprietary

We have foreign exchange rate risk

Our international operating results are exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations While the functional

currency of most of our international operations is the U.S Dollar certain account balances are maintained in the
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local currency Upon remeasurement of such accounts or through normal operations results may differ materially

from expectations and we may record significant gains or losses on the remeasurement of such balances As we

expand international operations our exposure to exchange rate fluctuations may increase

We may not be successful in our efforts to expand into international markets

Our international activities are significant to our revenues and profits and we plan to further expand

internationally In 2009 our international revenues were $15.5 million or about 23% of total revenues We also

plan to expand the international revenues of AMICAS after the Acquisition We have relatively little experience

operating in these or future markets and may not benefit from any first-to-market advantages or otherwise succeed

It is costly to establish develop and maintain international operations and websites and promote our brand

internationally Our international operations may not be profitable on sustained basis

In addition to risks described elsewhere in this section our international sales and operations are subject to

number of risks including

Local economic and political conditions

Foreign government regulation of healthcare and government reimbursement of health services

Local restrictions on sales or distribution of certain products or services and uncertainty regarding

liability for products and services

Local import export or other business licensing requirements

Local limitations on the repatriation and investment of funds and foreign currency exchange

restrictions

Shorter payable and longer receivable cycles and the resultant negative impact on cash flow

Local laws and regulations regarding data protection privacy network security and restrictions on

pricing

Difficulty in staffing developing and managing foreign operations as result of distance language and

cultural differences

Different employee/employer relationships and the existence of workers councils and labor unions

Laws and policies of the U.S and other jurisdictions affecting trade foreign investment loans and

taxes and

Geopolitical events including war and terrorism

Litigation or regulatory actions could adversely afftct our financial condition

From April 2006 to November 2009 we were subject to formal SEC investigation related to our

announcement on March 17 2006 that we would investigate allegations of improprieties related to financial

reporting and revise our results of operations for the fiscal quarters ended June 30 2005 and September 30 2005

On November 2009 the SEC filed Complaint in federal court charging Merge with record-keeping violations

but did not charge Merge with fraud nor assess any civil penalty against Merge The Complaint enjoined Merge

from making any future violations of the reporting record-keeping and internal controls provisions under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In addition two of Merges former executives were charged with accounting

fraud in the Complaint

On June 2009 we were served with Summons and Complaint in the Milwaukee County Circuit Court

State of Wisconsin captioned William Mortimore and David Nosay Merge Technologies Inc n/k/a Merge

Healthcare Inc Case Number 09CV008356 Case Code 30301 The Complaint includes demand for jury

trial and alleges that Merge unreasonably refused Mortimore and Noshays request for indemnification requests the

court order that they are entitled to indemnification under Wisconsin Statute Section 180.08512 alleges breaches

of certain employment agreements and breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing Monetary damages

are unspecified We intend to vigorously defend this action However any adverse outcome could negatively

impact our business and operating results
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As result of lawsuits and regulatory matters including the matter discussed above we have incurred and may
continue to incur substantial expenses In addition to the matter discussed above we are from time to time parties

to legal proceedings lawsuits and other claims incident to our business activities Such matters may include among

other things assertions of contract breach or intellectual property infringement claims for indemnity arising in the

course of our business and claims by persons whose employment has been terminated Such matters are subject to

many uncertainties and outcomes are not predictable with assurance The defense of these actions may be both time

consuming and expensive If any of these legal proceedings were to result in an unfavorable outcome it could have

material adverse effect on our business financial position and results of operations

We may be subject to product liability claims ifpeople or property is harmed by the products and services that we

selL

Some of the products we sell or manufacture may expose us to product liability claims relating to personal

injury death or environmental or property damage and may require product recalls or other actions Certain third

parties primarily our customers also sell products or services using our products This may increase our exposure

to product liability claims Although we maintain liability insurance we cannot be certain that coverage
will be

adequate for liabilities actually incurred or that insurance will continue to be available on economically reasonable

terms or at all In addition some of our agreements with vendors and sellers do not indemnify us from product

liability

We provide customers with certain warranties that could result in higher costs than anticipated

Software products such as ours that are used in wide range of clinical and health information systems

settings may contain number of errors or bugs especially early in their product life cycle Our products include

clinical information systems used in patient care settings where low tolerance for errors or bugs exists Testing of

products is difficult due to the wide range of environments in which systems are installed The discovery of defects

or errors in our software products or in our implementation of integrated solutions may cause delays in product

delivery poor client references payment disputes contract cancellations or additional expenses and payments to

rectify problems Any of those factors may result in delayed acceptance of or the return of our software products

We depend on licenses from third partiesfor rights to some technology we use and if we are unable to continue

these relationships and maintain our rights to this technology our business could suffer

Some of the technology used in our software depends upon licenses from third party vendors These

licenses typically expire within one to five years can be renewed only by mutual consent and may be terminated if

we breach the license and fail to cure the breach within specified period of time We may not be able to continue

using the technology made available to us under these licenses on commercially reasonable terms or at all As

result we may have to discontinue delay or reduce software shipments until we obtain equivalent technology

which could hurt our business Most of our third party licenses are nonexclusive Our competitors may obtain the

same right to use any of the technology covered by these licenses and use the technology to compete directly with

us In addition if our vendors choose to discontinue support of the licensed technology in the future or are

unsuccessful in their continued research and development efforts particularly with regard to the Microsoft

Windows/Intel platform on which most of our products operate we may not be able to modify or adapt our own

software

We are subject to government regulation changes to which could negatively impact our business

We are subject to regulation in the U.S by the Food and Drug Administration FDA including periodic

FDA inspections in Canada under Health Canadas Medical Devices Regulations and in other countries by

corresponding regulatory authorities We may be required to undertake additional actions in the U.S to comply

with the Federal Food Drug and Cosmetic Act the Act regulations promulgated under the Act and any other

applicable regulatory requirements For example the FDA has increased its focus on regulating computer software

intended for the use in healthcare setting If our software solutions are deemed to be actively regulated medical

devices by the FDA we could be subject to more extensive requirements governing pre- and post-marketing

activities Complying with these regulations could be time consuming and expensive and may include

Requiring us to receive FDA clearance of pre-market notification submission demonstrating

substantial equivalence to device already legally marketed or to obtain FDA approval of pre

market approval application establishing the safety and effectiveness of the software
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Requiring us to comply with rigorous regulations governing the pre-clinical and clinical testing

manufacture distribution labeling and promotion of medical devices and

Requiring us to comply with the Act regarding general controls including establishment registration

device listing compliance with good manufacturing practices reporting of specified malfunctions and

adverse device events

Similar obligations may exist in other countries in which we do business including Canada Any failure by

us to comply with other applicable regulatory requirements both domestic and foreign could subject us to number

of enforcement actions including warning letters fines product seizures recalls injunctions total or partial

suspension of production operating restrictions or limitations on marketing refusal of the government to grant new

clearances or approvals withdrawal of marketing clearances or approvals and civil and criminal penalties

Changes in frderal and state regulations relating to patient data could depress the demand for our software and

impose significant software redesign costs

Federal regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act HIPAA impose

national health data standards on healthcare providers that conduct electronic health transactions healthcare

clearinghouses that convert health data between HIPAA compliant and non-compliant formats and health plans

Collectively these groups are known as covered entities The HIPAA regulations prescribe transaction formats and

code sets for electronic health transactions protect individual privacy by limiting the uses and disclosures of

individually identifiable health information and require covered entities to implement administrative physical and

technological safeguards to ensure the confidentiality integrity availability and security of individually identifiable

health information in electronic form Although we are not covered entity most of our customers are and they

require that our software and services adhere to HIPAA regulations Any failure or perceived failure of our software

or services to meet HIPAA regulations could adversely affect demand for our software and services and potentially

require us to expend significant capital research and development and other resources to modify our software or

services to address the privacy and security requirements of our clients

States and foreign jurisdictions have adopted or may adopt privacy standards that are similar to or more

stringent than the federal HIPAA privacy regulations This may lead to different restrictions for handling

individually identifiable health information As result our customers may demand IT solutions and services that

are adaptable to reflect different and changing regulatory requirements which could increase our development costs

In the future federal state or foreign governmental authorities may impose new data security regulations or

additional restrictions on the collection use transmission and other disclosures of health information We cannot

predict the potential impact that these future rules may have on our business however the demand for our software

and services may decrease if we are not able to develop and offer software and services that can address the

regulatory challenges and compliance obligations facing our clients

Proposed ftderal U.S government reductions in Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement rates for radiology

procedures could negatively affect revenues of our hospital and imaging clinic customers which could reduce

our customers ability to purchase our software and services

significant portion of our net sales are derived directly or indirectly from sales to end-users in the U.S

including hospitals diagnostic imaging centers and specialty clinics many of which generate some or all of their

revenues from government sponsored healthcare programs principally Medicare and Medicaid We believe that the

implementation of the reimbursement reductions contained in the Deficit Reduction Act has adversely impacted our

end-user customers revenues per examination which has caused some of them to respond by reducing their

investments or postponing investment decisions including investments in our software solutions and services

including maintenance JACR study in September 2009 of the effects of the DRA indicated that MR volumes for

radiology dropped 2% in 2007 from an 8.4% annual growth rate in 2002-2006 and MR payments to radiologists

dropped 30% from an 11% annual growth This indicates the dramatic impact of legislation on our industry

The risk of more Medicare imaging reimbursement cuts remains Cuts proposed for 2010 include overall

physician fee schedule reductions general modality reimbursement cuts the utilization change noted above and

specific code level reimbursement decreases These cuts compound reimbursement losses For example

radiologist completing myocardial perfusion study would see 50% drop in reimbursement based on these

changes We believe the medical community will continue to contest these reductions For example the American

College of Cardiology has filed lawsuit against the Department of Health and Human Services regarding one of

the proposed physician fee changes It is unclear if any of these proposed changes will remain intact for 2010 will
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be superseded by broader healthcare legislation or will be reversed with future CMS changes or legislation As

such our direct customers are faced with an inability to accurately forecast their revenue streams In turn this

creates risk for us in their ability to pay
for ongoing maintenance and upgrades andlor expand their solutions

There are limited number of stockholders who have significant control over our common stock allowing them

to have significant influence over the outcome of all matters submitted to stockholders for approval which may

conflict with our interests and the interests of other stockholders

Our directors officers and principal stockholders stockholders owning 10% or more of our common stock

beneficially owned approximately 30.5 million or 39.5 of the outstanding shares of common stock and stock

options that could have been converted to common stock at December 31 2009 and such stockholders will have

significant influence over the outcome of all matters submitted to our stockholders for approval including the

election of directors and other corporate actions Also on November 18 2009 we repaid in full our $15.0 million

senior secured term note from Merrick RIS LLC Merrick an affiliate of Merrick Ventures LLC including

prepayment penalty of $2700 and accrued interest of $395 As of December 31 2009 Merrick and its affiliates

owned approximately 7.4% of our Common Stock The influence of our large stockholders could impact our

business strategy and also have the effect of discouraging others from attempting us to take over thereby increasing

the likelihood that the market price of the common stock will not reflect premium for control

In addition we engage from time to time in transactions with certain of our significant stockholders In

June 2008 in exchange for $20 million we issued $15 million senior secured note payable to Merrick RIS

LLC an affiliate of Merrick Ventures and ii 21085715 shares of our common stock at price per share of $0.35

to Merrick In November 2009 we completed stock offering and used portion of the proceeds to prepay in full

our senior secured note due June 2010 held by Merrick RIS LLC which included all amounts owed under the Note

of $15.0 million and an additional amount $3.1 million payable as result of the prepayment of the note Merrick

RIS LLC beneficially owns as of December 31 2009 37.4% of our outstanding common stock Michael Ferro

Jr our Chairman of the Board and trusts for the benefit of Mr Ferro family members beneficially own majority

of the equity interest in Merrick RIS LLC Mr Ferro also serves as the chairman and chief executive officer of

Merrick RIS LLC In addition Justin Dearborn our Chief Executive Officer and Director served as Managing

Director and General Counsel of Merrick Ventures LLC an affiliate of Merrick RIS LLC

Our large stockholders may have interests that dffer from other shareholders

Merrick RIS LLC beneficially owns as of December 31 2009 7.4% of our outstanding common stock

Michael Ferro Jr our Chairman of the Board and trusts for the benefit of Mr Ferros family members

beneficially own majority of the equity interest in Merrick RIS LLC Mr Ferro also serves as the chairman and

chief executive officer of Merrick RIS LLC Accordingly Mr Ferro indirectly owned or controlled the senior

secured note payable and all of the shares of common stock owned by Merrick RIS LLC In addition prior to

joining the Company Justin Dearborn our Chief Executive Officer and Director served as Managing Director

and General Counsel of Merrick Ventures LLC an affiliate of Merrick RIS LLC Due to its stock ownership

Merrick RIS LLC has significant influence over our business including the election of our directors In June 2008

in exchange for $20 million we issued $15 million senior secured note payable to Merrick RIS LLC an

affiliate of Merrick Ventures and ii 21085715 shares of our Common Stock at price per
share of $0.35 to

Merrick In November 2009 we completed stock offering and used portion of the proceeds to prepay
in full our

senior secured note due June 2010 held by Merrick RIS LLC which included all amounts owed under the note of

$15.0 million and an additional amount of $3.1 million payable as result of the prepayment of the note Effective

as of January 2009 we entered into consulting agreement with Merrick RIS LLC Services provide by Merrick

Ventures LLC under the consulting agreement include investor relations financial analysis and strategic planning

The cost of this consulting agreement in 2009 was $460000 Effective January 2010 we entered into an

amendment to extend the term of the consulting agreement through December 31 2011 and modified the payment

terms from flat fee arrangement per quarter to per transaction or success based arrangement

On March 31 2009 we entered into value added reseller agreement with Merrick Healthcare Solutions

LLC Merrick Healthcare Under terms of the agreement Merrick Healthcare purchased software licenses from us

for $400000 Payment of the entire balance was made on the date of the agreement We recognized $400000 in

revenue in the first quarter of 2009 related to this transaction
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In addition in February 2010 we entered into VAR agreement with Merrick Healthcare under which we

may market resell or supply certain of their products and services Under terms of the agreement products and

services will be purchased on per unit basis from Merrick Healthcare

As result of these relationships the interests of Merrick RIS LLC and its affiliates may differ from those

of our other stockholders Merrick Ventures LLC and its affiliates are in the business of making investments in

companies and maximizing the return on those investments They currently have and may from time to time in the

future acquire interests in businesses that directly or indirectly compete with certain aspects of our business or our

suppliers or customers businesses Merricks significant ownership of our voting stock will enable it to influence

or effectively control us

The market price of our Common Stock may decline as result of acquisitions

The market price of our Common Stock may decline after acquisitions including AMICAS are completed

Some of the issues that we could face are

The integration of an acquired business is unsuccessful or takes longer or is more disruptive than

anticipated

We do not achieve the expected synergies or other benefits of the acquisition as rapidly or to the extent

anticipated if at all

The effect of the acquisition on our financial results does not meet the expectations of Merge financial

analysts or investors or

After the acquisition the business does not perform as anticipated

In connection with the acquisitions of etrials and Confirma in the third quarter of 2009 we issued 9.4

million additional shares of our Common Stock The increase in the number of outstanding shares of our Common

Stock may lead to sales of such shares or the perception that such sales may occur either of which may adversely

affect the market price of our Common Stock We will not be using our Common Stock as consideration for the

AMICAS Acquisition but we anticipate issuing additional Common Stock to the purchasers of our new class of

Preferred Stock that will fund portion of the purchase price for the AMICAS Acquisition

Shares of our common stock eligible for public sale may have negative impact on the market price of our

commons stock and dilute our stockholders percentage ownership and voting power

Sales of substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market or the perception that

these sales may occur could cause the market price of our common stock to decline In addition the sale of these

shares could impair our ability to raise capital should we wish to do so through the sale of additional common or

preferred stock As of December 31 2009 we had 74791753 shares of common stock outstanding In addition as

of December 31 2009 we had outstanding options to purchase 5021995 shares of our common stock of which

2076212 options were then exercisable and 426664 shares granted under restricted stock awards Future sales of

shares of our common stock by existing holders of our common stock or by holders of outstanding options upon the

exercise thereof could have negative impact on the market price of our common stock As additional shares of

common stock become available for sale in the public market due to the exercise of options or the issuance of

shares as result of acquisitions the market supply of shares of common stock will increase which could also

decrease the market price

We are unable to estimate the number of shares that may be sold because this will depend on the market

price for our common stock the personal circumstances of the sellers and other factors Any sale of substantial

amounts of our common stock or other securities in the open market may adversely affect the market price of such

securities and may adversely affect our ability to obtain future financing in the capital markets as well as create

potential market overhang

Because we do not intend to pay cash dividends stockholders will benefit from an investment in our stock only if

it appreciates in value

We currently intend to retain future earnings if any and do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the

foreseeable future As result the success of an investment in our common stock will depend upon any future

appreciation in its value There is no guarantee that our common stock will appreciate in value or even maintain the

price at stockholders have purchased and will purchase shares
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The trading price of our common stock has been volatile and may fluctuate substantially in the future

The price of our common stock has been and may continue to be volatile The trading price of our

common stock may continue to fluctuate widely as result of number of factors some of which are not in our

control including

Our ability to meet or exceed the expectations of analysts or investors

Changes in our forecasts or earnings estimates by analysts

Quarter-to-quarter variations in our operating results

Announcements regarding clinical activities or new products by us or our competitors

General conditions in the healthcare IT industry

Governmental regulatory action and healthcare reform measures including changes in reimbursement

rates for imaging procedures

Rumors about our performance or software solutions

Announcements regarding acquisitions including our AMICAS Acquisition

Uncertainty regarding our ability to service existing debt

Price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock market which have particularly affected the market

prices of many software healthcare and technology companies and

General economic conditions

In addition the market for our common stock may experience price and volume fluctuations unrelated or

disproportionate to our operating performance These fluctuations could have significant impact on our business

due to diminished incentives for management and diminished currency for acquisitions

Certain provisions of our charter and Delaware law could make takeover difficult and may prevent or frustrate

attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our management team

We have an authorized class of 1000000 shares of undesignated preferred stock and one authorized share

of Series Special Voting Stock preferred stock These shares may be issued by our board of directors on such

terms and with such rights preferences and designation as the board of directors may determine and new class of

preferred stock will be issued to fund in part the AMICAS Acquisition Issuance of such preferred stock

depending upon the rights preferences and designations thereof may have the effect of delaying deterring or

preventing change in control of us In addition we are subject to provisions of Delaware corporate law which

subject to certain exceptions will prohibit us from engaging in any business combination with person who

together with affiliates and associates owns 15% or more of our common stock for period of three years following

the date that the person came to own 15% or more of our common stock unless the business combination is

approved in prescribed manner

These provisions of our certificate of incorporation and of Delaware law may have the effect of delaying

deterring or preventing change in control may discourage bids for our common stock at premium over market

price and may adversely affect the market price and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock

In addition these provisions make it more difficult to replace or remove our current management team in the event

our stockholders believe this would be in our best interest and the best interests our stockholders

Item lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
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Item PROPERTIES

Our principal facilities by operating segment are set forth in the following table

Annual Lense

Square Paynnts

Segment Location Footage millions of

Direct Milwaukee Wisconsin 36000 0.4

Direct Morrisville North Carolina 17000 0.2

Direct Cbicagolllinois 16000 0.3

Direct Hudson Ohio 10000 0.1

Indirect Mississauga Ontario 24000 0.6

Indirect Bellevue Washington 19000 0.5

Square footage in thcae facilities inc1ud space for our Corporate enployees and assets

We actively monitor our real estate needs in light of our current utilization and projected growth We

believe that we can acquire any necessary additional facility capacity on reasonably acceptable terms within

relatively short timeframe We devote capital resources to facility improvements and expansions as we deem

necessary to promote growth and most effectively serve our customers

Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From April 2006 to November 2009 we were subject to formal SEC investigation related to our

announcement on March 17 2006 that we would investigate allegations of improprieties related to financial

reporting and revise our results of operations for the fiscal quarters ended June 30 2005 and September 30 2005

On November 2009 the SEC filed Complaint in federal court charging Merge with record-keeping violations

but did not charge Merge with fraud nor assess any civil penalty against Merge The Complaint enjoined Merge

from making any future violations of the reporting record-keeping and internal controls provisions under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In addition two of Merges former executives were charged with accounting

fraud in the Complaint

On June 2009 Merge Healthcare was served with Summons and Complaint in the Milwaukee County

Circuit Court State of Wisconsin captioned William Mortimore and David Noshay Merge Technologies

Inc nlkla Merge Healthcare Inc Isici Case Number 09CV008356 Case Code 30301 The Complaint includes

demand for jury trial and alleges that Merge unreasonably refused Mortimore and Noshays request for

indemnification requests the court order that they are entitled to indemnification under Wisconsin Statute Section

180.08512 alleges breaches of certain employment agreements and alleges breach of the covenant of good faith

and fair dealing Monetary damages being sought are unspecified

In addition to the matters discussed above we are from time to time parties to legal proceedings lawsuits

and other claims incident to our business activities Such matters may include among other things assertions of

contract breach or intellectual property infringement claims for indemnity arising in the course of our business and

claims by persons whose employment has been terminated Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and

outcomes are not predictable with assurance Consequently we are unable to ascertain the ultimate aggregate

amount of monetary liability amounts which may be covered by insurance or recoverable from third parties or the

financial impact with respect to these matters as of the date of this report

Item RESERVED

PART

Item MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Common Stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market NASDAQ
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The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sale prices of our Common Stock

as reported by the NASDAQ

Common Stock Market Prices

2009 4th Quarter 3rd Quarter 2nd Quarter 1st Qmrter

High 4.25 4.78 4.48 1.84

Low 2.93 2.98 1.25 1.07

2008

High 1.75 1.60 1.37 1.26

Low 0.26 0.60 0.26 0.33

According to the records of American Stock Transfer Trust Company our registrar and transfer agent

we had 376 shareholders of record of Common Stock as of March 10 2010

Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total return on our common stock with the Russell 2000 Index

and the NASDAQ Computer Index U.S companies for the period from December 31 2004 to December 31 2009

The comparison assumes that $100 was invested on December 31 2004 in our Common Stock and in each of the

comparison indices and assumes reinvestment of dividends where applicable We have selected the Russell 2000

index for comparison purposes as we do not believe we can reasonably identify an appropriate peer group index

The comparisons shown in the graph below are based upon historical data The stock price performance shown in

the graph below is not indicative of nor intended to forecast the potential future performance of our common stock

COMPARISON OF THE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURNS
FOR THE FIVE YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009
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Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Date Nasdag MRGE Nasdag Computer Index AIXCO Russell 2000 Index ARUT
12/31/2004 $100 $100 $100

12/30/2005 $113 $103 $103

12/29/2006 $29 $109 $121

12/31/2007 $5 $133 $118

12/31/2008 $6 $71 $77

12/31/2009 $15 $121 $96

Dividend Policy

On June 12 2008 we announced the redemption of all preferred share purchase rights outstanding as

result of our Shareholder Rights Plan which was established in 2006 As provided for in the plan we redeemed the

rights for $0.00 per right As result shareholders of record on June 23 2008 received dividend payment in July

2008 totaling $57000 and this plan is no longer in effect We currently do not intend to declare or pay any cash

dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future

Repurchases of Shares

None

Item SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial data is qualified in its entirety by reference to and should be

read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto appearing elsewhere

herein and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Years Ended December 31

20091 2008 2007 2006 20052

in thousands except for share and per share data

Statements of Operations Data

Nat sales 66841 56735 59572 74322 82538

OpemtingincomeIossX3X4 8963 21697 171238 252087 4377

Income loss before incon taxes 150 23743 171808 249473 5113

Income tax expense bonefit 135 60 240 9450 8373

Nat incomeloss 285 23683 171568 258923 3260

Earnings loper share

Basic 0.00 0.51 5.06 7.68 0.13

Diluted 0.00 0.51 5.06 7.68 0.13

Weighted average shar outstanding

Basic 60910268 46717546 33913379 33701735 24696762

Diluted 62737821 46717546 33913379 33701735 24696762

December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

in tliusands

Balanre Sheet Data

Working capital 18231 8254 878 27101 56964

Total assets 100249 54737 61635 234875 500045

IDng-term debt obligations 14230

Shareholders equity 68137 8841 24405 189925 442592

Includes the results of etrials and Confirma from July 20 2009 and September 12009 the respective dates of the business combinations

Includes the results of Cedara from June 2005 the date of our business combination

For the year ended December 31 2005 we incurred charge for acquired in-process research and development of $13.0 million

For the years ended December31 2007 and 2006 we incurred charges of $122.4 million and $214.1 million respectively related to the

impairment of goodwill
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Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion below contains forward-looking statements We have used words such as believes

intends anticipates expects and similar expressions to identify jbrward-looking statements These

statements are based on information currently available to us and are subject to number of risks and uncertainties

that may cause our actual results of operations financial condition cash flows performance business prospects

and opportunities and the timing of certain events to differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these

statements These risks uncertainties and other factors include without limitation those matters discussed in Item

IA of Part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Except as expressly required by the federal securities laws we

undertake no obligation to update such fOctors or to publicly announce the results of any of the forward-looking

statements contained herein to reflect jiture events developments or changed circumstances or fOr any other

reason The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and

notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and Item JA Risk Factors

Managements Discussion and Analysis is presented in the following order

Overview

Revenues and Expenses

Results of Operations

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Material Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Critical Accounting Policies

Overview

We develop software solutions that automate healthcare data and diagnostic workflow to create more

comprehensive electronic record of the patient experience Our -products ranging from standards-based

development toolkits to fully integrated clinical applications have been used by healthcare providers worldwide for

over 20 years We have significantly expanded our product offerings in the second half of 2009 through strategic

acquisitions

On September 2009 we completed the acquisition of Confinna Inc Confirma provider of computer

systems for processing and presentation of data from magnetic resonance imaging MRI studies Under terms of

the agreement we acquired all the outstanding shares of Confirma in exchange for 5.4 million shares of Merge

Common Stock Total consideration for the transaction was $16.2 million Upon completion of the acquisition we

renamed this entity Merge CAD

On July 20 2009 we completed the acquisition of etrials Worldwide Inc etrials provider of clinical

trials software and services Under the terms of the Merger Agreement we acquired all of the outstanding shares of

common stock of etnals for consideration per share of $0.80 in cash without interest and 0.3448 shares of Merge

Common Stock Total consideration for the transaction was $25.1 million Upon completion of the acquisition we

renamed this entity Merge eClinical

On June 30 2009 we enhanced our financial reporting process to allow us to obtain discrete operating

results for our business units As result effective in the third quarter of 2009 we have reportable segments which

we have designated as Direct and Indirect These reportable segments are based on business unit operations that

have similar economic characteristics The Direct segment primarily sells directly to the end-users located primarily

in the U.S and Canada and also distributes certain products through the Internet via our website This segment

consists of the Merge Fusion U.S and Merge eClinical business units The Indirect segment primarily sells software

products and related services to Original Equipment Manufacturers Value Added Resellers and distributors world

wide This segment consists of the Merge OEM Merge CAD and Merge Fusion EMEA business units

We have seen our markets become increasingly affected by the continuing global macroeconomic

downturn The downturn which first started in the U.S has also impacted our customers in other parts of the

world We believe that the initiatives undertaken to reduce our operating expenses have appropriately positioned

our recurring cost structure We believe it is likely that this economic downturn will continue to persist however
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we cannot predict its severity duration or impact on our future operating results We are also monitoring the

increasing regulatory and legislative activity surrounding healthcare and health information technology as discussed

more fully above Due to the complexity of the reform legislation and its potential impact on us as both vendor

and employer it is difficult to forecast any potential net impact on our customers and market and thus we remain

cautious about the impact on our business

We will attempt to use the current economic environment as an opportunity to expand our market share and

to continue moving into similar related or adjacent markets to those in which we currently are active as well as

invest in international growth We continue to develop new products and are pleased with the breadth and depth of

our product lines and service capabilities

Effective as of February 28 2010 we entered into Merger Agreement to acquire AMICAS Under the

terms of the Merger Agreement we will commence to tender offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of

common stock of AMICAS for consideration per
share of $6.05 in cash without interest which is expected to be

approximately $248 million We plan to finance the transaction with $200 million of financing from Morgan

Stanley Senior Funding Inc with whom we have executed definitive commitment letter through the sale of high

yield notes or bridge financing in addition to cash already available at the two companies and the issuance of

preferred and common stock with respect to which we have received $40 million of pre-funded proceeds from

investors Although we have not entered into formal Preferred Stock Agreement with these investors we have

signed commitment letters that provide the investors 2% commitment fee the issuance of up to million shares of

Common Stock subject to $50 million of total proceeds being received and cumulative dividends at an anticipated

rate of 15% among other negotiated terms We have placed $30 million of the pre-funded proceeds in escrow

pursuant to the Merger Agreement and may be required to release the escrow under certain circumstances In

connection with these transactions we have already incurred and anticipate incurring significant costs related to the

acquisition debt offering and preferred stock We anticipate total costs of these transactions to be incurred by both

parties including break-up fee owed to former potential acquiror of AMICAS will approximate $32 million

The Merger Agreement contains certain conditions to our obligation to complete the tender offer including

successful tender of approximately 54% of the outstanding shares of common stock of AMICAS antitrust clearance

and other regulatory approvals We anticipate the acquisition will close in the second quarter of 2010

Revenues and Expenses

The following is brief discussion of our revenues and expenses

Net Sales

Net sales consist of software and other sales net of estimated returns and allowances and professional

services and maintenance Software and other sales consist of software and purchased component revenue

recognized in sales to OEM customers healthcare facilities and imaging centers Professional services and

maintenance consists of hosted clinical trial SaaS offering installation custom engineering services training

consulting project management and software maintenance and support

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of purchased components third-party royalties costs to service and support our

customers and amortization of patents and purchased and developed software including related impairments The

cost of software and other includes purchased components and third-party royalties included in software and

hardware sales to our customers The cost of services and maintenance includes headcount and related costs and

direct third-party costs incurred in our performance of SaaS offerings installation custom engineering services

training consulting and software maintenance and support Depreciation and amortization including any

impairment is assessed on capital equipment used to fulfill contract obligations and our purchased and developed

software assets Depreciation and amortization are recorded over the respective assets useful life Each quarter we

test our purchased and developed software for impairment by comparing its fair value estimated using undiscounted

future cash flows to the carrying value of the software If the carrying value of the software exceeds its fair value

we record an impairment charge in the period in which the impairment is incurred equal to the amount of the

difference between the carrying value and estimated undiscounted future cash flows

Sales and Marketing Expense

Sales and marketing expense includes the costs of our sales and marketing departments commissions and

costs associated with trade shows
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Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense
consists of expenses incurred for the development of our proprietary

software and technologies The costs reflected in this category are reduced by capitalized software development

costs The amortization of capitalized software development costs and any related impairments are included in cost

of sales

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense includes costs for information systems accounting administrative

support management personnel bad debt expense legal fees and general corporate matters

Acquisition-Related Expenses

Acquisition-related expenses are costs incurred to effect business combinations including banking legal

accounting valuation and other professional or consulting fees

Goodwill and Trade Name Impairment Restructuring and Other Expenses

Goodwill and trade name impairment restructuring and other expenses consist of impairment of goodwill

and trade names severance to involuntarily terminated employees resulting from our restructuring initiatives loss

on disposal of subsidiaries and impairment of non-cancelable building leases associated with restructuring activities

Depreciation Amortization and Impairment

Depreciation and amortization including any impairment is assessed on capital equipment leasehold

improvements and our customer relationships intangible asset Depreciation and amortization are recorded over the

respective assets useful life We also record impairment of these long-lived assets whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable based primarily upon whether

expected future undiscounted cash flows are sufficient to support recovery of the assets

Other Income Expense

Other income expense is comprised of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalent balances

interest expense and amortization of costs and discounts incurred from borrowings foreign exchange gains or losses

on foreign currency payables and receivables at our Nuenen Netherlands branch and at our subsidiaries located in

Mississauga Ontario and Shanghai China In addition we also record any other-than-temporary impairment

charges recognized on our equity investments in non-public companies in other income expense

Results of Operations

In addition to the acquisitions of etrials and Confirma the following operational activities and economic

considerations other than those previously discussed have significantly impacted the comparability of the results of

operations for the periods discussed herein

In November 2009 we sold in registered direct offering 9.1 million shares of Common Stock for

aggregate net proceeds of $25.2 million We used the net proceeds from this offering to repay our $15.0

million note payable the Note including $2.7 million prepayment penalty and $0.4 million of accrued

interest The net impact of these transactions was an increase in cash of $7.1 million and charge to

other income expense of $3.3 million

Concurrent with the acquisition of etrials in July 2009 we completed restructuring initiative to reduce

our workforce by approximately 35 individuals based upon an assessment of ongoing personnel needs

As result we incurred $1.7 million of severance and related costs in the third quarter of 2009

In the third quarter of 2008 we exited our operations in India

In the second quarter of 2008 we completed private placement pursuant to which we raised net

proceeds of $16.6 million which included two-year $15.0 million Note

In the second quarter of 2008 we disposed of our French subsidiary

During 2008 we completed two restructuring initiatives in which we incurred in aggregate $6.8 million

in expenses These initiatives included workforce reductions in all parts of the organization as well as

elimination of facilities see Note 12 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included herein
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Our Canadian operations primarily invoice customers in U.S dollars whereas the majority of operating

expenses which include approximately one-fourth of our current workforce are denominated in the

Canadian dollar During late 2008 the U.S dollar to Canadian dollar exchange rate significantly

strengthened As result we have experienced an approximate 7% reduction in average cost for our

Canadian dollar denominated expenses in 2009 compared to 2008 There was no such change in our

Canadian dollar denominated expenses in 2008 compared to 2007 since the average U.S dollar to

Canadian dollar exchange rate did not significantly change

Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008

The results of operations in 2009 include those of Merge eClinical included in the Direct segment since

July 20 2009 and Merge CAD included in the Indirect segment since September 2009 The following table sets

forth selected summarized consolidated financial data for the periods indicated as well as comparative data

showing increases and decreases between the periods All amounts except percentages are in thousands

Years Ended 31 Change

2009 2008

Net sales

Software and other 33037 49.4% 27561 48.6% 5476 19.9%

Servicesandmaintenance 33804 50.6% 29174 51.4% 4630 15.9%

Total net sales 66841 100.0% 56735 100.0% 10106 17.8%

Cost of sales

Softwareandother 3730 11.3% 5121 18.6% 1391 -27.2%

Services and maintenance 12324 36.5% 11672 40.0% 652 5.6%

Depreciation amortization and impainnent 3323 NM 3279 NM 44 NM

Total cost of sales 19377 29.0% 20072 35.4% 695 -3.5%

Gross margin

Software and other 25984 78.7% 19161 69.5% 6823 35.6%

Servicesandmaintenance 21480 63.5% 17502 60.0% 3978 22.7%

Totalgrossmargin 47464 71.0% 36663 64.6% 10801 29.5%

Operating expenses

Salesandmarketing 9203 13.8% 9313 16.4% 110 -1.2%

Productreseamhanddevelopment 10689 16.0% 13240 23.3% 2551 -19.3%

General and administrative 13005 19.5% 20461 36.1% 7456 -36.4%

Acquisition-telated expenses 1225 1.8% 0.0% 1225 NM
Trade name impairment restructuring

and otherexpenses 1613 2.4% 11816 20.8% 10203 -86.3%

Depreciation amortization and impairment 2766 4.1% 3530 6.2% 764 -21.6%

Total operating costs and expenses 38501 57.6% 58360 102.9% 19859 -34.0%

Operating income loss 8963 13.4% 21697 -38.2% 30660 141.3%

Other income expense net 8813 -13.2% 2046 -3.6% 6767 330.7%

lncomelossbeforeincontaxes 150 0.2% 23743 -41.8% 23893 100.6%

Income tax expense benefit 135 -0.2% 60 -0.1% 75 125.0%

Netincomeloss 285 0.4% 23683 -41.7% 23968 101.2%

Percentages areoftotal net sales execpt forcost of sales and gross margin edich arc based upon relatedn sales

NM denotes percentage is not meaningful

Gross margin
for software and other sales includes depreciation amortization and

impaimlent expense
recottled in cost of sales
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Net Sales

Net sales by segment are as follows in thousands

Yeai Ended December 31 Change

2009 2008

Indirect

Software and oth 24025 35.9% 16772 29.6% 7253 43.2%

Servicesandnnintenance 9380 14.1% 11738 20.7% 2358 -20.1%

Total net sal 33405 50.0% 28510 50.3% 4895 17.2%

Direct

Softwareandoth 9012 13.5% 10789 19.0% 1777 -16.5%

Servis and imintenance 24424 36.5% 17436 30.7% 6988 40.1%

Total net sal 33436 50.0% 28225 49.7% 5211 18.5%

Total net sa1 66841 56735 10106

Software and Other Sales Total software and other sales in 2009 were $33.0 million an increase of

approximately $5.4 million or 19.9% from $27.6 million in 2008 Indirect sales increased $7.3 million primarily

due to the fact that sales were negatively affected in 2008 because of customer concerns with our financial viability

We believe that these concerns were largely alleviated with the financing transaction completed in June 2008 In

addition 2009 Indirect sales when compared to 2008 include $1.5 million of additional sales from Eklin Medical

Systems Inc Eklin resulting from new agreement with this customer in the second quarter of 2009 In addition

net sales from Merge CAD were $0.8 million in 2009 Direct sales decreased $1.8 million primarily as result of

the downturn in general macroeconomic conditions in North America and 2009 having fewer contracts with

significant hardware components compared to 2008 In the future we anticipate that the revenue recognized from

software and other sales may vary significantly on quarterly basis

Services and Maintenance Sales Total services and maintenance sales in 2009 were $33.8 million an

increase of $4.6 million or 15.9% from $29.2 million in 2008 Direct sales increased $7.0 million primarily due to

$5.8 million of sales by Merge eClinical from the date of its acquisition Indirect sales decreased $2.4 million due to

decline in the number of custom engineering services projects in 2009 primarily as result of the reluctance of

OEM customers to start new projects in the current economic environment and shift in our strategic focus with

respect to such customers Indirect services and maintenance sales in 2009 include $1.5 million from Merge CAD
from the date of its acquisition

Gross Margin

Gross Margin Software and Other Sales Gross margin on software and other sales was $26.0 million in

2009 an increase of $6.8 million or 35.6% from $19.2 million in 2008 Gross margin as percentage of software

and other sales increased to 78.7% in 2009 from 69.5% in 2008 primarily due to the mix of sales by our segments

Indirect sales which typically consist of software only or minimal hardware component contracts that generate

higher margins were 72.7% of software and other sales in 2009 compared to 60.9% in 2008 In addition the

hardware component of Direct sales decreased to 18.1% of sales in 2009 compared to 29.8% in 2008 We expect

our gross margin on software and other sales going forward to fluctuate depending on the mix of sales between the

segments and the percentage of hardware components included in sales through the Direct segment

Gross Margin Services and Maintenance Sales Gross margin on services and maintenance sales was

$21.5 million in 2009 an increase of $4.0 million or 22.7% from $17.5 million in 2008 Gross margin as

percentage of sales increased to 63.5% in 2009 from 60.0% in 2008 primarily due to decrease in salaries and other

related expenses including travel and entertainment as result of our restructuring initiatives As the majority of

service and maintenance costs are fixed we expect gross margins going forward to fluctuate depending on billable

utilization of our resources

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expense decreased $0.1 million or 1.2% to $9.2 million in 2009 from $9.3 million in

2008 Salaries commissions and other related expenses including travel and entertainment remained relatively

constant as decreases from 2008 restructuring and subsidiary disposal activities were offset by an increases due to

2009 acquisitions We experienced $0.2 million decrease in Canadian related costs due to the strengthening of the
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average exchange rate for the U.S dollar compared to the Canadian dollar in 2009 primarily in the first half of

2009 We anticipate that sales and marketing expenses will increase in 2010 when compared to 2009 due to the

additional headcount and related expenses associated with our 2009 acquisitions

Product Research and Development

Product research and development expense decreased $2.5 million or 19.3% to $10.7 million in 2009 from

$13.2 million in 2008 Salaries and related expenses including travel and entertainment and third-party costs

decreased by $2.0 million as decreases from 2008 restructuring and subsidiary disposal activities were offset by an

increase due to 2009 acquisitions Additionally Canadian related costs decreased $0.5 million due to strengthening

of the average exchange rate for the U.S dollar compared to the Canadian dollar We anticipate that product

research and development expenses will increase in 2010 when compared to 2009 due to the additional headcount

associated with our 2009 acquisitions

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense decreased $7.5 million or 36.4 to $13.0 million in 2009 from $20.5

million in 2008 Salaries and related expenses including travel and entertainment decreased by $1.1 million as

decreases from 2008 restructuring and subsidiary disposal activities were offset by an increase due to 2009

acquisitions In addition legal costs decreased in 2009 by $4.4 million 2008 included $3.0 million charge related

to the settlement of class action lawsuit accounting and other professional fees decreased by $1.5 million and

share-based compensation expense decreased in 2009 by $0.4 million We anticipate that the quarterly general and

administrative expenses will increase in 2010 when compared to 2009 due to the additional headcount associated

with our 2009 acquisitions

Acquisition-Related Expenses

Acquisition-related expenses are costs incurred to effect business combinations including banking legal

accounting valuation and other professional or consulting fees In 2009 we incurred $1.2 million of such expenses

related to our acquisitions

Trade name Impairment Restructuring and Other Expenses

In 2009 we recorded $1.6 million in trade name impairment restructuring and other expenses including

$1.7 million in restructuring expenses related to the initiative announced in July 2009 and $0.3 million due to the

abandonment of portion of facility leased by Merge CAD These charges were offset by $0.4 million reduction

in expense related to updated estimates of obligations due under prior restructuring activities and other facilities

previously abandoned In 2008 we recorded $11.8 million in trade name impairment restructuring and other

expenses including $8.7 million in restructuring charges related to the initiatives announced in February 2008 and

June 2008 $1.1 million trade name impairment charge associated with renaming our Cedara Software business

unit and $1.7 million charge associated with the disposal of our French subsidiary We also recorded $0.4

million charge in 2008 related to change in estimate associated with subleasing facility

Depreciation Amortization and Impairment

Depreciation amortization and impairment expense decreased $0.7 million or 21.6 to $2.8 million in

2009 from $3.5 million in 2008 as result of $0.5 million impairment of fixed assets held for sale in 2008 and

$0.6 million decrease in depreciation due to assets being disposed of or becoming fully depreciated These

decreases are offset by an increase of $0.6 million of depreciation and amortization resulting from fixed assets and

intangible assets acquired in our 2009 acquisitions

Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net increased by approximately $6.8 million to $8.8 million of net expense in

2009 from $2.0 million of net expense in 2008 The net expense
in 2009 is due to $2.7 million of interest expense

and amortization of issuance costs and note discount associated with the $15.0 million Note $3.3 million loss on

early extinguishment of the Note including prepayment penalty of $2.7 million and write-off of $0.4 million of

remaining debt issuance costs and note discount and realized loss of $3.6 million related to the sale of our

investment in Eklin These expenses were offset by $0.5 million gain on the sale of certain patents that were no

longer necessary to support our business and $0.3 million in foreign currency exchange gains The net other

expense in 2008 is primarily attributable to $1.8 million of interest expense
and amortization of issuance costs and

note discount associated with the note payable issued pursuant to the Merrick financing transaction and $1.4
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million impairment charge related to our investment in Eklin offset by $0.8 million in foreign exchange gains and

$0.3 million of interest income

Income Tax Benefit

We recorded an income tax benefit resulting in an effective tax rate of 90.0% in 2009 compared to an

effective rate of 0.3% in 2008 Our effective tax rates in 2009 and 2008 differ significantly from statutory rates

primarily due to recording valuation allowance for deferred tax assets that are not more-likely-than-not to be

realized primarily in the U.S utilizing deferred tax assets that are filly reserved with valuation allowance

primarily in Canada and the expected recovery of previously paid alternative minimum taxes due to change in U.S

tax law in 2009 Our expected effective income tax rate is volatile and may move up or down with changes in

among other items operating income and the results of changes in tax law and regulations of the U.S and the

foreign jurisdictions in which we operate

Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2007

The following table sets forth selected summarized consolidated financial data for the periods indicated as

well as comparative data showing increases and decreases between the periods All amounts except percentages

are in thousands

Years Ended Decener31 Change

2008 2007

Net nd
Software and other 27561 48.6% 29590 49.7% 2029 -6.9%

Serviccsandrrnintenanec 29174 51.4% 29982 50.3% 808 -2.7%

Total net sal 56735 100.0% 59572 100.0% 2837 -4.8%

Cost of sales

Softwareandother 5121 18.6% 6722 22.7% 1601 -23.8%

Sercesandtmintenanec 11672 40I/o 14089 47.0% 2417 -17.2%

Amortizalionandimpairment 3279 NM 8537 NM 5258 NM
Total ccet of sales 20072 35.4% 29348 49.3% 9276 -31.6%

Gross nurgin

Software and other 19161 69.5% 14331 48.4% 4830 33.7%

Sercesandimintenanec 17502 60.0% 15893 53.0% 1609 10.1%

Total
gross nBrgin 36663 64.6% 30224 50.7% 6439 21.3%

Operating expenses

Salesandimrketing 9313 16.4% 18565 31.2% 9252 -49.8%

Product rraearch and development 13240 23.3% 21065 35.4% 7825 -37.1%

General and administrative 20461 36.1% 29492 49.5% 9031 -30.6%

Goodill and trale name impairment

rtructuring and other expens 11816 20.8% 124131 NM 112315 NM

Depreciation anDrtization and impairment 3530 6.2% 8209 13.8% 4679 -57.0%

Total operatingcostsandexpens 58360 102.9% 201462 NM 143102 NM

Operating loss 21697 -38.2% 171238 NM 149541 NM

Other income expense net 2046 -3.6% 570 1.0% 1476 258.9%

Lossbeforeincometaxes 23743 -41.8% 171808 NM 148065 NM

Income tax expense benefit 60 -0.1% 240 -0.4% 180 -75.0%

Netkres 23683 -41.7% 171568 NM 147885 NM

Percentages are of total net sales except for cost of sales and gross margin which arc basol upon related net sales

NM denotes percentage is not menningful

Grass nairgin for software and other sales includos amortization and inipainnent orpense
recorded in cost of sales
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Net Sales

Net sales by segment are as follows in thousands

Years Ended December 31 Change

2008 2007

Indirect

Software and oth 16772 29.6% 15117 25.4% 1655 10.9%

Servicesandimintenance 11738 20.7% 10407 17.4% 1331 12.8%

Total net sales 28510 50.3% 25524 42.8% 2986 11.7%

Direct

Software and oth 10789 19.0% 14473 24.3% 3684 -25.5%

Services and nuintenance 17436 30.7% 19575 32.9% 2139 -10.9%

Total net sales 28225 49.7% 34048 57.2% 5823 -17.1%

Total net sales 56735 59572 2837

Software and Other Sales Net software and other sales for 2008 were $27.6 million decrease of

approximately $2.0 million or 6.9% from $29.6 million in 2007 Direct software and other sales decreased $3.7

million primarily as result of the delay of certain product deliverables during the first two quarters of 2008 This

decrease was offset by $1.7 million increase in Indirect sales primarily due to recognition of software revenue

upon delivery of or relief from delivery of certain contract elements associated with contracts signed in 2007 or

earlier

Service and Maintenance Sales Net service and maintenance sales in 2008 were $29.2 million decrease

of $0.8 million or 2.7% from $30.0 million in 2007 Direct service and maintenance sales decreased $2.1 million

in 2008 as result of decrease in services to install software products as well as decrease in renewals of

maintenance contracts of certain customers primarily due to customer concerns with our financial viability Indirect

service and maintenance sales increased $1.3 million as result of an increase in customer contracts involving

custom engineering services in 2008

Gross Margin

Gross Margin Software and Other Sales Gross margin on software and other sales was $19.1 million in

2008 an increase of approximately $4.8 million or 33.7% from $14.3 million in 2007 Gross margin as

percentage of software and other sales increased to 69.5% in 2008 from 48.4% in 2007 The increase in gross

margin as percentage of sales is primarily due to the mix in sales from our business units and decrease in

amortization expense
in 2008 Indirect sales which typically consist of software only contracts at higher margins

were 60.9% of software and other sales in 2008 compared to 51.1% in 2007 The decrease in amortization is

primarily due to the fact that amortization in 2007 included impairment of certain of our purchased and capitalized

software projects of $4.7 million due to significant risk of technological obsolescence associated with certain

projects the majority of which were still in development at the time of impairment compared to $0.4 million

impairment on purchased software in 2008 There was also decrease in recurring amortization associated with

gross purchased and capitalized software costs in 2008 as result of the 2007 impairment charges

Gross Margin Services and Maintenance Sales Gross margin on services and maintenance sales was

$17.5 million in 2008 an increase of $1.6 million or 10.1% from $15.9 million in 2007 Gross margin as

percentage of services and maintenance sales increased to 60.0% in 2008 from 53.0% in 2007 due to the decrease in

salaries and other related expenses including travel and entertainment as result of our restructuring activities

during February and June of 2008

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expense decreased $9.3 million or 49.8% to $9.3 million in 2008 from $18.6 million

in 2007 As result of ongoing cost reductions previously discussed including the restructuring initiatives

announced in 2008 salaries and consultant fees commissions and other related expenses including travel and

entertainment decreased by $6.4 million and share-based compensation expense decreased by $0.7 million In

addition we incurred $0.8 million less in direct marketing costs as result of cash saving efforts Also $1.2 million
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of the decrease was due to reduction in sales and marketing expenses at our French subsidiary which we disposed

of in April 2008

Product Research and Development

Product research and development expense decreased $7.8 million or 37.1% to $13.2 million in 2008 from

$21.0 million in 2007 primarily due to $7.3 million reduction in salaries consultant fees and related expenses

including travel and entertainment and decrease in share-based compensation expense of $0.7 million as result

of our restructuring initiatives in 2008 In addition $0.6 million of the decrease was due to reduction in product

research and development expenses of our French subsidiary which we disposed of in April 2008 Offsetting this

decrease was the fact that we did not capitalize any software development costs which reduce costs in the applicable

period in 2008 compared to $0.8 million of capitalized costs in 2007

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense decreased $9.0 million or 30.6% to $20.5 million in 2008 from $29.5

million in 2007 primarily due to $4.7 million reduction in our salaries and related expenses including travel and

entertainment and share-based compensation expense decrease of $1.1 million as result of our restructuring

initiatives in 2008 Also legal accounting and other professional fees including the settlement cost of the class

action lawsuit and reimbursement of certain fees from our directors and officers liability insurance carrier decreased

$2.5 million in 2008 due to decline in activities and costs associated with the settlement of the class action lawsuit

and prior restatement of financial statements Additionally general and administrative expenses decreased by $0.4

million in 2008 due to decrease in costs incurred by our French subsidiary which we disposed of in April 2008

and $0.3 million due to decrease in costs associated with our Indian subsidiaries which we disposed of or shut

down in the third quarter of 2008

Goodwill and Trade Name Impairment Restructuring and Other Expenses

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements we recorded $8.8 million of restructuring

charges in 2008 related to the initiatives announced in February 2008 and June 2008 In addition as discussed in

Note to the consolidated financial statements we recorded $1.1 million trade name impairment charge associated

with renaming our Merge OEM business unit We also incurred $1.7 million charge associated with the disposal

of our French subsidiary in 2008 as discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements In addition we

recorded $0.4 million charge in 2008 related to change in estimate associated with subleasing facility In 2007

we recorded goodwill impairment charge of $122.4 million and trade name impairment charge of $0.8 million

Depreciation Amortization and Impairment

Depreciation amortization and impairment expense decreased $4.7 million or 57.0% to $3.5 million in

2008 from $8.2 million in 2007 Decreased depreciation amortization and impairment expenses were primarily

attributable to $4.3 million impairment of customer relationships in 2007 as well as decrease in continuing

amortization in 2008 as result of the 2007 impairment charge

Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net was $2.0 million of expense in 2008 compared to $0.6 million of expense
in

2007 In 2008 we incurred $1.8 million of interest expense and amortization of issuance costs and note discount

applicable to the $15.0 million note payable issued on June 2008 as discussed in Note to the consolidated

financial statements and $1.4 million of impairment charges on our equity investments offset by $0.3 million in

interest income and $0.9 million in foreign exchange gains In 2007 we incurred $1.2 million of impairment

charges on our equity investments and $0.5 million in foreign exchange losses offset by $1.2 million in interest

income The decrease in interest income in 2008 compared to 2007 is attributable to decrease in the average

balance of our cash and cash equivalents in 2008 compared to 2007 as well as decrease in the yield on cash and

cash equivalents The foreign exchange gain in 2008 was primarily due to the strengthening of the U.S dollar

compared to the Canadian dollar in the fourth quarter of 2008

Income Tax Benefit

The net income tax benefit of 0.3% recorded in 2008 is primarily due to changes in deferred taxes

resulting from the impairment of indefinite lived trade names offset by income and capital gains taxes payable in

India which we were not able to offset with either U.S or Canadian losses Our effective tax rate for the period

differed significantly from the statutory rate primarily due to valuation allowance for deferred tax assets which we
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have concluded are not more-likely-than-not to be realized Our effective tax rate of l% in 2007 differed

significantly from the statutory rate primarily due to the impairment of nondeductible goodwill and valuation

allowance for deferred tax assets that are not more-likely-than-not to be realized

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash and cash equivalents were $19.6 million at December 31 2009 an increase of $1.8 million or

9.9% from our balance of $17.8 million at December 31 2008 In addition working capital was $18.2 million at

December 31 2009 an increase of $9.9 million from working capital of $8.3 million at December 31 2008

In November 2009 we received cash proceeds of $25.2 million net of transaction costs and agency fees

upon closing of registered direct offering in which we sold 9.1 million shares of our Common Stock Of the funds

received $18.1 million was used to repay the note payable to Merrick including prepayment penalty of $2.7

million and accrued interest of $0.4 million Merrick and its affiliates owned approximately 7.4% of our Common

Stock as of December 31 2009

In 2009 we sold for cash proceeds of $0.5 million certain patents that had been identified as no longer

necessary to support the business

On July 20 2009 we completed the acquisition of etrials Total consideration for the transaction was

approximately $25.1 million of which approximately $9.1 million was cash

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement with AMICAS we will acquire all of the outstanding shares of

common stock of AMICAS for consideration per share of $6.05 in cash without interest or approximately $248

million We plan to finance the acquisition with either the sale of high yield notes or bridge financing In

addition we anticipate total costs of the acquisition and related debt and preferred stock issued to be incurred by

both parties including break-up fee owed to former potential acquirer of AMICAS will approximate $32

million

Operating Cash Flows

Cash used in operating activities was $1.0 million in 2009 compared to $13.6 million in 2008 Our

negative operating cash flow in 2009 was primarily due to the impact of non-cash charges of $13.3 million being

more than offset by $1.8 million increase in accounts receivable $4.0 million decrease in accounts payable

$7.8 million decrease in deferred revenue and $0.8 million decrease in accrued wages

Termination benefits and contract exit costs paid in 2009 associated with our restructuring initiatives

totaled $1.9 million As of December 31 2009 we had $0.9 million remaining payments associated with

restructuring activities

Investing Cash Flows

Cash used in investing activities was $2.8 million in 2009 which was due to cash consideration for

acquisitions net of cash acquired of $2.8 million and purchases of capital equipment of $1.1 million offset by

decrease in restricted cash of $0.2 million and proceeds of $0.9 million received from the sale of our equity

investment in Eklin

Financing Cash Flows

Cash provided by financing activities was $5.6 million in 2009 and was primarily due to proceeds net of

transaction costs and agency fees of $25.2 million received from our registered direct offering offset by the

repayments of $19.6 million in debt including the Note of $15.0 million and $4.6 million of other debt that we paid

subsequent to completion of our acquisitions
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Contractual Obligations

Total outstanding commitments as of December 31 2009 in thousands were as follows

Payment due by period

Less than More than

Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years

Operating leases 11112 2228 3219 1992 3673

Capital leases including interest 227 173 54

Total 11339 2401 3273 1992 3673

The above obligations include operating lease payments net of sub-lease income of $0.2 million $0.4

million $0.1 million and zero in the respective periods indicated above related to facilities that we have either

ceased to use or abandoned as of December 31 2009 Unrecognized tax benefits totaling $6.5 million as of

December 31 2009 are not included in the table because the timing of their resolution cannot be estimated

Except for $0.6 million of restricted cash primarily letters-of-credit related to three of our leased facilities

at December 31 2009 we do not have any other significant long-term obligations contractual obligations lines of

credit standby letters of credit guarantees or standby repurchase obligations

General

We believe our current cash and cash equivalent balances will be sufficient to meet our operating financing

and capital requirements through at least the next 12 months except that we will need to issue at least $240 million

of debt and equity in order to finance our acquisition of AMICAS Any projections of future cash inflows and

outflows are subject to uncertainty In the event that it is necessary to raise additional capital to meet our short term

or long term liquidity needs such capital may be raised through additional debt equity offerings or sale of certain

assets If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity equity-related or debt securities such securities

may have rights preferences or privileges senior to those of our Common Stock Furthermore because of the low

trading price of our Common Stock the number of shares of any new equity or equity-related securities that may be

issued may result in significant dilution to existing shareholders In addition the issuance of debt securities could

increase the liquidity risk or perceived liquidity risk that we face We cannot however be certain that additional

financing or funds from asset sales will be available on acceptable terms If adequate funds are not available or are

not available on acceptable terms we will likely not be able to take advantage of opportunities develop or enhance

services or products or respond to competitive pressures Any projections of future cash inflows and outflows are

subject to uncertainty In particular our uses of cash in 2010 and beyond will depend on variety of factors such as

the costs to implement our business strategy the amount of cash that we are required to devote to defend and

address any regulatory proceedings and potential merger and acquisition activities For more detailed description

of risks and uncertainties that may affect our liquidity see Item lA Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form

10-K

Material Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no material off balance sheet arrangements

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are impacted by the accounting policies used and the estimates

judgments and assumptions made by management during their preparation We base our estimates and judgments

on our experience our current knowledge including terms of existing contracts our beliefs of what could occur in

the future our observation of trends in the industry information provided by our customers and information

available from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or

conditions

We have identified the following accounting policies and estimates as those that we believe are most

critical to our financial condition and results of operations and that require managements most subjective and

complex judgments in estimating the effect of inherent uncertainties revenue recognition allowance for sales

returns and doubtful accounts other long-lived assets goodwill and other intangible asset valuation investments

share-based compensation expense income taxes guarantees and loss contingencies

35



Revenue Recognition

Revenues are derived primarily from the licensing of software sales of hardware and related ancillary

products SaaS offerings installation and engineering services training consulting and software maintenance and

support Inherent to software revenue recognition are significant management estimates and judgments in the

interpretation and practical application of the complex rules to individual contracts These interpretations generally

would not influence the amount of revenue recognized but could influence the timing of such revenues In addition

revenue results are difficult to predict and any
shortfall in revenue or delay in recognizing revenue could cause our

operating results to vary significantly from period to period Significant areas ofjudgment include

The determination of deliverables specified in multiple-element arrangement and treatment as separate

units of accounting

Whether separate arrangements with the same customer executed within short time frame of each other

are single arrangement

The assessment of the probability of collection and the current credit worthiness of each customer since we

generally do not request collateral from customers

The determination of whether the fees are fixed and determinable

Whether or not installation engineering or consulting services are significant to the software licensed and

The amount of total estimated labor hours based on managements best estimate to complete project we

account for under the input method of percentage of completion accounting We review our contract

estimates periodically to assess revisions in contract values and estimated labor hours and reflect changes

in estimates in the period that such estimates are revised under the cumulative catch-up method

Typically our contracts contain multiple elements and while the majority of our contracts contain standard

terms and conditions there are instances where our contracts contain non-standard terms and conditions As

result contract interpretation is sometimes required to determine the appropriate accounting We analyze our

multiple element arrangements to determine the vendor-specific objective evidence VSOE of fair value of each

element the amount of revenue to be recognized upon shipment if any and the period and conditions under which

deferred revenue should be recognized As result if facts and circumstances change that affect our current

judgments our revenue could be materially different in the future

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Sales Returns

Based upon past experience and judgment we establish allowances for doubtful accounts related to our

accounts receivable and customer credits with respect to our sales returns We determine collection risk and record

allowances for bad debts based on the aging of accounts and past transaction history with customers In addition

our policy is to allow sales returns when we have preauthorized the return We have determined an allowance for

estimated returns and credits based on our historical experience of returns and customer credits We monitor our

collections write-offs returns and credit experience to assess whether adjustments to our allowance estimates are

necessary Changes in trends in any of the factors that we believe impact the realizability of our receivables or

modifications to our credit standards collection return and credit authorization practices or other related policies

may impact our estimates

Other Long-Lived Assets

Other long-lived assets including property and equipment and customer intangibles are amortized over

their expected lives which are estimated by us For our customer intangibles the method of amortization we use

reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up If that

pattern cannot be reliably determined straight-line amortization method is used We also make estimates of the

impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of

an asset may not be recoverable based primarily upon whether expected future undiscounted cash flows are

sufficient to support the assets recovery If the actual useful life of long-lived asset is shorter than the useful life

estimated by us the asset may be deemed to be impaired and accordingly write-down of the value of the asset

determined by discounted cash flow analysis or shorter amortization period may be required
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We review goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment annually or more frequently if

impairment indicators arise Our policy provides that goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets will be

reviewed for impairment as of October or December 31
St

of each year depending on the reporting unit in which

the assets reside In calculating potential impairment losses we evaluate the fair value of goodwill and intangible

assets using either quoted market prices or if not available by estimating the expected present value of their future

cash flows Identification of and assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting unit require our judgment and

estimates In addition future cash flows are based upon our assumptions about future sales activity and market

acceptance of our products If these assumptions change we may be required to write down the gross value of our

remaining indefinite lived intangible assets to revised amount

Investments

We hold certain securities in publicly traded entity and private companies which are classified as non

current assets In determining fair value for these investments we utilize valuation techniques that maximize the use

of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible The investment in the

publicly traded equity security over which we do not exert significant influence is classified as available-for-sale

and reported at fair value Unrealized gains and losses are based on changes in quoted market prices and reported

within the accumulated other comprehensive income component of shareholders equity

The investments in equity securities of private companies over which we do not exert significant influence

are reported at cost or fair value if an other-than-temporary loss has been determined In calculating the potential

impairment losses we evaluate the fair value of investments by comparing them to certain public company metrics

such as revenue multiples information obtained from independent valuations and inquires and estimates made by

us If assumptions or estimates used by us change we may be required to write down the carrying value of the asset

to revised amount Any loss due to impairment in value is recorded when such loss occurs

Share-based Compensation Expense

We calculate share-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant-date fair value using the

Black-Scholes option pricing model and recognize the expense on straight-line basis over the vesting period net

of estimated forfeitures The fair value of stock-based awards is based on certain assumptions including

Expected volatility which we base on the historical volatility of our stock and other factors and

Estimated option life which represents the period of time the options granted are expected to be

outstanding and is based in part on historical data

We also estimate employee terminations option forfeiture rate which is based in part on historical data

employee class and the type of award We evaluate the assumptions used to value stock options and restricted stock

awards on quarterly basis The estimation of share-based awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment and

to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates such amounts will be recorded as

cumulative adjustment in the period estimates are revised Although we believe our assumptions used to calculate

share-based compensation expense are reasonable these assumptions can involve complex judgments about future

events which are open to interpretation and inherent uncertainty In addition significant changes to our

assumptions could significantly impact the amount of expense recorded in given period

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate

income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate Our provision for income taxes is determined using

the asset and liability approach for accounting for income taxes current liability is recognized for the estimated

taxes payable for the current year Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax

consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and

liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates

in effect for the year in which the timing differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred

tax assets and liabilities of changes in tax rates or tax laws are recognized in the provision for income taxes in the

period that includes the enactment date
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Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount more-

likely-than-not to be realized Changes in valuation allowances will flow through the statement of operations unless

related to deferred tax assets that expire unutilized or are modified through translation in which case both the

deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance are similarly adjusted Where valuation allowance was

established through purchase accounting for acquired deferred tax assets any future change outside the

measurement period will be credited or charged to income tax expense

The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment the use of estimates

and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws We are subject to income taxes in the U.S and

numerous foreign jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision for income

taxes and recording the related tax assets and liabilities In the ordinary course of our business there are

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain In spite of our belief that we

have appropriate support for all the positions taken on our tax returns we acknowledge that certain positions may be

successfully challenged by the taxing authorities We determine the appropriate amount of tax benefits to be

recognized with respect to uncertain tax positions Unrecognized tax benefits are evaluated quarterly and adjusted

based upon new information resolution with taxing authorities and expiration of the statute of limitations The

provision for income taxes includes the impact of changes in the liability for our uncertain tax positions Although

we believe our recorded tax assets and liabilities are reasonable tax laws and regulations are subject to interpretation

and inherent uncertainty therefore our assessments can involve both series of complex judgments about future

events and rely on estimates and assumptions Although we believe these estimates and assumptions are reasonable

the final determination could be materially different than that which is reflected in our provision for income taxes

and recorded tax assets and liabilities

Guarantees

We recognize the fair value of guarantee and indemnification arrangements issued or modified by us as

applicable In addition we must continue to monitor the conditions that are subject to the guarantees and

indemnifications in order to identify if loss has occurred If we determine it is probable that loss has occurred

then any such estimable loss would be recognized under those guarantees and indemnifications

Under our standard software license agreements we agree to indemnify defend and hold harmless our

licensees from and against certain losses damages and costs arising from claims alleging the licensees use of our

software infringes the intellectual property rights of third party Historically we have not been required to pay

material amounts in connection with claims asserted under these provisions and accordingly we have not recorded

liability relating to such provisions We also represent and warrant to licensees that our software products will

operate substantially in accordance with published specifications and that the services we perform will be

undertaken by qualified personnel in professional manner conforming to generally accepted industry standards and

practices Historically only minimal costs have been incurred relating to the satisfaction of product warranty

claims

Other guarantees include promises to indemnify defend and hold harmless each of our executive officers

non-employee directors and certain key employees from and against losses damages and costs incurred by each

such individual in administrative legal or investigative proceedings arising from alleged wrongdoing by the

individual while acting in good faith within the scope of his or her job duties on our behalf

Loss Contingencies

We have accrued for costs as of December 31 2009 and may in the future accrue for costs associated with

certain contingencies when such costs are probable and reasonably estimable Liabilities established to provide for

contingencies are adjusted as further information develops circumstances change or contingencies are resolved

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We describe below recent pronouncements that have had or may have significant effect on our financial

statements We do not discuss recent pronouncements that are not anticipated to have an impact on or are unrelated

to our financial condition results of operations or related disclosures

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued new guidance requiring an

acquirer in business combination to recognize the assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling

interest in the acquiree at their fair values at the acquisition date with limited exceptions This guidance is set forth

in ASC Topic No 805 Business Combinations All business combinations will be accounted for prospectively by
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applying the acquisition method including combinations among mutual entities and combinations by contract alone

In April 2009 the FASB amended and clarified the initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement

and accounting and related disclosures arising from contingencies in business combination Assets and liabilities

arising from contingencies in business combination are to be recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date

if fair value can be determined during the measurement period If fair value cannot be determined the existing

guidance for contingencies and other authoritative literature should be followed This new guidance is effective for

periods beginning on or after December 15 2008 and applies to business combinations occurring after the effective

date We adopted this ASC effective January 2009 We have applied the provisions to all of our business

combinations in 2009 and will apply the provisions prospectively for any future business combinations

In May 2009 the FASB issued guidance regarding general standards of accounting for and disclosure of an

event that occurs after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued

This guidance is set forth in ASC Topic No 855 Subsequent Events ASC No 855 ASC No 855 sets forth the

period after the balance sheet date during which management of reporting entity should evaluate events or

transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements the circumstances

under which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial

statements and the disclosures that an entity should make about events or transactions that occurred after the

balance sheet date We adopted this standard effective June 15 2009 and have evaluated any subsequent events

through the date of this filing We do not believe there are any material subsequent events other than those

addressed in these Notes which would require further disclosure

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Update No 2009-01 which

establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC as the source of authoritative accounting

principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP The ASC is effective for interim

and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 We adopted the ASC when referring to GAAP as of

September 30 2009 The adoption did not have an impact on our consolidated results

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASC Update No 2009-13 Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

Update No 2009-13 ASU No 2009-13 amends existing revenue recognition accounting pronouncements that are

currently within the scope of FASB ASC Subtopic No 605-25 Multiple Element Arrangements This Update

provides accounting principles and application guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist how the

arrangement should be separated and the consideration allocated This new approach is effective for fiscal years

beginning after June 15 2010 and may be applied retrospectively or prospectively for new or materially modified

arrangements In addition early adoption is permitted We are currently evaluating the potential impact of Update

No 2009-13 on our consolidated financial statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASC Update No 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Contain Software

Elements Update No 2009-14 Update No 2009-14 amends the scope of ASC Subtopic No 985-605 Revenue

Recognition to exclude tangible products that include software and non-software components that function together

to deliver the products essential functionality This Update shall be applied on prospective basis for revenue

arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Earlier

application is permitted as of the beginning of companys fiscal year provided the company has not previously

issued financial statements for any period within that year An entity shall not elect early application of Update No
2009-14 unless it also elects early application of Update No 2009-13 We are currently evaluating the potential

impact of Update No 2009-14 on our consolidated financial statements

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

Our cash and cash equivalents are exposed to financial market risk due to fluctuations in interest rates

which may affect our interest income As of December 31 2009 our cash and cash equivalents included money

market funds and short-term deposits including certain cash that is restricted totaling approximately $19.6 million

and earned interest at weighted average rate of 0.3% in 2009 The value of the principal amounts is equal to the

fair value for these instruments Due to the short-term nature of our investment portfolio our interest income is

subject to changes in short-term interest rates At current investment levels our pre-tax results of operations would

vary by approximately $0.2 million for every 100 basis point change in our weighted average short-term interest

rate We do not use our portfolio for trading or other speculative purposes
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We have sales and expenses in Canada China and Europe that are denominated in currencies other than the

U.S Dollar and as result have exposure to foreign currency exchange risk We do not enter into derivative

financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes In the event our exposure to foreign currency risk

increases to levels that we do not deem acceptable we may choose to hedge those exposures
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Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Milwaukee Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Merge Healthcare Incorporated and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of

operations shareholders equity cash flows and comprehensive income loss for each of the two years in the

period ended December 31 2009 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of Merge Healthcare Incorporated at December 31 2009 and 2008 and the results of

its operations cash flows and comprehensive income loss for each of the two years in the period ended December

31 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of

accounting for business combinations with the adoption of the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification Topic

805 Business Combinations effective January 2009

We have also audited the presentation of net sales in the direct and indirect segments for the year ended

December 31 2007 as disclosed in Note 16 In our opinion such disclosures are appropriate and Accounting

Standards Codification Topic 280 on segment disclosures has been properly applied We were not engaged to audit

review or apply any procedures to the 2007 financial statements other than with respect to the presentation of net

sales in the direct and indirect segments and accordingly we do not express an opinion or any other form of

assurance on the 2007 financial statements taken as whole

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Merge Healthcare Incorporateds internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated March 12 2010 expressed an

unqualified opinion thereon

Is BDO Seidman LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 12 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Merge Healthcare Incorporated and

subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of

operations shareholders equity comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period

ended December 31 2007 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the financial position of the Company as of December 31 2007 and 2006 and the results of its operations

and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2007 in conformity with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements effective January 2007 the Company

adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainly

in Income Taxes Also as discussed in Notes and to the consolidated financial statements effective January

2006 the Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 123 revised 2004
Share-Based Payment

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will

continue as going concern As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company has

suffered recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows that raise substantial doubt about its ability to

continue as going concern Managements plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note The

consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this

uncertainty

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2007 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated March 31 2008 expressed an adverse

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 31 2008

This
report

is copy of the previously issued report
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MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands except for share data

Deceither 31 December 31

2009 2008

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents including restricted cash of S559 and S62 at Deceithcr 31 2009

and2008respeetively
19621 17848

Accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtfirl accounts and sales returns ofSl287

and SI 378 at December 312009 and 2008 respectively 17219 12779

Inventory
280 550

Prepaidexpenses
1.896 1509

Deferred income taxes
142 217

Other current assets
3.590 721

Total current assets
42748 33624

Pioperty and equipment

Coiaputer equipment
8542 6.317

Office equipment
2347 1989

Leasehold improvements
1715 1272

12604 9578

Less accumulated depreciation
8727 7604

Net property and equipment
3877 1974

Purchased and developed software net of accumulated amortization of S15488 and

Sl2584 at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
12621 5.653

Customer relationships and trade names net of accunirlated amortizatton of 82411 and $1259 at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
6715 2291

Goodwill
28749

Deferred income taxes
4689 4585

Investments
523 5690

Other assets
327 920

Total assets
100249 54737

UABIUTIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
4.444 4036

Accnredwages 1950 1590

Restructuringacerual
879 1173

Current portion ofeapital
lease obligations

130

Other accrued liabilities 1535 2421

Deferredrevenue
15579 16150

Total current liabilities 24517 25370

Obligations under capital leases excluding current portion
75

Note payable
14230

Deferred income taxes
68 39

Deferred revenue
1193 644

Income taxes payable
5461 5418

Other
798 195

Total liabilities
32112 45896

Shareholders equity

Series Ptethrred Stock S0.0l par
value 1000000 shares authonzed zero shares

issued and outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008

Series Special Voting Preferred Stock no par value one share authorized zem shares

and one share issued and outstanding at December31 2009 and 2008

Coirmon stock $0.01 par
value 100000000 shares authorized 74791753 shares and 55506702

shares issued and outstanding at December 312009 and 2008 respectively
748 555

Conmon stock subscribed 9978 shares and 30271 shares at December 31 2009

and 2008 respectively
32 37

Additional paid-in capital
524114 465083

Accumulated deficit 458356 458641

Accumulated other comprehensive income 1599 1807

Total shareholders equity
68137 8841

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
100249 54737

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

in thousands except for share and per share data

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net sales

Software and other 33037 27561 29590

Services and maintenance 33804 29174 29982

Total net sales
66841 56735 59572

Cost of sales

Software and other 3730 5121 6722

Services and maintenance 12324 11672 14089

Depreciation amortization and impairment 3323 3279 8537

Total cost of sales 19377 20072 29348

Gross margin 47464 36663 30224

Operating costs and expenses

Sales and marketing 9203 9313 18565

Product reseaith and development 10689 13240 21065

General and administrative 13005 20461 29492

Acquisition-related expenses
1225

Goothnll andtmde nsn impairment restructuring and other expenses 1613 11816 124131

Depreciation amortization and impairment 2766 3530 8209

Total operatingcostsandexpens
38501 58360 201462

Operating income los 8963 21697 171238

Other income expense

Interest expense
2716 1750 89

Interest income
50 268 1233

Other net 6147 564 1714

Total other income expense 8813 2046 570

Income loss before income taxes 150 23743 171808

Income tax expense benefit 135 60 240

Net income loss
285 23683 171568

Net income loss per share basic 0.00 0.51 5.06

Weighted average nunber of common shares outstanding basic 60910268 46717546 33913379

Net income loss per share diluted 0.00 0.51 5.06

Weighted average nunber of common shares outstanding diluted 62737821 46717546 33913379

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation
amortization and impairment

Share-based compensation

Loss on disposal
of subsidiaries

Amortization of note payable issuance costs discount

Goodwill and trade name impairment

Other-than-temporary impairment on equity investments

Realized loss on investment

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable and sales returns net of recoveries

Deferred income taxes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued wages

Restructuring
accrual

Other accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Other

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for acquisitions net of cash acquired

Purchases of property equipment and leasehold improvements

Cash received on sale of subsidiary

Change in restricted cash

Proceeds from sale of equity
investment

Capitalized software development

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of note net of non-cash discount of $510

Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock

Note and stock issuance costs paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock
options

and employee stock purchase plan

Principal payments on notes

Principal payments in
capital

leases

Repurchase of Common Stock

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents net of restricted cash beginning of period

Cash and cash
equivalents net of restricted cash end of period

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes net of refunds

Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities

Value of Common Stock issued for acquisitions

Net of restricted cash of S62 S363 and $163 at December31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

Net of restricted cash of S559 S62 and S363 at December 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

285 23683 171568

2752

1121

188

886

6809

4161

1470

604

1060

1435

316

175

2799 298

14490

5479

2386

100

47
57

5604 17579 214

115 86

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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1768
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3986
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294
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7830

234

970

1472

1204

54
3464

1032

1042

290

1895

192

13576

539

499

258

16746

5009

123171

1166

1100

202

3517

410

310

1170

1544

1866

750

3087

787

28591

2665

200

817

3682

214

25175

110

19570

Ill

3590

13637

17227

1835

17227

19062

1858

87

32145

45782

13637

975

17 247

32248

46



MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Net income loss 285 23683 171568

Tmnslationadjuslment
221 152

Unrealized gain loss on marketable securitios net of income taxes 208 1084 961

Comprehensive incone loss 77 24546 170759

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Merge Healthcare Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In thousands except for share and per share data

Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Merge Healthcare Incorporated Delaware corporation and its subsidiaries which we sometimes refer to

collectively as Merge we us or our develop solutions that automate healthcare data and diagnostic workflow to

enable better electronic record of the patient experience and to enhance product development for health IT device

and pharmaceutical companies and deliver related services

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of our wholly owned subsidiaries

and include the results of etrials Worldwide Inc etrials since July 20 2009 and the results of Confirma Inc

Confirma since September 2009 All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

We have certain minority equity stakes in various companies accounted for as cost method investments

The operating results of these companies are not included in our results of operations

Reclassijications

Where appropriate certain reclassifications have been made to the prior periods financial statements to

conform to the current year presentation Specifically we have reclassified $649 of certain accrued expenses
from

other current liabilities to accounts payable in the balance sheet as of December 31 2008 in order to conform to

current year presentation

Use of Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with United States of America U.S
generally accepted accounting principles GAAP These accounting principles require us to make certain estimates

judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reporting period Estimates are used when accounting for items and matters such as revenue recognition

and allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable and sales returns inventory obsolescence depreciation and

amortization long-lived and intangible asset valuations impairment assessments restructuring reserves taxes and

related valuation allowance income tax provisions stock-based compensation and contingencies We believe that

the estimates judgments and assumptions are reasonable based on information available at the time they are made

Actual results could differ from those estimates

Segment Reporting

Our Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker and relies on the

information derived from our financial reporting process to assess the performance and allocate resources within

Merge Healthcare On June 30 2009 we completed enhancements to our financial reporting process to allow us to

obtain discrete operating results for our business units This business unit information was used by our Chief

Executive Officer in the third quarter of 2009 to assess performance and allocate resources within Merge As

result effective in the third quarter of 2009 we have reportable segments which we have designated as Direct and

Indirect These reportable segments are based on business unit operations that have similar economic

characteristics

The Direct segment primarily sells directly to the end-users located primarily in the U.S and Canada and

also distributes certain products through the Internet via our website This segment consists of the Merge Fusion

U.S and Merge eClinical business units The Indirect segment primarily sells software products and related services

to Original Equipment Manufacturers Value Added Resellers VARs and distributors world-wide This segment

consists of the Merge OEM and Merge CAD business units in addition to the Europe Middle East and Africa

operations of the Merge Fusion business unit Merge Fusion EMEA
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Merge Healthcare Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In thousands except for share and per share data

Functional Currency

The functional currency of all our foreign subsidiaries is the United States of America dollar U.S Dollar

Foreign currency denominated revenues and expenses are translated at weighted average exchange rates throughout

the year Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rates prevailing at the

balance sheet dates Translation adjustments arising from the use of differing exchange rates from period to period

are included as component of other comprehensive income loss Foreign exchange gains and losses on

transactions during the year are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as component of other

income expense net

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable marketable and

non-marketable securities accounts payable note payable and certain accrued liabilities The carrying amounts of

these assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments except for the

non-marketable equity securities The estimated fair values of the non-marketable equity securities have been

determined from information obtained from independent valuations and management estimates

We use three-tier value hierarchy to prioritize the inputs used in measuring fair value of our financial

assets and liabilities These tiers include Level defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active

markets Level defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are directly or indirectly

observable and Level defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists therefore requiring

an entity to develop its own assumptions

We also consider additional information in estimating fair value when the volume and level of activity for

the asset or liability have significantly decreased or circumstances indicate transaction is not suitable for fair value

measurement We disclose the required information about fair value of financial instruments in our interim financial

statements as well as in our annual financial statements See Note for further discussion of the fair value of our

financial instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments

As part of the 2008 financing transaction with Merrick RIS LLC Merrick discussed in Note the note

payable to Merrick which was repaid in full in 2009 included change of control and default provisions These

provisions were considered put options which were required to be bifurcated from the debt instrument and

accounted for separately as derivative instruments The fair value of these options is recorded in long-term

liabilities as of December 31 2008 As of December 31 2009 we had no derivative financial instruments

outstanding

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks including restricted cash and liquid short-term

investments with original maturities of ninety days or less and are carried on the balance sheet at cost plus accrued

interest As of December 2009 restricted cash consists primarily of letters-of-credit relating to three of our

leased facilities

Inventory

Inventory consisting principally of raw materials and finished goods primarily purchased third-party

hardware is stated at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the first-in first-out method
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Merge Healthcare Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In thousands except for share and per share data

Other Current Assets

Other current assets consist primarily of revenue recognized that has not yet been billed to customer

taxes receivable and other non-trade receivables all of which are due within the next twelve months The balances

are comprised of the following as of December 31 2009 and 2008

December 31

2009 2008

Unbilled AIR 2054 270

Taxes receivable 331 322

Other non-trade receivables 1205 129

3590 721

As of December 31 2009 the other non-trade receivables balance includes $694 of tenant improvement

allowance provided by the landlord of our Mississauga Ontario location for which we expect to receive payment in

the first quarter of 2010

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation on property and equipment is calculated on the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets Useful lives of our major classes of property and

equipment are two to three years
for computer equipment and five to seven years for office equipment Leasehold

improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the

term of the lease

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets including property and equipment and customer intangibles are amortized over their

expected lives which are estimated by us For our customer intangibles the method of amortization we use reflects

the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed or otherwise used up If that pattern

cannot be reliably determined straight-line amortization method is used We also make estimates of the

impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of

an asset may not be recoverable based primarily upon whether expected future undiscounted cash flows are

sufficient to support the assets recovery If the actual useful life of long-lived asset is shorter than the useful life

estimated by us the asset may be deemed to be impaired and accordingly write-down of the value of the asset

determined by discounted cash flow analysis or shorter amortization period may be required We have

reviewed long-lived assets with estimable useful lives and determined that their carrying values as of December 31

2009 are recoverable in future periods

Purchased and Developed Software

All research and development costs incurred prior to the point at which management believes project has

reached technological feasibility are expensed as incurred Software development costs incurred subsequent to

reaching technological feasibility are capitalized and reported at the lower of unamortized cost or net realizable

value

Amortization of purchased and developed software is provided on product basis over the expected

economic life of the related software generally five years using the straight-line method This method generally

results in greater amortization than the method based on the ratio that current gross revenues for product bear to

the total of current and anticipated future gross revenues for that product We assess the recoverability of purchased

and developed software costs quarterly by determining whether the net book value of such costs can be recovered

through future net operating cash flows based on the sales of the respective products

Investments

At December 31 2009 we held certain securities in publicly traded entity and private companies which

are classified as non-current assets The investment in the publicly traded equity security over which we do not

exert significant influence is classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value Unrealized gains and
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Merge Healthcare Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In thousands except for share and per share data

losses are reported within the accumulated other comprehensive income component of shareholders equity The

investments in equity securities of private companies over which we do not exert significant influence are reported

at cost or fair value if an other-than-temporary loss has been determined Any loss due to impairment in value is

recorded when such loss occurs See Note for further discussion of the fair values of our investments

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We review goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment annually or more frequently if

impairment indicators arise Our policy provides that goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets will be

reviewed for impairment as of October or December 31st of each year depending on the reporting unit in which

the assets reside In calculating potential impairment losses we evaluate the fair value of goodwill and intangible

assets using either quoted market prices or if not available by estimating the expected present value of their future

cash flows Identification of and assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting unit require our judgment and

estimates In addition future cash flows are based upon our assumptions about future sales activity and market

acceptance of our products If these assumptions change we may be required to write down the gross value of our

remaining indefinite lived intangible assets to revised amount See Note for discussion of the impairment of

goodwill trade names and other intangible assets during the years
ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Warranties

We generally provide up to twelve months of warranty on our hardware sales We have provided for

expected hardware warranty costs based on our historical experience Accrued warranty was $5 and $125 at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Guarantees

We recognize the fair value of guarantee and indemnification arrangements issued or modified by us as

applicable In addition we must continue to monitor the conditions that are subject to the guarantees and

indemnifications in order to identify if loss has occurred If we determine it is probable that loss has occurred

then any such estimable loss would be recognized under those guarantees and indemnifications

Under our standard software license agreements we agree to indemnify defend and hold harmless our

licensees from and against certain losses damages and costs arising from claims alleging the licensees use of our

software infringes the intellectual property rights of third party Historically we have not been required to pay

material amounts in connection with claims asserted under these provisions and accordingly we have not recorded

liability relating to such provisions We also represent and warrant to licensees that our software products will

operate substantially in accordance with published specifications and that the services we perform will be

undertaken by qualified personnel in professional manner conforming to generally accepted industry standards and

practices Historically only minimal costs have been incurred relating to the satisfaction of product warranty

claims

Other guarantees include promises to indemnify defend and hold harmless each of our executive officers

non-employee directors and certain key employees from and against losses damages and costs incurred by each

such individual in administrative legal or investigative proceedings arising from alleged wrongdoing by the

individual while acting in good faith within the scope of his or her job duties on our behalf

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate

income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate Our provision for income taxes is determined using

the asset and liability approach for accounting for income taxes current liability is recognized for the estimated

taxes payable for the current year Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax

consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and

liabilities and their respective tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates

in effect for the year in which the timing differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred

tax assets and liabilities of changes in tax rates or tax laws are recognized in the provision for income taxes in the

period that includes the enactment date
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In thousands except for share and per share data

Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount more-

likely-than-not to be realized Changes in valuation allowances will flow through the statement of operations unless

related to deferred tax assets that expire unutilized or are modified through translation in which case both the

deferred tax asset and related valuation allowance are similarly adjusted Where valuation allowance was

established through purchase accounting for acquired deferred tax assets any future change outside the

measurement period will be credited or charged to income tax expense

The determination of our provision for income taxes requires significant judgment the use of estimates

and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws We are subject to income taxes in the U.S and

numerous foreign jurisdictions Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision for income

taxes and recording the related tax assets and liabilities In the ordinary course of our business there are

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain In spite of our belief that we

have appropriate support for all the positions taken on our tax returns we acknowledge that certain positions may be

successfully challenged by the taxing authorities We determine the appropriate amount of tax benefits to be

recognized with respect to uncertain tax positions Unrecognized tax benefits are evaluated quarterly and adjusted

based upon new information resolution with taxing authorities and expiration of the statute of limitations The

provision for income taxes includes the impact of changes in the liability for our uncertain tax positions Although

we believe our recorded tax assets and liabilities are reasonable tax laws and regulations are subject to interpretation

and inherent uncertainty therefore our assessments can involve both series of complex judgments about future

events and rely on estimates and assumptions Although we believe these estimates and assumptions are reasonable

the final determination could be materially different than that which is reflected in our provision for income taxes

and recorded tax assets and liabilities

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains or losses on our available-for-sale securities

net of applicable taxes are included in accumulated other comprehensive income and are further detailed in Note

for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are derived primarily from the licensing of software sales of hardware and related ancillary

products hosted clinical trial software-as-a-service SaaS offerings installation and engineering services training

consulting and software maintenance and support Inherent to software revenue recognition are significant

management estimates and judgments in the interpretation and practical application of the complex rules to

individual contracts These interpretations generally would not influence the amount of revenue recognized but

could influence the timing of such revenues Typically our contracts contain multiple elements and while the

majority of our contracts contain standard terms and conditions there are instances where our contracts contain non

standard terms and conditions As result contract interpretation is sometimes required to determine the

appropriate accounting including whether the deliverables specified in multiple-element arrangement should be

treated as separate units of accounting for revenue recognition purposes and if so the relative fair value that should

be allocated to each of the elements and when to recognize revenue for each element

We recognize revenue on software arrangements involving multiple elements including separate

arrangements with the same customer executed within short time frame of each other based on the vendor-specific

objective evidence VSOE of fair values of those elements For the majority of our business we determine the fair

value of the maintenance and support portion of the arrangement based on the substantive renewal price of the

maintenance offered to customers which generally is stated in the contract The fair value of installation

engineering services training and consulting is based upon the price charged when these services are sold

separately For sales transactions where the software is incidental or the only contract deliverable is engineering or

other services as well as hardware transactions where no software is involved we recognize revenue based on either

VSOE of fair value or other third-party evidence TPE of fair value of those elements

Revenue from multiple-element arrangements is recognized using the residual method Under the residual

method revenue is recognized in multiple element arrangement when fair value exists for all of the undelivered

elements in the arrangement even if fair value does not exist for one or more of the delivered elements in the

arrangement assuming all other conditions for revenue recognition have been satisfied If evidence of fair value
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued
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cannot be established for the maintenance and support element of sale and it represents the only undelivered

element all contract elements are deferred and recognized ratably over the related maintenance and support period

Provided that evidence of an arrangement exists fees are fixed or determinable collection of the related

receivable is probable fair value for the undelivered elements exist and there are no other contract considerations

resulting in the deferral of revenue we typically recognize revenue in the following manner

Software licenses and hardware are recognized upon delivery while installation engineering services

training and consulting services are recognized as performed and maintenance and support is

recognized ratably over the period in which the services are performed This is the primary method

used for sales from our Indirect segment as software products are typically fully functional upon

delivery and do not require significant modification or alteration Any subsequent software royalties

associated with such contracts are generally recognized as reported by the customer Revenue is also

recognized in this manner for certain Direct segment sales and the majority of sales of additional

modules to existing customers

Software licenses sold through annual contracts that include software maintenance and support are

deferred and recognized ratably over the one-year period

Revenues derived from SaaS offerings are generally recognized using the proportional performance

method as we provide software application-hosting and related services to customers under fixed-price

contracts Such contracts are entered into by certain Direct segment customers with clinical trial

products comprising the vast majority These contracts consist of master agreements containing

general terms and conditions and separately negotiated addendums called task orders which include

services software subscription and usage fees and hosting fees Customers generally have the ability

to terminate contracts upon 30 days notice However these contracts typically require payment of fees

earned from all services provided through the termination date In the event that customer cancels

task order all deferred revenue is recognized and certain termination related fees may be charged

If services are considered essential to the functionality of the software revenue is recognized based on

service hours expended through project completion and maintenance and support is recognized

thereafter ratably over the applicable period

If services are considered essential we recognize revenue using either the proportional performance

guidelines or percentage of completion accounting as appropriate Revenue is determined by the input method

based upon the amount of labor hours expended compared to the total labor hours expended plus the estimated

amount of labor hours to complete the project Total estimated labor hours are based on managements best estimate

of the total amount of time it will take to complete project These estimates require the use of judgment

significant change in one or more of these estimates could affect the profitability of one or more of our contracts

We review our contract estimates periodically to assess the possible need for revisions in contract values and

estimated labor hours and reflect changes in estimates in the period that such estimates are revised under the

cumulative catch-up method When estimates indicate loss such loss is recognized in the current period in its

entirety Because of the inherent uncertainties in estimating total labor hours it is possible that the estimates will

change and could result in material change of revenue recognized in the applicable period We record loss for

contract at the point it is determined that the total estimated contract costs will exceed managements estimates of

contract revenues As of December 31 2009 we have not experienced any material losses on uncompleted

contracts

We assess collectability based on number of factors including past transaction history with the customer

and the credit worthiness of the customer We must exercise our judgment when we assess the probability of

collection and the current credit worthiness of each customer If the financial condition of our customers were to

deteriorate it could affect the timing and the amount of revenue we recognize on contract In addition in certain

transactions prior to 2007 we negotiated with customers provision that included our receipt of ownership in the

customers common stock as part of the sale We generally do not request collateral from customers We have

provided for an allowance for estimated returns and credits based on our historical experience of returns and

customer credits
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Deferred revenue is comprised of deferrals for license fees support and maintenance and other services

Long-term deferred revenue as of December 31 2009 represents license fees support and maintenance and other

services to be earned or provided beginning January 2011 Revenue recognized that has not yet been billed to

customer results in an asset as of the end of the respective period The majority of such asset is comprised of

clinical trial SaaS offering contracts where certain amounts are billable upon the achievement of milestones or in

accordance with predetermined payment schedules As of December 31 2009 and 2008 there was $2054 and $270

recorded within other current assets

We record reimbursable out-of-pocket expenses in both services and maintenance net sales and as direct

cost of services and maintenance The reimbursement by customers of shipping and handling costs are recorded in

software and other net sales and the associated cost as cost of sale We account for sales taxes on net basis

Share-Based Compensation

We calculate share-based compensation expense based on the estimated grant-date fair value using the

Black-Scholes option pricing model and recognize the expense on straight-line basis over the vesting period net

of estimated forfeitures We evaluate the assumptions used to value stock options and restricted stock awards on

quarterly basis The estimation of share-based awards that will ultimately vest requires judgment and to the extent

actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates such amounts will be recorded as cumulative

adjustment in the period estimates are revised We consider many factors when estimating expected forfeitures

including types of awards employee class and historical experience

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We describe below recent pronouncements that have had or may have significant effect on our financial

statements We do not discuss recent pronouncements that are not anticipated to have an impact on or are unrelated

to our financial condition results of operations or related disclosures

In December 2007 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued new guidance as set forth in

ASC Topic No 805 Business Combinations requiring an acquirer in business combination to allocate the

purchase price of an acquired business on preliminary basis to the identified assets and liabilities acquired based

on their estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition with any residual amounts allocated to goodwill Goodwill

is allocated to our reporting units based on the reporting units that will benefit from the acquired assets and

liabilities Purchase price allocations are considered preliminary until we have obtained all required information to

complete the allocation Although the time required to obtain the necessary information will vary with

circumstances specific to an individual acquisition the allocation period for finalizing purchase price allocations

would not exceed one year from the date of consummation of an acquisition Adjustments to the allocation of

purchase price may decrease those amounts allocated to goodwill and as such may increase those amounts

allocated to other tangible or intangible assets which may result in higher depreciation depletion or amortization

expense in future periods Revisions to preliminary purchase price allocations if any are reflected retrospectively

Assets acquired in business combination that will be sold are valued at fair value less cost to sell Results of

operating these assets are recognized currently in the period in which those operations occur In April 2009 the

FASB amended and clarified the initial recognition and measurement subsequent measurement and accounting and

related disclosures arising from contingencies in business combination Assets and liabilities arising from

contingencies in business combination are to be recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date if fair value

can be determined during the measurement period If fair value cannot be determined the existing guidance for

contingencies and other authoritative literature should be followed This new guidance is effective for periods

beginning on or after December 15 2008 and applies to business combinations occurring after the effective date

We adopted this ASC effective January 2009 We have applied the provisions to all of our business combinations

in 2009 and will apply the provisions prospectively for any future business combinations

In May 2009 the FASB issued guidance regarding general standards of accounting for and disclosure of an

event that occurs after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued

This guidance is set forth in ASC Topic No 855 Subsequent Events ASC No 855 ASC No 855 sets forth the

period after the balance sheet date during which management of reporting entity should evaluate events or

transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements the circumstances

under which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial
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statements and the disclosures that an entity should make about events or transactions that occur after the balance

sheet date We adopted this standard effective June 15 2009 and have evaluated any subsequent events through the

date of this filing We do not believe there are any material subsequent events other than those addressed in these

Notes which would require further disclosure

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Update No 2009-01 which

establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC as the source of authoritative accounting

principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial

statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles GAAP The ASC is effective for interim

and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 We adopted the ASC when referring to GAAP as of

September 30 2009 The adoption did not have an impact on our consolidated results

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASC Update No 2009-13 Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements Update

No 2009-13 Update No 2009-13 amends existing revenue recognition accounting pronouncements that are

currently within the scope of FASB ASC Subtopic No 605-25 Multiple Element Arrangements Under the new

guidance when VSOE or third party evidence for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined best

estimate of the selling price is required to separate deliverables and allocate arrangement consideration using the

relative selling price method The new guidance includes new disclosure requirements on how the application of the

relative selling price method affects the timing and amount of revenue recognition This new approach is effective

for fiscal years beginning after June 15 2010 and may be applied retrospectively or prospectively for new or

materially modified arrangements In addition early adoption is permitted We are currently evaluating the potential

impact of Update No 2009-13 on our consolidated financial statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASC Update No 2009-14 Certain Arrangements That Contain Software

Elements Update No 2009-14 Update No 2009-14 amends the scope of ASC Subtopic No 985-605 Revenue

Recognition to exclude tangible products that include software and non-software components that function together

to deliver the products essential functionality This Update shall be applied on prospective basis for revenue

arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15 2010 Earlier

application is permitted as of the beginning of companys fiscal year provided the company has not previously

issued financial statements for any period within that year An entity shall not elect early application of Update No

2009-14 unless it also elects early application of Update No 2009-13 We are currently evaluating the potential

impact of Update No 2009-14 on our consolidated financial statements

Acquisitions

etrials Worldwide Inc

On July 20 2009 we completed the acquisition of etrials provider of clinical trials software and services

to pharmaceutical biotechnology medical device and contract research organizations The transaction was

announced on June 2009 upon the execution of definitive agreement and closed on July 20 2009 Under the

terms of the Merger Agreement we acquired all of the outstanding shares of common stock of etrials for

consideration per share of $0.80 in cash without interest and 0.3448 shares of our Common Stock Upon

completion of the acquisition we renamed this entity Merge eClinical Our consolidated statements of operations

include etrials sales of $5799 and net income of $149 for the period July 20 2009 through December 31 2009

Reasons for the Transaction

Our acquisition of etrials will allow us to create an organization capable of providing clinical trial sponsors

and contract research organizations CROs comprehensive and configurable solutions that integrate critical imaging

technologies with electronic eclinical capabilities to address the needs of all the stakeholders in clinical trials

utilizing imaging

Acquisition Accounting

The transaction consideration was valued at approximately $25077 including the exchange of 3942732

shares at market price of $4.04 per share and $9149 in cash The fair value of stock issued was based upon the

NASDAQ closing price of our Common Stock on July 20 2009 The acquisition was accounted for using the

acquisition method of accounting We were considered the accounting acquirer requiring the purchase
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consideration to be allocated to etrials net tangible and intangible assets based on their respective fair values as of

the closing date with the residual reflected as goodwill The allocation of the purchase consideration is based upon

estimates made by us with the assistance of independent valuation specialists The purchase price allocation based

on etrials assets and liabilities as of July 20 2009 was as follows

Estimated Fair

Value

Cash 6077

Other tangible asss 4565

Liabilities assumed 5215

Purchad and developed software 3950

Custonr relationships 2644

In-process research and development 760

Trade nanes 270

Goodwill 12030

Total consideration 25077

The amounts allocated to purchased and developed software customer relationships trade names and in-

process research and development IPRD are estimated by us based on the work performed by independent

valuation specialists primarily through the use of discounted cash flow techniques Appraisal assumptions utilized

under these methods include forecast of estimated future net cash flows as well as discounting the future net cash

flows to their present value Acquired intangible assets are being amortized over the estimated useful lives as set

forth in the following table

Years

Proprietary technology 7.0

Customer relationships 10.0

Trade names 6.0

IPRD 5.0

Goodwill Indefinite

The asset lives are determined based on projected future economic benefits and expected life cycles of the

acquired intangible assets Amortization on the value assigned to IPRD commenced upon completion of the

associated research and development efforts

The value assigned to acquired IPRD is determined by identifying the acquired specific IPRD projects

that will be continued and for which technological feasibility has not been established at the acquisition date

there is no alternative future use and the fair value is estimable with reasonable reliability The nature of the

efforts to develop the in-process technology into the commercially viable products principally relates to the

completion of all planning designing prototyping verification and testing activities that are necessary to establish

that the technology can be produced to meet its design specification including function features and technical

performance requirements At the date of the business combination etrials had an in-process project meeting the

above criteria involving an electronic data capture EDC platform Upon the projects reaching general availability

in 2009 we commenced amortization of the associated value assigned to IPRD using useful life of five years

Total amortization expense was $13 in the year ended December 31 2009

The amount assigned to goodwill is not being amortized but is tested for impairment annually or under

certain circumstances that may indicate potential impairment The $12030 assigned to goodwill is not deductible

for federal income tax purposes

Upon completion of the etrials acquisition we assumed $1770 in debt which was repaid in full in the third

quarter of 2009
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Confirma Inc

On September 2009 we completed the acquisition of Confirma provider of computer systems for

processing and presentation of data from magnetic resonance imaging MRI studies The transaction was

announced on August 2009 upon the execution of definitive agreement and closed on September 2009

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement we acquired all outstanding shares of Confirma in exchange for

5422104 shares of our Common Stock Upon completion of the acquisition we renamed this entity Merge CAD
Our consolidated statements of operations include Confirma sales of $2398 and net loss of $1840 for the period

September 2009 through December 31 2009

Reasons for the Transaction

Our acquisition of Confirma creates an organization providing advanced applications for visualization and

analysis of MRI studies that has the capability to widen the global adoption of this type of technology through our

international distribution network

Acquisition Accounting

The transaction consideration was valued at approximately $16225 including the exchange of 5422104

shares at market price of $3.01 per share of which 46628 shares were placed in escrow The transaction

consideration excludes $96 for claims against the escrow The fair value of stock issued was based upon the

NASDAQ closing price of our Common Stock on September 2009 The acquisition was accounted for using the

acquisition method of accounting We were considered the accounting acquirer requiring the purchase

consideration to be allocated to Confirmas net tangible and intangible assets based on their respective fair values as

of the closing date with the residual reflected as goodwill The allocation of the purchase consideration is based

upon estimates made by us with the assistance of independent valuation specialists The purchase price allocation

based on Confirmas assets and liabilities as of September 2009 was as follows

Estiimted Fair

Value

Cash 2696

Othertangible assets 3451

Liabilities assumed 9867

Purchased and developed software 4300

Custoimr relationships 2100

Trade nans 300

Goodwill 13245

Total consideration 16225

The amounts allocated to purchased and developed software customer relationships and trade names are

estimated by us based on the work performed by independent valuation specialists primarily through the use of

discounted cash flow techniques Appraisal assumptions utilized under these methods include forecast of

estimated future net cash flows as well as discounting the future net cash flows to their present value Acquired

intangible assets are being amortized over the useful lives as set forth in the following table

Years

Proprietary Technology 5.3

Custoner Relationships 9.5

Trade nanes 10.0

Goodwill Indefinite

The asset lives are determined based on projected future economic benefits and expected life cycles of the

acquired intangible assets The amount assigned to goodwill is not being amortized but is tested for impairment

annually or under certain circumstances that may indicate potential impairment The $13245 assigned to goodwill

is not deductible for federal income tax purposes
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Upon completion of the Confirma acquisition we assumed $2800 in debt which was repaid in full in the

third quarter of 2009

Pro forma Results

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined results of operations for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively are based on the historical financial statements of Merge etrials and

Confirma giving effect to the business combination as if it had occurred at the beginning ofthe periods presented

Therefore this pro
forma data has been adjusted to exclude pre-acquisition intangible amortization share-based

compensation and warrant expense of etrials and Confirma while including amortization of intangible assets

purchased in the respective acquisitions during the entire applicable periods This data is not necessarily indicative

of the results of operations that would have been generated if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the

respective periods Moreover this data is not intended to be indicative of future results of operations

Years Ended

2009 2008

Revenue 83951 91121

Net loss 5256 44602

Loss per share

Basic 0.08 0.80

Diluted 0.08 0.80

We completed insignificant acquisitions in 2009 with total transaction consideration of $2593 As

result of these acquisitions we recorded purchased and developed software customer relationships and goodwill of

$1020 $340 and $3475 respectively The operating results of these acquisitions are included in our consolidated

financial statements from the respective dates of the acquisitions The pro forma results displayed above have not

been adjusted for these acquisitions as they were determined to be immaterial both individually and in aggregate

Accounts Receivable

Substantially all receivables are derived from sales and related services support and maintenance of our

products to health IT device and pharmaceutical companies located throughout the U.S and in certain foreign

countries as indicated in Note 16

Our accounts receivable balance is reported net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and an allowance for

sales returns We provide for an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts and sales returns based upon

historical experience and managements judgment As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the allowances for

estimated uncollectible accounts and sales returns were $1287 and $1378 respectively

The following table shows the changes in our allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns

Additions

Balance at charged to

beginning of revenue and Balance at end

Description period expenses Deductions of period

For year ended December 31 2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns 1378 416 507 1287

For year ended December 31 2008

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns 2209 316 1147 1378

For year ended December 31 2007

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales returns 2553 1100 1444 2209
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Goodwill Trade Names and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is our primary intangible asset and is not subject to amortization The changes in carrying amount

of goodwill by segment for the year ended December 31 2009 are as follows

Indirect Direct Total

Balance at Januaiy 2009

Goodwill due to etrials acquisition 12030 12030

Goodwill due to Conflmaacquisition 13245 13245

Goodwill due to
insignificant acquisitions 3474 3474

BalanceatDecrmber3l2009 13245 15504 28749

In 2009 we did not record any impairment of our goodwill since the fair value of our reporting units

substantially exceeds the carrying value

On June 2008 we announced that we were renaming our business units As result of this action the

Cedara trade name was impaired We recorded charge of $1060 during the second quarter of 2008 in trade name

impairment restructuring and other expense within our consolidated statement of operations

During the year ended December 31 2007 several material events occurred that resulted in an environment

of uncertainty surrounding Merge and diverted the attention of certain board members and management from our

business operations for periods of time This uncertainty lead us to question whether we might not be able to

recover the intangible assets carrying amounts or that the fair value of our single reporting unit did not support the

canying value of goodwill

We evaluated whether or not the circumstances indicated that the carrying amounts of our property and

equipment and customer relationships were recoverable based primarily on whether future undiscounted cash flows

were sufficient to support the assets recovery As result of certain analyses and impairment tests performed in

accordance with ASC Topic 350 Intangibles Goodwill and Other the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors

determined that there was an impairment to certain intangible assets We completed these assessments of fair value

utilizing the assistance of independent valuation specialists Based on our assessments our goodwill was fully

impaired as of December 31 2007 The following table details all impairment charges recorded during the year

ended December 31 2007

Statement of Operations Classification

Operating Costs

Asset Impaired Cost of Sales and Expens Total

Year ended December31 2007

Puithasedsofiware 1091 1091

Capitalized softure 3470 3470

Patents 133 133

Custonr relationships 4252 4252

Trade mts 800 800

Goodwill 122371 122371

Total 4694 127423 132117
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Other than capitalized software development costs our intangible assets subject to amortization are

summarized as of December 31 2009 and 2008 as follows

Weighted-

Average December 312009 December 31 2008

Remuining Gross Gross

Ainoffiiation Caning Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Period Years Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Purchad techno1o 4.4 20694 9350 11424 6888

custonrre1ationships 7.4 8556 2382 3550 1259

Trale nans 7.8 570 29
___________ _______________

Total 29820 11761 14974 8147

The estimated asset lives are determined based on projected future economic benefits and expected life

cycles of the purchased software customer relationships and trade names

Amortization expense for purchased software which is being expensed within cost of sales on ratable

basis over the life of the related intangible asset was $2462 $2517 and $3938 in the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 respectively Included within the expense are purchased software impairment charges of $398

and $1091 during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively as result of our net realizable value

analysis associated with certain product lines Customer relationships and trade names amortization expense which

is being expensed in the depreciation amortization and impairment classification of operating costs and expenses

over the life of the related intangible asset was $1226 $1000 and $6220 in the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively The expense
in 2007 includes an impairment charge of $4252

In the year ended December 31 2009 we increased the gross carrying amount of purchased software

customer relationships and trade names by $10030 $5080 and $570 respectively related to significant acquisitions

and insignificant asset purchases completed in 2009

The estimated future amortization expense of purchased software customer relationships and trade names

as of December 31 2009 is as follows

FortheyearendedDecember3l 2010 5091

2011 3403

2012 2203

2013 2180

2014 2066

Thereafter 3116

As of December 31 2009 we had gross capitalized software development costs of $7415 and accumulated

amortization of $6138 As of December 31 2008 we had gross capitalized software development costs of $6813

and accumulated amortization of $5696 The weighted average remaining amortization period of capitalized

software development costs was 3.3 years as of December 31 2009 In the year ended December 31 2009 we

recorded $760 of capitalized software development costs which had been valued as part of the etrials acquisition as

IPRD upon the projects reaching general availability in 2009 In the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

we capitalized software development costs of zero and $817 respectively Amortization expense including

impairments related to capitalized software development costs of $600 $762 and $4599 was recorded in

amortization and related impairment cost of sales during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively We recorded an impairment of $3470 in the
year

ended December 31 2007 as result of our net

realizable value analysis associated with certain projects some of which were still in development at the time of

impairment or as we no longer anticipated future sales of certain products

In the year ended December 31 2009 we received cash proceeds of $510 from the sale of patents which we

determined were not necessary to support our business
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Fair Value Measurement

Non-Current Investments

The following tables set forth our non-current investments that are carried at fair value

Balance at

December 31

Levell L.evel2 L.evd3 2009

lnvemmtinpubIiclytradedequitysecurities
110 110

Investments in equity securities of private companies 413 413

Total 110 413 523

Balance at

December 31

Levell Level2 Level3 2008

Investmentinpubliclytradedequitysecurities 318 318

Investments in equity securities of private companies 5372 5372

Total 318 5372 5690

Due to the acquisition of Eklin Medical Systems Inc Eklin by VCA Antech Inc in July 2009 we sold

our equity investment in Eklin for proceeds of $1335 We received cash of $886 in the third quarter of 2009 with

the remaining balance of $449 being held in an escrow account for up to two years to satisfy any remaining

obligations which may arise from the transaction We have recorded charge of $3624 in the year ended December

31 2009 related to the realized loss on the sale of our investment in Eklin As result of the evaluation of our Level

investments in the year ended December 31 2008 we determined there was significant change in the fair value

and recorded an impairment charge of $1435 Both the realized loss and the impairment charge are included in the

other net line of our condensed consolidated statements of operations The following table sets forth the change in

the fair value of our Level non-current investments for the periods indicated

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

Balance at January 5372 6807

Sale of investment 1335

Impairment charge 1435
Realized loss 3624
Balance at December31 413 5372

Unrealized gains or losses on our available-for-sale publicly traded security as well as foreign currency

translation adjustments are components of accumulated other comprehensive income as set forth in the following

table

December 31

2009 2008

Ojmulative translation adjustnnt 1936 1936

Net unrealized 1o on available-for-sale security 337 129
Total accumulatul other comprthensive income 1599 1807

Debt and Other Transactions with Related Party

On June 2008 we completed private placement by which we raised net proceeds of $16639 through

transaction with Merrick RIS LLC Merrick an affiliate of Merrick Ventures LLC Merrick Ventures pursuant to

an agreement that was executed on May 21 2008 Based on the terms of the private placement we received

$20000 from Merrick in exchange for $15000 senior secured term note the Note and 21085715 shares of our

Common Stock On November 18 2009 we repaid the Note in full including prepayment penalty of $2700 and
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accrued interest of $395 As result total of $3329 including the prepayment penalty and remaining balances of

the issuance costs and note discount was expensed to the other net line of our statement of operations Interest on

the note was 13.0% per annum payable quarterly in arrears

Michael Ferro Jr and trusts for the benefit of Mr Ferros family members beneficially own majority

of the equity interest in Merrick Ventures Mr Ferro who is the chairman of our board of directors also serves as

the chairman and chief executive officer of Merrick Ventures Accordingly Mr Ferro indirectly owns or controls

all of the shares owned by Merrick As of December 31 2009 Merrick and its affiliates owned approximately

37.4% of our Common Stock

The fair values of the equity Note and put options were determined utilizing the assistance of independent

valuation specialists The proceeds of $20000 were reduced by the value of the put options and the remaining

amount was allocated to the equity and Note based on the relative fair value of each instrument In addition

transaction costs of $2386 were allocated to the equity and Note using the same relative fair value allocation

Closing fees of $750 due Merrick were treated as reduction of proceeds and as such portion of the closing fees

was included as discount on the Note

We recorded note payable of $13945 and equity of $4825 net of related issuance costs of $654 upon

completion of the financing transaction The note discount of $1055 of which $545 relates to closing fees due

Merrick and financing costs of $1187 which were recorded as long-term asset were amortized using the

effective interest method at rate of approximately 21.13%

In the year
ended December 31 2009 we recorded interest expense of $2716 including amortization of

financing costs of $523 and amortization of note discount of $465 In the year ended December 31 2008 we

recorded interest expense of $1742 including amortization of financing costs of $3 19 and amortization of note

discount of $285 We paid interest to Merrick of $1858 and $975 in the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively

Effective January 2009 we entered into consulting agreement with Merrick under which we received

certain consulting services for cash consideration of $100 per quarter plus reasonable expenses for one year term

We paid $458 to Merrick for such services in 2009 and recognized $460 in expense within the general and

administrative expense classification of operating costs and expenses in 2009 As of December 31 2009 we have

$2 recorded in accounts payable covering obligations under this agreement As result of work performed related

to our acquisitions of etrials and Confirma we paid Merrick success fee of $200 and expensed such amount within

the acquisition related expense classification of operating costs and expenses in 2009 Effective January 2010 we

entered into an amendment to extend the term of the consulting agreement with Merrick through December 31

2011 and modified the payment terms from flat fee arrangement per quarter to per transaction or success based

arrangement

On March 31 2009 we entered into value added reseller agreement with Merrick Healthcare Solutions

LLC Merrick Healthcare Under terms of the agreement Merrick Healthcare purchased software licenses from us

for $400 Payment of the entire balance was made on the date of the agreement We recognized $400 in revenue in

the first quarter of 2009 related to this transaction

In February 2010 we entered into VAR agreement with Merrick Healthcare under which we may market

resell or supply certain of their products and services Under terms of the agreement products and services will be

purchased on per unit basis from Merrick Healthcare The agreement is in effect for 12 months and renews

automatically at the end of the term unless terminated by either party at least 30 days prior to the end of the current

term

Other Long-Lived Assets

On April 11 2008 we signed an agreement to sell our French subsidiary Merge Healthcare France SARL
to local management for no cash consideration loss on the disposition of the French subsidiary of $1639 was

recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in trade name impairment restructuring and other expense

during the year ended December 31 2008 This transaction did not meet the accounting requirements for

classification as discontinued operation and therefore was accounted for as disposal
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On August 29 2008 we sold our Cedara Software Services India Private Limited subsidiary CSSI
located in India for $700 Included in the sale were fixed assets with gross value of $506 and accumulated

depreciation of $90 as of August 29 2008 We received cash of $499 net of fees at closing with the remaining

$200 placed in escrow to cover any remaining liabilities and expenses This transaction did not meet the accounting

requirements for classification as discontinued operation and therefore was accounted for as disposal

In addition we recorded $542 charge in depreciation amortization and impairment within our

consolidated statement of operations during the second quarter of 2008 based on the fair value of certain fixed assets

that were held for sale These assets had been disposed of as of December 31 2008

Shareholders Equity

Series Special Voting Preferred Stock

In June 2005 Merge issued one share of Series Special Voting Preferred Stock to Computershare Trust

Company of Canada which serves as trustee in voting matters on behalf of the holders of Merge Cedara

ExchangeCo Limited ExchangeCo exchangeable shares This share was cancelled in April 2009

Series Junior Participating Preferred Stock

On September 2006 Merge implemented Shareholder Rights Plan The Shareholder Rights Plan

included the declaration of dividend of one preferred share purchase right on each outstanding share of our

Common Stock and the distribution of one such right with respect to each outstanding exchangeable share of our

subsidiary ExchangeCb The adoption of the plan was intended to discourage discriminatory coercive or unfair

take-over bids and to provide the Board of Directors time to pursue alternatives to maximize shareholder value in

the event of an unsolicited take-over bid The rights become exercisable upon certain triggering events caused by

third party person or group Merge could redeem the rights for $0.00 per right

On June 12 2008 we announced the redemption of all preferred share purchase rights outstanding As

provided for in the plan we redeemed the rights for $0.00 per right As result shareholders of record on June 23

2008 received dividend payment in the third quarter of 2008 totaling $57 and this plan is no longer in effect

Exchangeable Shares

As part of our business combination with Cedara Software Corp Cedara in June 2005 Merge issued

5581517 shares of our Common Stock to the shareholders of Cedara and granted rights for the issuance of

13210168 shares of Common Stock to shareholders of Cedara that held ExchangeCo exchangeable shares The

exchangeable shares were exchangeable on one-for-one basis for our Common Stock On February 13 2009 we

exercised our call right regarding redemption of the outstanding exchangeable shares Final redemption occurred on

April 15 2009 and the exchangeable shares were delisted from the Toronto Stock Exchange following the close of

trading on April 16 2009 The respective weighted average number of these shares has been included within the

number of shares of Common Stock used to calculate basic net income loss per share see Note 14

Registered Direct Offering

On November 18 2009 we sold 9084032 shares of our common stock pursuant to registered direct

public offering at price of $3.00 per share Proceeds from the transaction net of $2077 in agency fees and other

direct offering expenses were $25175 We used $18095 of the proceeds to repay our Note including principal of

$15000 prepayment penalty of $2700 and accrued interest of $395
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Share-Based Compensation

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense related to share-based awards

recognized during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Share-based compensation expense included in the statement of operations

Services and maintenance cost of sales 50 81 414

Sales and marketing 407 443 1188

Product research and development 335 401 1071

General and administrative 894 1266 2336

Goodwill and trade name impairment restructuring and other expenses 1970

Total 1686 4161 5009

In 2007 there is difference of $14 between the above amounts and the total amount of share-based

compensation recorded in additional paid-in capital in the statement of shareholders equity due to share-based

compensation incurred by product research and development personnel who worked on capitalizable software

development projects during this period Such costs were included in capitalized developed software and

therefore not recorded as expense in the statement of operations

The $1970 of expense recorded during the year ended December 31 2008 relates to the acceleration of

certain stock options and restricted stock for certain former officers as outlined in the respective individuals

employment agreement or restricted stock purchase agreement In addition these individuals as of their respective

separation dates agreed to voluntarily forfeit any
unexercised vested stock options

Share-Based Compensation Plans

We maintain four share-based employee compensation plans including our employee stock purchase plan

ESPP and one director option plan under which we grant restricted stock awards and options to acquire shares of

our Common Stock to certain employees non-employçes non-employee directors and to existing stock option

holders in connection with the consolidation of option plans following an acquisition

Our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan EIP provides for awards of Common Stock non-statutory stock options

incentive stock options stock unit and performance unit grants and stock appreciation rights to eligible participants

to equate to maximum of 10.5 million shares of our Common Stock of which incentive stock option grants are

limited to 5.0 million shares Under the EIP new stock option grants have an exercise price equal to the fair market

value of our Common Stock at the date of grant with the exception of the options granted in 2005 to replace existing

Cedara options Replacement Options The Replacement Options which we granted pursuant to merger

agreement with Cedara had the same economic terms as the Cedara options that they replaced adjusted for

conversion ratio and currency The majority of the options issued under the EIP vest over three or four-year period

As of December 31 2009 incentive stock options to purchase 203250 shares of our Common Stock non-statutory

stock options to purchase 4712334 shares of our Common Stock and restricted stock awards of 426664 were

outstanding under this plan

Upon approval of the EIP we stated that we did not plan to issue any more options under our other stock

option plans Our 1996 Employee Stock Option Plan provided for the grant of options to purchase maximum of

3265826 shares of our Common Stock Our 1998 Director Stock Option Plan for our non-employee directors

provided for the granting of options to purchase maximum of 300000 shares of our Common Stock In addition

our Board of Directors adopted an equity compensation plan in connection with our acquisition on July 17 2003 of

RIS Logic As of December 31 2009 options to purchase 106411 shares of our Common Stock were outstanding

under these plans

Stock Options

We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock option awards on the

date of grant utilizing the assumptions noted in the following table We expense the cost of stock option awards on

straight-line basis over the vesting period Expected volatilities are based on the historical volatility of our stock

64



Merge Healthcare Incorporated and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements continued

In thousands except for share and per share data

and other factors We use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the

valuation model The expected term of options represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be

outstanding The risk-free rate for periods during the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury

rates in effect at the grant date

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Dividendyield 0% 0% 0%

Expectedvolatiity l00% 60%- 100% 55%- 65%

Riskfree intert rate
1.7% 2.3% 1.6% 3.2% 4.2% 4.9%

Expected term in years 4.0 4.0 3.5 -4.0

Weightedaverage grant date fair value 2.36 0.65 3.91

The assumptions above are based on multiple factors including the historical exercise patterns of

employees in relatively homogeneous groups with respect to exercise and post-vesting employment termination

behaviors expected future exercise patterns for these same homogeneous groups and the volatility of our stock

price SFAS No 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary in

subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates

At December 31 2009 there was $2771 of unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option share-

based payments We expect this compensation cost to be recognized over weighted-average period of 2.8 years

Stock option activity for the year ended December 31 2009 was as follows

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Number Wdghted- Contractml Aggregate

of Average Term Intrinsic

Oplions Exenise Price In Years Value

Options outstanding 31 2008 4696574 4.01 6.2 894

Options granted 625000 3.46

Options exercised

Options forfeited and expimd 299579 10.27

Options outstanding Decmr3l 2009 5021995 3.57 5.5 6822

Options exercisable Decen13l2009 2076212 5.77 4.7 2044

Options exercisable 31 2008 1352778 9.04 4.0 18

Options exercisable Decenier 31 2007 1831917 10.08 4.6

Other information pertaining to option activity was as follows

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Totalfairvalueofstockoptionsvested 5419 5384 3155

Total intrinsic value of stock options exncised 108
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31 2009

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-

Restricted Stock Awards

We have also granted restricted stock awards to employees under the EIP restricted stock award is an

award of shares of our Common Stock that is subject to time-based vesting during specified period which is

generally three years Restricted stock awards are independent of option grants and may be subject to forfeiture if

employment terminates prior to the vesting of the awards Participants have full voting and dividend rights with

respect to shares of restricted stock

We expense the cost of the restricted stock awards which is determined to be the fair market value of the

restricted stock awards at the date of grant on straight-line basis over the vesting period For these purposes the

fair market value of the restricted stock award is determined based on the closing price of our Common Stock on the

grant date

The following table presents summary of the activity of our restricted stock awards

Weighed-Average

Remaining

Nunier Weighted-Average Vesting

Restricted stock outstanding December 31 2008

Restricted stock granted

Restricted stock vted

Restricted stock forfeited
____________

Restricted stock outstanding December31 2009 _________

For the year ended December 31 2009 the expense for restricted stock awards included in the consolidated

statement of operations was $263 As of December 31 2009 there was $186 of unrecognized compensation cost

related to unvested restricted stock award share-based payments We expect this compensation cost to be

recognized over weighted-average period of 0.9 years

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain an ESPP that allows eligible employees to purchase shares of our Common Stock through

payroll deductions of up to 10% of eligible compensation on an after-tax basis The eligible employees receive

5% discount from the market price at the end of each calendar quarter There is no stock-based compensation

expense associated with our ESPP

Employees contributed $110 $100 and $88 during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively to purchase shares of our Common Stock under the employee stock purchase plan

Range of exercise prices

$0.57 $0.68

$1.05$1.47

$3.01 $6.01

$6.24 $9.78

$12.96 $24.88

average

remaining Weighted- Weighted-

Number of contractual life average Nuner of average

shares in years exercise price shais exercise price

1400000 5.7 0.65 375000 0.64

1545000 7.7 1.46 540000 1.46

1153063 4.6 4.18 344717 5.03

581422 3.0 6.87 477360 6.97

342510 2.1 17.44 339135 17.37

5021995 5.5 3.57 2076212 5.77

of Grant-date Term

Shares Fair Value In Years

479997 1.50 1.9

53333 1.50

426664 1.50 0.9
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10 Commitments and Contingencies

From April 2006 to November 2009 we were subject to formal SEC investigation related to our

announcement on March 17 2006 that we would investigate allegations of improprieties related to financial

reporting and revise our results of operations for the fiscal quarters ended June 30 2005 and September 30 2005

On November 2009 the SEC filed Complaint in federal court charging Merge with record-keeping violations

but did not charge Merge with fraud nor assess any civil penalty against Merge The Complaint enjoined Merge

from making any future violations of the reporting record-keeping and internal controls provisions under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 In addition two of Merges former executives were charged with accounting

fraud in the Complaint

On June 2009 Merge Healthcare was served with Summons and Complaint in the Milwaukee County

Circuit Court State of Wisconsin captioned William Mortimore and David Nosay Merge Technologies

Inc n/k/a Merge Healthcare Inc Fsic Case Number 09CV008356 Case Code 30301 The Complaint includes

demand for jury trial and alleges that Merge unreasonably refused Mortimore and Noshays request for

indemnification requests the court order that they are entitled to indemnification under Wisconsin Statute Section

180.08512 alleges breaches of certain employment agreements and breach of the covenant of good faith and

fair dealing Monetary damages being sought are unspecified We have retained litigation counsel notified our

appropriate insurers and intend to vigorously defend this action

In addition to the matter discussed above we are from time to time parties to legal proceedings lawsuits

and other claims incident to our business activities Such matters may include among other things assertions of

contract breach or intellectual property infringement claims for indemnity arising in the course of our business and

claims by persons whose employment has been terminated Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and

outcomes are not predictable with assurance Consequently we are unable to ascertain the ultimate aggregate

amount of monetary liability amounts which may be covered by insurance or recoverable from third parties or the

financial impact with respect to these matters as of the date of this report

11 Capital Leases and Operating Leases

We assumed certain capital lease obligations associated with our acquisitions in 2009 As of December 31

2009 the remaining obligations under these capital leases totaled $205 Equipment acquired under these capital

leases had cost of $438 and accumulated depreciation of $99 at December 31 2009 Depreciation expense related

to equipment acquired under capital leases was $99 in the year ended December 31 2009 and is included in the

depreciation amortization and impairment line of operating costs and expenses in our condensed consolidated

statement of operations

Payments due under our capital lease obligations are set forth in the following table for the periods

indicated

Capital

Leases

For the year ended December 31 2010 173

2011 46

2012

Thereafter

227

Less Amount representing interest 22

Present value of future minimum lease payments 205

Less Current portion of capital lease obligation 130

Capital lease obligation net of current portion 75

We have non-cancelable operating leases at various locations Our significant operating leases are all

facility leases as set forth in the following table
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Square End of Lease

Location Footage Term

Milwaukee Wisconsin 36.000 April 2011

Mississauga Ontario 24000 February 2020

Bellevue Washington 19000 December2011

Morrisville North Carolina 17000 September 2016

Chicago Illinois 16000 November 2013

Hudson Ohio 10.000 December 2011

In the third quarter of 2009 we entered into new 10-year lease in Mississauga Ontario the primary

location of Merge OEM We began occupancy of the new leased space in the fourth quarter of 2009 Under terms

of the lease the landlord provided tenant improvement allowance of $694 which is recorded in other current

assets in our consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2009 We also entered into new 7-year lease in our

Morrisville North Carolina location in the third quarter of 2009 which is the primary location of Merge eClinical

In addition we abandoned approximately 5000 square feet of leased space in our Bellevue Washington facility

which is the primary location of Merge CAD As result of this action we recorded charge of $255 in the

goodwill and trade name impairment restructuring and other line of our statement of operations in the third quarter

of 2009

Total rent expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $1420 $1877 and $2052

respectively net of sub-lease income of zero zero and $168 respectively Future minimum lease payments under

all non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31 2009 are

2010 2442

2011 2222

2012 1444

2013 1239

2014 828

Thereafter 3673

Total minimum Imsepayments 11848

Income to be received under non-cancelable sub-leases as of December 31 2009 is $214 $220 $226 and

$75 for the years ended December 31 2010 2011 2012 and 2013 respectively The above obligations include

lease payments related to facilities that we have either ceased to use or abandoned as of December 31 2009 The

related obligations for such facilities have been recorded as restructuring related accruals in our consolidated balance

sheet as of December 31 2009

12 Restructuring

We incurred $1545 $8749 and $960 of restructuring charges during the years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 respectively in goodwill and trade name impairment restructuring and other expenses in our

statements of operations

First Quarter 2008 Initiative

On February 14 2008 we announced reduction in our worldwide headcount including consultants by

approximately 160 individuals with the majority of those reductions having been completed on or before the

announcement This restructuring plan was designed to better align our costs with our anticipated revenues going

forward and included personnel terminations from all parts of the organization In 2008 we recognized

restructuring related charges in our consolidated financial statements of $1423 consisting of $1139 in severance

and related employee termination costs and $284 in contract exit costs primarily consisting of future lease payments

on our Burlington Massachusetts leased office which we vacated during the first quarter of 2008 In 2009 we

recorded credit of $84 related to this restructuring initiative as result of an update to our estimate of contract exit

cost obligations
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Second Quarter 2008 Initiative

On June 2008 we announced change in executive management reorganization of our operating

business units and reduction in headcount by approximately 60 individuals This restructuring plan was designed

primarily to align our corporate costs and infrastructure with the size of the organization as well as to align business

unit costs with anticipated revenues going forward In 2008 we recognized restructuring related charges in our

consolidated financial statements of $7326 consisting of $4541 in severance and related employee termination

costs $1970 of share-based compensation expense associated with the accelerated vesting of stock options and

restricted stock for certain former officers and $815 in contract exit costs In 2009 we recorded credit of $90

related to this restructuring initiative as result of an update to our estimate of contract exit cost obligations

associated with the prior leased facility in Mississauga Ontario The contract exit costs primarily consist of future

lease payments on the Alpharetta Georgia office which we abandoned in the second quarter of 2008 The

severance costs are primarily related to payments to former officers See Note for further discussion of share-

based compensation expense
related to certain executive terminations

Third Quarter 2009 Initiative

On July 20 2009 we completed restructuring initiative to reduce our workforce by approximately 35

individuals This action was taken concurrent with the acquisition of etrials based upon our assessment of ongoing

personnel needs As result we incurred $935 and $784 of severance and related costs in our Indirect and Direct

segments respectively in the third quarter of 2009
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The following table shows the restructuring activity during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007

Employee Lease

Ternination Contract

Costs Exit Costs Total

Fourth Qucrter 2006lnitiative

Balance atDecember3l 2006 1997 1997

Charges to expense 960

Paynnts 2826 2826

BalanceatDecember3l2007 131 131

Paynnts 131 131
Balance atDecember3l 2008

First Quarter 2008 Initiative

Balance at 312007

Charges to expense 1139 284 1423

Paynnts 1103 1103

Foreign Exchange

Balance atDecember3l 2008 31 284 315

Charges to expense 84 84

Paynnts

Foreign Exchange

Balance at December 312009 29 200 229

Second Quarter 2008 Initiative

Balance at December 31 2007

Chargestoexpense 4541 815 5356

Paynnts 3959 354 4313

Foreign Exchange 80 90 170

BalanceatDecember3l2008 502 371 873

Charges to expense 90 90
Paynnts 453 279 732

Foreign Exchange 15 20

BalanceatDecember3l2009 54 17 71

Third Quarter 2009 initiative

Balance at December 31 2008

Uiargestoexpense 1719 1719

Paynnts 1181 1181

Foreign exchange 41 41

Balance at December31 2009 579 579

Total Balance at December 312009 662 217 879

13 Income Taxes

Components of loss before income taxes for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 are as

follows

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

United States 5435 21594 135575

Foreign 5585 2149 36233
150 23743 171808
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The provision for income taxes consists of the following for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007

Years Ended Decenther 31

2009 2008 2007

Current

Federal 238 216 88

State 65 82 14

Foreign 38 249

Totalcurrent 135 115 102

Deferred

Federal 82 97
State 28 35

Foreign 229 210

Total deferred 175 342

Total provision 135 60 240

Actual income taxes varied from the expected income taxes computed by applying the statutory income

tax rate of 34% for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 to income before income taxes as result of

the following

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Expected tax expense benefit 51 8073 58415

Total increase decrease in income taxes
resulting

from

Nondeductible impairment of goodwill 41606

Change in valuation allowance allocated to income tax expense 377 8303 16120

Research and experimentation credit 63 178
Share-based compensation 168 354 829

Nondeductible expenses
465 33 120

State and local income taxes net of federal income tax benefit 296 188 498

Foreign income tax rate differential 24 103 560

Other 107 208 562

Actual income tax benefit 135 60 240
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

deferred tax liabilities at December 31 2009 and 2008 are presented as follows

Decenther 31

Deferred tax assets

Accmed wages

Deferred revenue

Dqrreiation

Researth and experimentation credit cariyforwards

Other credit canyforwards

Domestic loss carryforwards

Foreign loss cartyforwards

Nonqualified stock options

Other

Total gross deferred tax assets

Less asset valuation allowance

Net deferred tax asset

Ieferred tax liabilities

Software development costs and intangible aets

lntangiblescustomer contracts tredenames

Other

Total gross deferred liabilities

Net deferred taxasset

Included on balance sheet

Current assets deferred income taxes

Noncurrent aaset deferred incon taxes

Noncurrent liabilities defend income taxes

Net deferred income taxes

2009

290

267

2822

4892

2295

52933

13565

1422

3500

81452

69555

11897

23 65

2231

2538

7134

4763

142

4689

68
4763

2008

531

585

2564

3951

2627

21185

13658

1744

2716

49561

42387

7174

181

764

1466

2411

4763

217

4585

39
4763

At December 31 2009 we had U.S federal net operating loss capital loss research credit and foreign tax

credit carryforwards of $137761 $3607 $3014 and $709 respectively state net operating loss capital loss and

research credit carryforwards of $72745 $3607 and $631 respectively foreign federal and provincial net operating

loss carryforwards of $37914 and $36348 respectively foreign and provincial capital loss carryforwards of $4623

and $4623 respectively and foreign federal and provincial research credit canyforwards of $1619 and $259

respectively The U.S federal net operating loss research credit and foreign tax credit carryforwards expire in

varying amounts beginning in 2010 and continuing through 2029 2028 and 2018 respectively The state net

operating loss carryforwards expire in varying amounts beginning in 2010 and continuing through 2029 and the

credit carryforwards expire in varying amounts beginning 2012 and continuing through 2024 The U.S federal and

state capital loss carryforwards will expire in 2013 The foreign tax credits expire in varying amounts beginning in

2012 and continuing through 2016 The foreign federal and provincial net operating loss canyforwards expire in

varying amounts beginning in 2010 and continuing through 2028 Foreign and provincial capital losses may be

carried forward indefinitely

Management has an obligation to review at least annually the components of our deferred tax assets This

review is to ascertain that based upon the information available at the time of the preparation of financial

statements it is more likely than not that we expect to utilize these future deductions and credits In the event that

management determines that it is more likely than not these future deductions or credits will not be utilized

valuation allowance is recorded reducing the deferred tax asset to the amount expected to be realized

Managements analysis for 2009 resulted in valuation allowance of $69555 at December31 2009 for

majority of our Canadian and U.S deferred tax assets This decision is based upon many factors both quantitative

and qualitative such as significant unutilized operating loss and credit carryforwards limited cash refund

carryback opportunities uncertain future operating profitability and substantial organization and operating
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restructuring We also considered the effect of U.S Internal Revenue Code Code Section 382 on our ability to

utilize existing net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Section 382 imposes limits on the amount of tax

attributes that can be utilized where there has been an ownership change as defined under the Code We

experienced an ownership change on June 2008 and determined majority of our U.S and state net operating

loss capital loss and credit carryforwards will be subject to future limitation The future limitation is in addition to

any past limitations applicable to the net operating loss and credit carryforwards of previously acquired businesses

While application of Section 382 is complex and continues to be fully evaluated we currently estimate deferred tax

assets of $4 million related to net operating loss capital loss and research tax credit carryforwards may be

unrealizable due to Section 382 limitations In addition the acquired net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards

of etrials and Confirma will be subject to future limitation under Section 382 as result of their being acquired by

us While we are presently evaluating the impact of Section 382 on these acquired deferred tax assets the valuation

allowance established as of December 31 2009 is considered necessary to reduce our deferred tax assets to the

amount expected to be realized based upon all available information at such time

The net increase in the valuation allowance for the years ending December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was

$27168 $1462 and $10907 respectively The 2009 increase was primarily attributable to valuation allowances

established in connection with acquired net operating loss and credit carryforwards

There exist potential tax benefits for us associated with stock-based compensation At December 31 2009

and 2008 we had $1022 and $988 respectively of excess tax benefits related to vesting of restricted stock awards

nonqualified stock option exercises and disqualifying dispositions of employee incentive stock options The income

tax benefit related to excess tax benefits of stock-based compensation will be credited to paid-in-capital when

recognized by reducing taxes payable

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $6506

$6485 and $6070 respectively We recognize interest and penalties in the provision for income taxes Total

accrued interest and penalties as of December 31 2009 were $214 and $56 respectively Total accrued interest and

penalties as of December 31 2008 were $178 and $56 respectively Total interest included in tax expense for the

years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were $36 $28 and $13 respectively Total penalties included in

tax expense for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were $0 $11 and $0 respectively

The following is tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Balance at January 6485 6070 5747

Gross increases tax positions in current year 21 415 323

Balance at December31 6506 6485 6070

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 that if

recognized would affect the effective tax rate is $6140 and $6120 respectively The total amount of unrecognized

tax benefits at December 31 2007 that if recognized in fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 would

affect the effective tax rate is $5706

We do not anticipate significant change to the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits within the next

twelve months

We file income tax returns in the U.S various states and foreign jurisdictions We are not currently under

examination in the U.S and Canada federal taxing jurisdictions for which years ending after 2005 remain subject to

examination Years prior to 2006 remain subject to examination to the extent net operating loss and tax credit

carryforwards have been utilized after 2005 or remain subject to carryforward

We have recorded income tax expense on all profits except for undistributed profits of non-U.S

subsidiaries which are considered indefinitely reinvested Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred

tax liability related to indefinitely reinvested profits is not feasible
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14 Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing loss available to common shareholders by the

weighted average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding Diluted earnings per share excludes the

potential dilution that could occur based on the exercise of stock options and restricted stock awards including those

with an exercise price of more than the average market price of our Common Stock because such exercise would be

anti-dilutive The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Nunemtor

Net income loss 285 23683 171568

Denominator

Weighted average number of shares of Coninon Stock outstanding- basic 60910268 46717546 33913379

Effect of stock options 1353839

Effect of rtricted stock 473714

Denominator for net incon loss per share diluted 62737821 46717546 33913379

Net income loss per share basic 0.00 0.51 5.06

Net income loss per share diluted 0.00 0.51 5.06

The weighted average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding used to calculate basic and diluted

net loss includes exchangeable share equivalent securities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

of 207529 1475802 and 2307178 respectively

As result of the loss in the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 incremental shares from the

assumed conversion of employee stock options totaling zero and 43996 respectively have been excluded from the

calculation of diluted loss per share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive As result of the loss in the

years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 incremental shares from the assumed conversion of restricted stock

awards totaling 1086719 and 172323 respectively have been excluded from the calculation of diluted loss per

share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive

For the years
ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 options to purchase 2076995 3296574 and

3850352 shares of our Common Stock respectively had exercise prices greater than the average market price of

the shares of Common Stock and therefore are not included in the above calculations of net income loss per

share

The following potentially dilutive Common Stock equivalent securities including securities that may be

considered in the calculation of diluted earnings per share were outstanding as of December 31 2009 2008 and

2007

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Stockoptions 5021995 4696574 4081060

Restricted stock awards 426664 479997 1699995

5448659 5176571 5781055

15 Employee Benefit Plan

We maintain defined contribution retirement plans 401k profit sharing plan for the U.S employees and

RRSP for the Canadian employees covering employees who meet the minimum service requirements and have

elected to participate We made matching contributions under the 40 1k profit sharing plan for the U.S employees

and DPSP for the Canadian employees equal to maximum of 3.0% in the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007 Our matching contributions totaled $469 $386 and $730 for the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007 respectively
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16 Segment Information

On June 30 2009 we enhanced our financial reporting process to allow us to obtain discrete operating

results for our business units As result effective in the third quarter of 2009 we have reportable segments which

we have designated as Direct and Indirect These reportable segments are based on business unit operations that

have similar economic characteristics The Direct segment primarily sells directly to the end-users located primarily

in the U.S and Canada and also distributes certain products through the Internet via our website This segment

consists of the Merge Fusion U.S Merge eClinical and Requisite business units The Indirect segment primarily

sells software products and related services to Original Equipment Manufacturers Value Added Resellers and

distributors world-wide This segment consists of the Merge OEM Merge CAD and Merge Fusion EMEA business

units

We evaluate the performance of these segments based on their respective revenues and operating income

The following table provides segment information for the period indicated

Year Ended Decenger 31 2009

Indirect Direct Total

Net sales

Sofiwareandother 24025 9012 33037

Service and maintenance 9380 24424 33804

Total net sales 33405 33436 66841

Exnses 23773 26582 50355

Segment income 9632 6854 16486

Net corpomteother expenses 16336

Incon before incone taxes 150

Net corporate/other expenses include public compeny costs share-based compensation

certain amortization not attributable to business segments corporate
administration costs

acquisition-related exponses and net interest expense

Corporatei

Indirect Direct Other Consolidated

Depreciation and amostization

Year ended 31 2009 1452 2668 1969 6089

AsssasofDecomber31 2009 38438 46271 15540 100249

The following tables provide revenue by segment for the periods indicated Segment profit will not be

restated for periods prior to December 31 2008 as there were significant operational changes during 2008 that will

not allow us to capture comparable historical information through our financial reporting system and it would be

impracticable for us to do so The 2008 and 2007 net sales amounts below have been restated based on our updated

segment reporting structure in 2009
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Year Ended December 31 2008

indirect Direct Total

Net sales

Software andother 16772 10789 27561

Service and maintenance 11738 17436 29174

Total net sales 28510 28225 56735

Year Ended Decentier 31 2007

Indirect Direct Total

Net sales

Software and other 15117 14473 29590

Service and maintenance 10407 19575 29982

Total net sales 25524 34048 59572

Cash in Excess of Federally Insured Amount

Substantially all of our cash and cash equivalents are held at few financial institutions located in the U.S
Canada and the Netherlands Deposits held with these banks exceed the amount of insurance provided on such

deposits Generally these deposits may be redeemed upon demand and therefore bear minimal risk

Net Sales and Accounts Receivable

The majority of our clients are OEMs imaging centers hospitals contract research organizations health

IT device and pharmaceutical companies If significant adverse macro-economic factors were to impact these

organizations it could materially adversely affect us Our access to certain software and hardware components is

dependent upon single and sole source suppliers The inability of any supplier to fulfill our supply requirements

could affect future results

Foreign sales account for approximately 23% 24% and 22% of our net sales for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 sales in

foreign currency represented approximately 2% 5% and 6% respectively of our net sales

The following tables present certain geographic information based on location of customer

Net Sales for the Years Ended December31

2009 2008 2007

United States ofAmerica 51318 43305 46330

Europe 7216 6924 7244

Japan 3407 3717 3232

Korea 1534 443 263

Canada 1361 1206 1236

Other 2005 1140 1267

Total net sales 66841 56735 59572

Long-Lived Assets at December31

2009 2008

United States of America 3342 1762

Canada 527 185

Europe 16

Other 11

Long-lived assets represent property plant and equipment net of related depreciation Long-lived assets in

service at the China office were not material as of December 31 2009 and 2008
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17 Quarterly Results unaudited

2009 Quarterly Results

March31 June30 September30 December31

15309 15353 16907 19272

11279 11477 12006 12702

2864 467 907 2274

2842 446 936 2067
0.05 0.01 0.02 0.03

0.05 0.01 0.02 0.03

2008 Quarterly Results

18 Subsequent Events

March31 June30 September30 December31

13743 13315 14616 15061

8053 8102 10032 10476

7832 18581 697 1973

7832 18197 428 1918

0.23 0.45 0.01 0.03

0.23 0.45 0.01 0.03

Net loss for the quarterly period ended December 31 2009 includes charge of $3329 for the

extinguishment of our debt including prepayment penalty and the write-off of the remaining balances of the

issuance costs and note discount

Effective as of February 28 2010 we entered into Merger Agreement to acquire AMICAS Inc

AMICAS Under the terms of the Merger Agreement we will commence to tender offer to acquire all of the

outstanding shares of common stock of AMICAS for consideration per share of $6.05 in cash without interest

which is expected to be approximately $248 million We plan to finance the transaction with $200000 of financing

from Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc with whom we have executed definitive commitment letter through

the sale of high yield notes or bridge financing in addition to cash already available at the two companies and the

issuance of preferred and common stock with respect to which we have received $40000 of pre-funded proceeds

from investors Although we have not entered into formal Preferred Stock Agreement with these investors we

have signed commitment letters that provide the investors 2% commitment fee the issuance of up to million

shares of Common Stock subject to $50000 of total proceeds being received and cumulative dividends at an

anticipated rate of 15% among other negotiated terms We have placed $30000 of the pre-funded proceeds in

escrow pursuant to the Merger Agreement and may be required to release the escrow under certain circumstances

In connection with these transactions we have already incurred and anticipate incurring significant costs related to

the acquisition debt offering and preferred stock We anticipate total costs of these transactions to be incurred by

both parties including break-up fee owed to former potential acquiror of AMICAS will approximate $32000

The Merger Agreement contains certain conditions to our obligation to complete the tender offer including

successful tender of approximately 54% of the outstanding shares of common stock of AMICAS antitrust clearance

and other regulatory approvals We anticipate the acquisition will close in the second quarter of 2010
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Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

Item 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures of registrant designed to ensure that

information required to be disclosed by the registrant in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is

properly recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and

forms Disclosure controls and procedures include processes to accumulate and evaluate relevant information and

communicate such information to registrants management including its principal executive and financial officers

as appropriate to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosures

control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not absolute

assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Because of the inherent limitations in all control

systems no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if

any within company have been detected

We evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of

December 31 2009 as required by Rule 3a- 15 of the Exchange Act This evaluation was carried out under the

supervision and with the participation of our management including our principal executive officer and principal

financial officer Based on this evaluation our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have

concluded that as of December 31 2009 our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that

information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded

processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and

information required to be disclosed by us in our reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is

accumulated and communicated to our management including our principal executive officer and principal financial

officer or persons performing similar functions as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosure This evaluation did not include an assessment of the controls related to our Merge eClinical and Merge

CAD business units which were acquired on July 20 2009 and September 2009 respectively These businesses

represented 12% of our consolidated total assets as of December 31 2009 excluding intangible assets which were

part of our 2009 assessment and 12% of our consolidated net sales for the year ended December 31 2009

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting Our internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external reporting

purposes in accordance with GAAP

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2009 using the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in

Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on its assessment management concluded that our internal control

over financial reporting was effective as of December 31 2009 The effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2009 has been audited by BDO Seidman LLP an independent registered

public accounting firm as stated in its report which is included below

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Milwaukee Wisconsin

We have audited Merge Healthcare Incorporateds internal control over financial reporting as of December

31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Merge Healthcare Incorporateds

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
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of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Item 9A

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

the companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

As indicated in the accompanying Item 9A Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial

Reporting managements assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting did not include the internal controls of Merge eClinical and Merge CAD the acquired subsidiaries

which were acquired on July 20 2009 and September 2009 respectively and which are included in the

consolidated balance sheet of Merge Healthcare Incorporated as of December 31 2009 and the related consolidated

statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended The acquired subsidiaries

constituted 12% and 6% of total assets and net assets respectively as of December 31 2009 and 12% of revenues

for the year then ended Management did not assess the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of

the acquired subsidiaries because of the timing of the acquisitions which were completed on July 20 2009 and

September 2009 respectively Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Merge healthcare

Incorporated also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of the acquired

subsidiaries

In our opinion Merge Healthcare Incorporated maintained in all material respects effective internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of Merge Healthcare Incorporated as of December 31 2009

and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity cash flows and comprehensive

income loss for each of the two years in the period ended December 31 2009 and our report dated March 12 2010

expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements

Is BDO Seidman LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 122010

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes with respect to our internal control over financial reporting that materially affected

or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended

December 31 2009
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Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

As permitted by SEC rules we have omitted certain information required by Part III from this Report on

Form 10-K because we will file pursuant to Section 240.l4a-l01 our definitive proxy statement for our 2010

annual shareholder meeting Proxy Statement not later than April 30 2010 and are therefore incorporating by

reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K such information from the Proxy Statement

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 will be included under the captions Election of Directors and

Information Concerning Directors Nominees and Executive Officers in our Proxy Statement for our 2009 annual

meeting of shareholders Information concerning the compliance of our officers directors and 10% shareholders

with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference to the information to be

contained in the 2009 proxy statement under the caption Information Concerning Directors Nominees and

Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance The information regarding

Audit Committee members and Audit Committee Financial Experts is incorporated by reference to the

information to be contained in the 2010 proxy statement under the caption Information Concerning Directors

Nominees and Executive Officers Board Committees The information regarding our Code of Business Ethics

is incorporated by reference to the information to be contained in the 2010 proxy statement under the heading

Information Concerning Directors Nominees and Executive Officers Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Merge Healthcares Code of Ethics

All of our employees including the Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer our Controllers and

persons performing similar functions including all Directors and employees are required to abide by Merge

Healthcares Code of Ethics to ensure that our business is conducted in consistently legal and ethical manner This

Code of Ethics along with our Whistleblower Policy form the foundation of comprehensive process that includes

compliance with all corporate policies and procedures an open relationship among colleagues that contributes to

good business conduct and the high integrity level of our employees Our policies and procedures cover all areas of

professional conduct including employment policies conflicts of interest intellectual property and the protection of

confidential information as well as strict adherence to all laws and regulations applicable to the conduct of our

business Employees are required to report any conduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual or apparent

violation of Merge Healthcares Code of Ethics The SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 requires audit committees to

have procedures to receive retain and treat complaints received regarding accounting internal accounting controls

or auditing matters and to allow for the confidential and anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding

questionable accounting or auditing matters We have such procedures in place as set forth in the Merge Healthcare

Incorporated Whistleblower Policy and the Code of Ethics The Code of Ethics is included on the Companys

website www.merge.com Investor Relations link

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under

the caption Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors in our Proxy Statement

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under

the caption Security Ownership and Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in our Proxy Statement For

information regarding our share-based compensation plans please see Note of the notes to consolidated financial

statements

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under

the caption Related Party Transactions in our Proxy Statement
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Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under

the caption Accounting Fees and Services in our Proxy Statement

PART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this annual report

Financial Statements filed as part of this report pursuant to Part II Item of this Annual Report on Form

10-K

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for each of the three years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for each of the three years ended December 31 2009

2008 and 2007 and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

See Exhibit Index that follows
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Exhibit Index

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of May 30 2009 by and among Registrant Merge Acquisition

Corp wholly owned subsidiary of Registrant and etrials Worldwide Inc

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of August 2009 by and among Registrant Merge Acquisition

Corporation wholly owned subsidiary of Registrant Confirma Inc and John Brooks

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation as filed on October 14 2008 and Certificate of Merger as filed on December

2008 and effective on December 2008

3.2 Bylaws of Registrant

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement dated June 2008 by and between Registrant and Merrick RIS LLC

10.2 Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 21 2008 by and among Registrant the subsidiaries listed on the

Schedule of Subsidiaries attached thereto and Merrick RIS LLC

10.3 Employment Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Justin Dearborn entered into as of June

2008
fr

10.4 Employment Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Steven Oreskovich entered into as of June

2008

10.5 Employment Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Nancy Koenig entered into as of June

2008

10.6 Employment Letter Agreement between the Registrant and Antonia Wells entered into as of June 2008

10.7 Amendment dated July 2008 to that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated May 21 2008 by and

among the Registrant certain of its subsidiaries and Merrick RIS LLC

10.8 Consulting Agreement effective as of January 2009 by and between Registrant and Merrick RIS LLC

10.9 1996 Stock Option Plan for Employees of Registrant dated May 13 996 as amended and restated in its

entirety as of September 2003

10.10 1998 Stock Option Plan for Directors

10.11 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Registrant effective July 12000
10.12 2003 Stock Option Plan of Registrant dated June 24 2003 and effective July 17 2003

10.13 2005 Equity Incentive Plan adopted March 2005 and effective May 24 2005

10.14 Amendment effective as of January 2010 to that certain Consulting Agreement effective as of January

2009 by and among the Registrant and Merrick RIS LLC

14.1 Code of Ethics

14.2 Whistleblower Policy

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm BDO Seidman LLP

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm KPMG LLP

31.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer principal executive officer Pursuant to Rule 3a- 14a under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

31.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer principal accounting officer Pursuant to Rule 3a-14a under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

32 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer principal executive officer and Chief Financial Officer principal

accounting officer Pursuant to Section 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 30 2009

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 2009

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31 2008

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 62008

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 22 2008

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 15 2008

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 2008

Incorporated by reference from Registration Statement on Form SB-2 No 333-39111 effective January 29 1998

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q for the three and nine months ended September 30 2003

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-KSB for the fiscal year ended December31 1997

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Proxy Statement for Annual Meeting of Shareholders dated May 82000

Incorporated by reference from the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 No 333-125386 effective June 12005

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange of 1934 the Registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED

Date March 12 2010 By Is JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive officer

Date March 12 2010 By Is STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principalfInancial officer

and principal accounting officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Date March 12 2010 By Is MICHAEL FERRO JR

Michael Ferro Jr

Chairman of the Board

Date March 12 2010 By /s DENNIS BROWN

Dennis Brown

Director

Date March 12 2010 By /s JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive QfjIcer and Director

Date March 12 2010 By /s GREGG HARTEMAYER

Gregg Hartemayer

Director

Date March 12 2010 By /s RICHARD RECK

Richard Reck

Director

Date March 12 2010 By /s NEELE STEARNS JR

Neele Stearns Jr

Director
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Exhibit 21

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Subsidiaries as of March 12 2010

Organized

Subsidiary Under the Laws of

Cedara Software Corp Ontario Canada

Cedara Software Shanghai Co Ltd China

Cedara Software USA Ltd Delaware

Confirma Europe GmbH Germany

Confirma Europe LLC Washington

etrials Inc Delaware

etrials Worldwide Limited United Kingdom

Medical Imaging Education LLC Washington

Merge Asset Management Corp Delaware

Merge CAD Inc Delaware

Merge Cedara ExchangeCo Limited Ontario Canada

Merge eClinical Inc Delaware

Merge eMed Inc Delaware

Merge Healthcare Teleradiology Services India Private Limited India

Merge Technologies Holdings Co Nova Scotia Canada

Project Ready Corp Delaware

Requisite Software Inc Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Milwaukee Wisconsin

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 Nos 333-

125603 333-161689 and 333-161691 and Form S-8 Nos 333-34884 333-100104 333-107997 333-40882 333-

107991 and 333-1253 86 of Merge Healthcare Incorporated of our reports dated March 12 2010 relating to the

consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of Merge Healthcare Incorporateds internal control over

financial reporting which appear in this Form 10-K

Is BDO Seidman LLP

Milwaukee Wisconsin

March 12 2010
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Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements Nos 33334884 333100104

333107997 33340832 333-40882 333107991 333125386 on FormS8 and Nos 333125603 333

161689 333161691 on Form S3 of Merge Healthcare Incorporated of our report dated March 31 2008 with

respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Merge Healthcare Incorporated and subsidiaries the Company as of

December 31 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity

comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the years in the threeyear period ended December 31 2007 which

report appears in this December 31 2009 Annual Report on Form 0K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Our report on the consolidated financial statements refers to the adoption of the provisions of Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 123 revised 2004 ShareBased Payment on January 2006 and the

adoption of the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No 48 Accounting Jbr

Uncertainty in Income Taxes on January 2007

Our report on the consolidated financial statements also refers to the assumption that the Company will

continue as going concern The Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows

that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern The consolidated financial statements do

not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 12 2010
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Justin Dearborn certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain
any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as

of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 51 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 12 2010

Is JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002

Steven Oreskovich certif that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifing officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants Board of Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 12 2010

Is STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal accounting officer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED Company on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 as filed with the SEC on the date hereof Report Justin Dearborn

as principal executive officer of the Company and Steven Oreskovich as principal financial officer of the

Company each hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of their knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date March 12 2010 By Is JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive ojjicer

Date March 12 2010 By /s STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial ofjIcer

and principal accounting officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall

not be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K/A

Amendment No

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-29486

MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED
Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware 39-1600938

State or other jurisdiction Employer Identification No
of incorporation or organization

6737 West Washington Street Suite 2250 Milwaukee Wisconsin 53214-5650

Address of principal executive offices including zip code

Registrants telephone number including area code 414 977-4000

Securities registered under Section 12b of the Exchange Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock $0.01 par value per share NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered under Section 12g of the Exchange Act NONE

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

YesD NoII

Indicate by check mark if the Registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the Act

Yes No
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports and

has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not

be contained to the best of Registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of

this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer or non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See the definitions of accelerated filers large accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of

the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is shell company as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Act Yes No

The aggregate market value for the Registrants voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the Registrant as of

June 30 2009 based upon the closing sale price of the Common Stock on June 30 2009 as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market was

approximately $116910210 Shares of Common Stock held by each officer and director and by each person who owns ten percent or

more of the outstanding Common Stock have been excluded in that such persons may be deemed to be affiliates This determination of

affiliate status is not necessarily conclusive determination for other purposes

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrants common stock par value $0.01 per share as of March 10 2010 75228395



EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Form 0KIA Amendment No is being filed by Merge Healthcare Incorporated Merge we
us or our to amend our Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended December 31 2009 filed with the

United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC on March 12 2010 to reflect changes to the audit

report originally reissued by KPMG LLP in connection with the filing of our Form 0K Except for the audit

report of KPMG LLP and their consent included in Exhibit 23.2 no other changes have been made to our Form

0K Also this Form 0K/A has not been updated to reflect events that occurred after the date of the original

annual report As such this Form 0K/A should be read in conjunction with our Form 0K filing made with

the SEC on March 12 2010

Updated certifications of our principal executive and financial officer are included as exhibits to this

amendment



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED

March 17 2010 /s/ Steven Oreskovich

By Steven Oreskovich

Title Chief Financial Officer



PART

Item FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

THE FORM 10-K/A AMENDMENT NO FILED WITH THE SEC ON MARCH 17 2010

INCLUDED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTES

THERETO AND THE AUDIT REPORT AND CONSENT OF BDO SEIDMAN LLP AS ALSO
FILED WITH THE FORM 10-K FILED WITH THE SEC ON MARCH 12 2010 DUE TO THiS

FACT AND IN THE INTERESTS OF LOWERING THE COSTS AND ENVIRONMENTAL

IMPACT ASSOCIATED WITH THE REPEAT PRINTING OF SAID CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANYING NOTES THERETO AND THE AUDIT

REPORT AND CONSENT OF BDO SEIDMAN LLP THESE HAVE BEEN INTENTIONALLY
OMITTED FROM THIS FORM 10-K/A AMENDMENT NO.1



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity

comprehensive loss and cash flows of Merge Healthcare Incorporated and subsidiaries the Company for the year

ended December 31 2007 These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board Untied States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material

respects the statements of operations and cash flows of the Company for the year ended December 31 2007 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We were not engaged to audit review or apply any procedures to the adjustments to retrospectively apply

the changes in segment disclosures described in note and note 16 and accordingly we do not express an opinion

or any other form of assurance about whether such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied

Those adjustments were audited by successor auditor

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will

continue as going concern As discussed in note to the consolidated financial statements included in the Form

10-K for the annual period ended December 31 2007 the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations

and negative cash flows that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern Managements

plans in regard to these matters are also described in note The consolidated financial statements do not include

any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 31 2008



Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors

Merge Healthcare Incorporated

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements Nos 33334884 333100 104

333107997 333-40832 33340882 333107991 333125386 on Form S8 and Nos 333125603 333-161691

333-161689 on Form S3 of Merge Healthcare Incorporated of our report dated March 31 2008 with respect to the

consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity comprehensive loss and cash flows of Merge

Healthcare Incorporated and subsidiaries the Company for the year ended December 31 2007 which report

appears in this December 31 2009 Annual Report on Form 10K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Our report on the consolidated financial statements also refers to the assumption that the Company will

continue as going concern The Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and negative cash flows

that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as going concern The consolidated financial statements do

not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 12 2010



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Justin Dearborn certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as

of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over

financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the

period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of

the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants

internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process
summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 17 2010

/5/ JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive offIcer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Steven Oreskovich certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd- 15f for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those

entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in

this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially

affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants Board of Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 17 2010

/5/ STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal accounting officer



Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED Company on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 as filed with the SEC on the date hereof Report Justin Dearborn

as principal executive officer of the Company and Steven Oreskovich as principal financial officer of the

Company each hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of their knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the

financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Date March 17 2010 By Is JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive officer

Date March 17 2010 By /s STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer

and principal accounting officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall

not be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended



UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549
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Amendment No
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SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31 2009

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-29486

MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED
Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter

Delaware 39-1600938

State or other jurisdiction Employer Identification No
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Securities registered under Section 12b of the Exchange Act
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filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes IXI No
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No on Form 10-KJA is being filed by Merge Healthcare Incorporated Merge Healthcare

we us or our to provide the disclosure required by Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009 filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC on March 12 2010 as

amended March 17 2010 Amendment No No other changes have been made to our Form 10-K except for the

required disclosure provided for Part III This Form 10-KIA should be read in conjunction with our Form 10-K filing made

with the SEC on March 12 2010 and with our Form 10-K/A Amendment No filing made with the SEC on March 17

2010 This Form 0-K/A has not been updated to reflect events that occurred after the date of the original Annual Report on

Form 10-K and Amendment No thereto

Updated certifications of our principal executive and financial officer are included as exhibits to this Amendment

No.2



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

MERGE HEALTUCARE INCORPORATED

April 30 2010 Is Justin Dearborn

By Justin Dearborn

Title Chief Executive Officer

principal executive offIcer

April 30 2010 Is Steven Oreskovich

By Steven Oreskovich

Title Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer

and principal accounting officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

April 30 2010 Is Michael Ferro Jr

By Michael Ferro Jr

Chairman of the Board

April 30 2010 Is Dennis Brown

By Dennis Brown

Chairman of the Board

April 30 2010 Is Justin Dearborn

By Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer and Director

April 30 2010 Is Gregg Hartemayer

By Gregg Hartemayer

Director

April 30 2010 Is Richard Reck

By Richard Reck

Director

April 30 2010 Is Neele Steams Jr

By Neele Stearns Jr

Director



Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The following table lists the names of the six current Directors their respective ages and positions with us followed

by brief biography of each individual including their business experience during the past five years

Name Age Position

Dennis Brown 62 Director

Justin Dearborn 40 Director and Chief Executive Officer

Michael Ferro Jr 43 Chairman of Board

Gregg Hartemayer 57 Director

Richard Reck 60 Director

Neele Stearns Jr 74 Director

Dennis Brown presently serves as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Karls Event Rental

Inc and previously served as vice president of finance chief financial officer and treasurer of Apogent Technologies Inc

which we refer to as Apogent New York Stock Exchange company from January 2003 to December 2004 Fisher

Scientific International Inc acquired Apogent in August 2004 and after completion of transition period Mr Brown

retired from Apogent in December 2004 From December 2000 through January 2003 Mr Brown served as financial

consultant to Apogent Mr Brown also served as vice president of finance chief financial officer and treasurer of

Apogents predecessor Sybron International Corporation which we refer to as Sybron publicly traded company

formerly headquartered in Milwaukee Wisconsin from January 1993 through December 2000 at which time Sybrons

life sciences group was relocated to Portsmouth New Hampshire and Sybron was renamed Apogent Mr Brown is

Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants England Mr Brown has served on our Board since

May 2003 and previously served on our Board from the date of our initial public offering in February 1998 until

May 2000 The Board of Directors the Board has concluded that Mr Brown should be Director of Merge

Healthcare because of his extensive industry experience including being vice president of finance chief financial officer

and treasurer of Apogent

Justin Dearborn served as managing director and general counsel of Merrick Ventures LLC with its operating

entities and affiliates are referred to collectively to as Merrick Ventures from January 2007 until his appointment as

Chief Executive Officer of Merge Healthcare on June 2008 Prior to joining Merrick Ventures Mr Dearborn worked

over nine years for Click Commerce Inc which we refer to as Click Commerce publicly traded software and

services company that was acquired by Illinois Tool Works Inc ITW in October 2006 From May 2003 until May
2005 Mr Dearborn served as vice president of Corporate Legal Affairs and Human Resources at Click

Commerce Mr Dearborn was appointed corporate secretary of Click Commerce on May 2003 Prior to Click

Commerce Mr Dearborn worked at Motorola Inc where he specialized in intellectual property transactions and also

held management positions in Motorolas Semiconductor and Corporate Groups Mr Dearborn and holds B.A from

Illinois State University and J.D from DePaul University He has practiced law in the state of Illinois but no longer

holds license to practice law Mr Dearborn has served on our Board since his appointment as Chief Executive Officer

of Merge Healthcare on June 2008 The Board has concluded that Mr Dearborn should be Director of Merge

Healthcare because of his diverse experience in operational financial and legal roles

Michael Ferro Jr has served as Director and Chairman of our Board since June 2008 Since May 2007
Mr Ferro has served as chairman and chief executive officer of Merrick Ventures private investment firm From

June 1996 until October 2006 Mr Ferro served as chief executive officer and chairman of the board of Click

Commerce Mr Ferro is currently member of the board of trustees of the Chicago Museum of Science and Industry the

Field Museum the Joffrey Ballet Northwestern University and the Lyric Opera of Chicago He also serves on the boards

of directors of the Chicago Community Trust Childrens Memorial Hospital Northwestern Memorial Foundation Big

Shoulders Foundation and AfterSchool Matters Mr Ferro holds B.A from the University of Illinois The Board has

concluded that Mr Ferro should be Director of Merge Healthcare because of his extensive experience in investing in

and advising public and private companies Additionally his and Merricks significant stock ownership in Merge

Healthcare aligns his interests with those of other stockholders



Gregg Hartemayer has served as Director of our Board since June 2008 and is member of our Audit

Nominating and Governance Committee and our Compensation Committee Since May 2007 Mr 1-lartemayer has served

as special advisor to Merrick Ventures Prior to his association with Merrick Ventures he served in various capacities

at Arthur Anderson LLP and its then affiliate Accenture for 28 years
Mr Hartemayer retired from Accenture in

February 2004 where he was chief executive for Global Technology Outsourcing and Global Delivery Mr Hartemayer

holds an M.B.A and B.A in Mathematics from the University of Michigan The Board has concluded that

Mr Hartemayer should be Director of Merge Healthcare because of his demonstrated financial experience with Arthur

Anderson LLP and Accenture Mr Hartemayers public accounting experience is also beneficial to Merge Healthcare

Richard Reck is the president of Business Strategy Advisors LLC business strategy consulting firm and has served

in such capacity since August 2002 Mr Reck joined the certified public accounting firm of KPMG LLP in June 1973

and remained employed there until his retirement as partner in July 2002 He currently serves on the boards of

Interactive Intelligence Inc publicly held software company and Advanced Life Sciences Holdings Inc publicly

held biopharmaceutical company as well as the boards of several private and notfor-profit entities Mr Reck is

certified public accountant and holds B.A in Mathematics from DePauw University and an M.B.A in Accounting from

the University of Michigan Mr Reck has served as Director of our Board since April 2003 The Board has concluded

that Mr Reck should be Director of Merge Healthcare because of his financial and executive experience with the above

entities and other experience as member of the board of directors of other public and private entities

Neele Stearns Jr has served as Director of our Board since June 2008 and is Chair of our Audit

Committee Since February 2001 Mr Stearns has served as chairman of Financial Investments Corporation private

equity investment firm From July 2004 to April 2007 he also served as the chief executive officer of Boulevard

Healthcare LLC an owner and operator of nursing homes of which he is still chairman From September 15 2003 to

January 15 2004 Mr Stearns took leave of absence from Financial Investments Corporation to serve as interim

chairman and chief executive officer of Footstar Inc In March 2004 Footstar filed for U.S Chapter 11 bankruptcy at

which time Mr Stearns remained as director of Footstar Inc until it emerged from bankruptcy in February 2006

Previously Mr Stearns was chairman of the Board of Wallace Computer Services Inc then provider of printed

products and print management services from January 2000 through November 2000 as well as serving as director from

1996 until its sale to Moore Corporation Limited in 2003 Prior to 1995 he was president and chief executive officer of

CC Industries Inc diversified holding company Mr Stearns served on the board of Maytag Corporation from 1989

through its sale to Whirlpool Corporation in March 2006 Mr Stearns holds an M.B.A from Harvard Business School

and B.A in Economics from Carleton College The Board has concluded that Mr Stearns should be Director of

Merge Healthcare because of his significant executive experience referred to above

Role and Composition of the Board of Directors

General The Board which is elected by the shareholders is the ultimate decisionmaking body of Merge Healthcare

except with respect to those matters reserved to the shareholders It selects the Chief Executive Officer and other

members of the senior management team which senior management team is charged with the conduct of Merge

Healthcares business Having selected the senior management team the Board acts as an advisor and counselor to senior

management and ultimately monitors its performance The function of the Board to monitor the performance of senior

management is facilitated by the presence of outside Directors of stature who have substantive knowledge of Merge

Healthcares business

Our business property and affairs are managed under the direction of our Board Members of our Board are kept

informed of our business through discussions with our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and other officers by

reviewing materials provided to them by visiting our offices and by participating in meetings of the Board and its

Committees

In 2009 the Board met thirteen 13 times and had three Committees the Audit Committee the Nominating and

Governance Committee and the Compensation Committee All of the Directors attended at least seventy five percent

75% of the meetings of the Board and at least seventy five percent 75% of the meetings of all committees on which

they served in 2009

It is the general policy of Merge Healthcare that all major decisions be considered by the Board as whole As

consequence the Committee structure of the Board is limited to those Committees considered to be basic to or required

for the operation of publicly owned company Currently these Committees are the Audit Committee Compensation



Committee and the Nominating and Governance Committee The membership of these Committees is rotated from time

to time

Selection Criteria Although neither the Nominating and Governance Committee nor the Board has diversity policy

the Board is committed to diversified membership in terms of both the individuals involved and their various

experiences and areas of expertise The Nominating and Governance Committee has not established specific minimum

age education years of business experience or specific types of skills for potential director candidates but in general

expects qualified candidates will have ample experience and proven record of business success and

leadership Candidates are selected by the Nominating and Govemance Committee for among other things their

integrity independence diversity of experience leadership and their ability to exercise sound judgment Final approval

of candidate is determined by the full Board The Nominating and Governance Committee considers candidates

suggested by our shareholders for election as Director provided that the recommendations are made according to the

procedures required under our Bylaws Shareholder nominees whose nominations comply with these procedures will be

evaluated by the Nominating and Governance Committee in the same manner as the Nominating and Governance

Committees nominees

Director Compensation The Nominating and Governance Committee makes recommendations to the Board regarding

the compensation of Directors

Executive Sessions Executive sessions or meetings of outside Directors without management present are held regularly

at the Boards discretion and consistent with NASDAQ Global Market Rules

Merge Healthcares Code of Ethics

All of our employees including the Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer our Controllers and persons

performing similar functions including all Directors and employees are required to abide by Merge Healthcares Code of

Ethics to ensure that our business is conducted in consistently legal and ethical manner This Code of Ethics along with

our Whistleblower Policy form the foundation of comprehensive process that includes compliance with all corporate

policies and procedures an open relationship among colleagues that contributes to good business conduct and the high

integrity level of our employees Our policies and procedures cover all areas of professional conduct including

employment policies conflicts of interest intellectual property and the protection of confidential information as well as

strict adherence to all laws and regulations applicable to the conduct of our business

Employees are required to report any conduct that they believe in good faith to be an actual or apparent violation of

Merge Healthcares Code of Ethics The SarbanesOxley Act of 2002 requires audit committees to have procedures to

receive retain and treat complaints received regarding accounting internal accounting controls or auditing matters and to

allow for the confidential and anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or

auditing matters We have such procedures in place as set forth in the Merge Healthcare Incorporated Whistleblower

Policy and the Code of Ethics

Both our Code of Ethics and our Whistleblower Policy are available to our shareholders on our web site at

www.merge.comlabout/governance.aspx and in print To request copies of these documents make such request in

writing to the General Counsel and Corporate Secretary Merge Healthcare Incorporated 6737 West Washington Street

Suite 2250 Milwaukee Wisconsin 532145650 Future material amendments relating to the Code of Ethics and/or the

Whistleblower Policy will be disclosed on our web site



Committee Membership

The table below provides 2009 membership and meeting information for each of the Board Committees

Nominating and

Name Audit Compensation Governance

Dennis Brown

Justin Dearborn

Michael Ferro Jr

Richard Reck

Gregg Hartemayer

Neele Stearns Jr XK

Represents Committee Chairperson

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is comprised of entirely independent Directors in accordance with the listing standards of the

NASDAQ Global Market and applicable rules of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

Commission Under its Charter the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing with the independent registered

public accounting firm and management the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting The

Audit Committee reviews and consults with management and the independent registered public accounting firm on

matters related to the annual audit the published financial statements earnings releases and the accounting principles

applied The Audit Committee is also responsible for appointing retaining and evaluating Merge Healthcares

independent public accounting firm The Committee is directly responsible for the compensation retention and oversight

of Merge Healthcares independent public accounting firm and evaluates the independent public accounting firms

qualifications performance and independence The Committee reviews reports from management relating to the status of

compliance with laws regulations and internal procedures The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing and

discussing with management Merge Healthcares policies with respect to risk assessment and risk management

The Audit Committee Charter is available on our website at www.merge.com/about/governance.aspx and in print upon

request The Audit Committee met thirteen 13 times in 2009

The Board has determined that each of the members of the Audit Committee is an audit committee financial expert for

purposes of the Commissions rules

The Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent Directors in accordance with the listing standards of

the NASDAQ Global Market and each Committee member is nonemployee director as defined in Rule 6b3 under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Exchange Act and is an outside director as defined in Section

162m of the Internal Revenue Code The Committee determines Merge Healthcares compensation philosophy and

oversees and administers Merge Healthcares executive compensation programs Its responsibilities also include

overseeing Merge Healthcares compensation and benefit plans and policies administering its stock plans including

reviewing and approving equity grants and reviewing and approving annually all compensation programs for Merge

Healthcares executive officers

The Compensation Committee Charter is available on our website at www.merge.com/aboutlgovemance.aspx and in print

upon request The Compensation Committee met five times in 2009

The Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is comprised entirely of independent Directors Under the terms of its

Charter the Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for matters of corporate governance and matters

relating to the practices policies and procedures of the Board This includes identifying recruiting and recommending

director candidates as well as considering nominees recommended by shareholders The Committee is responsible for



recommending corporate governance guidelines and otherwise taking leadership role in shaping the corporate

governance of Merge Healthcare

The Committee advises on the structure of Board meetings and recommends matters for consideration by the Board The

Committee also advises on and recommends director compensation which is ultimately approved by the full Board

The Nominating and Governance Committee Charter is available on our website at www.merge.com/about

governance.aspx and in print upon request The Nominating and Governance Committee did not convene in 2009

During the last year there have not been any material changes to the procedures by which shareholders may recommend

nominees to Merge Healthcares Board

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During fiscal 2009 and as of the date hereof none of the members of the Compensation Committee was or is an officer or

employee of Merge Healthcare and no executive officer of Merge Healthcare served or serves on the Compensation

Committee or Board of any company that employed or employs any member of Merge Healthcares Compensation

Committee or Board

MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers

The names of our current executive officers and their respective ages and positions are as follows

Name Age Position

Justin Dearborn 40 Chief Executive Officer Director

Nancy Koenig 45 President Merge Fusion

Ann MaybenyFrench 49 General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Steven Oreskovich 38 Chief Financial Officer

Antonia Wells 51 President Merge OEM

Mr Dearborns biography appears above under the heading Board of Directors

Nancy Koenig was appointed President of Merge Fusion in June of 2008 Ms Koenig comes to Merge Healthcare

from Merrick Healthcare Solutions Merrick Ventures portfolio company where she served as its chief executive

officer Prior to joining Merrick Ventures in the fall of 2007 Ms Koenig was the president of Click Commerce during its

integration as subsidiary of ITW Ms Koenig joined Click Commerce in 1999 as the director of business consulting

and held various positions including serving as the head of Click Commerces European Operations its vice president of

Product Operations and Marketing and its executive vice president Operations Ms Koenig became Click Commerces

president in 2006

Ann MayberryFrench was appointed General Counsel and Corporate Secretary in August of 2008 Ms Mayberry
French comes to Merge Healthcare from Modine Manufacturing Company where she served as senior counsel Prior to

joining Modine Manufacturing Company Ms MaybenyFrench was the general counsel and secretary of Assurant

Health for seven years Ms MayberiyFrench has over 27 years of experience in the healthcare and health insurance

industry including business management of managed care services and federal government contracting Ms Mayberry
French is Registered Nurse and has been licensed to practice law in Kentucky Ohio and Wisconsin She currently

maintains license to practice only in Wisconsin but is also admitted in Ohio and Kentucky

Steven Oreskovich was appointed Chief Financial Officer in June 2008 Prior to his appointment as Chief Financial

Officer Mr Oreskovich served as our Vice President of Internal Audit since January 2007 as our Chief Accounting

Officer and interim Treasurer and interim Secretary from July 2006 to January 2007 and as our Vice President and

Corporate Controller from April 2004 to July 2006 Prior to joining our Company Mr Oreskovich served as vice

president of finance and operations at Tmis Inc company that provided customer intelligence solutions for business

tobusiness enterprises from April 2000 to January 2003 Prior to that Mr Oreskovich worked as an auditor at



PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP from September 1994 to April 2000 Mr Oreskovich holds B.S degree in Accounting

from Marquette University and is C.P.A

Antonia Wells was appointed President of Merge OEM in June 2008 Prior to her appointment as President Merge

OEM Ms Wells served as Merge OEM Vice President of Customer Operations since June 2005 Since joining us in

1999 Ms Wells has been responsible for Merge OEMs contract management quality/regulatory affairs manufacturing

order management professional services and internal infrastructure Ms Wells has over 25 years of business

management experience including leadership roles in IT enterprise system implementation process reengineering and

human resources

SECTION 16a BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16a of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers members of our Board and persons who own more

than ten percent 10% of registered class of our equity securities to file initial statements of beneficial ownership

Form and statements of changes in beneficial ownership Forms or The Commission requires executive officers

directors and greater than ten percent 10% shareholders to furnish us with copies of all these forms filed with the

Commission

To our knowledge based solely upon our review of the copies of these forms received by us or written representations

from certain reporting persons that no additional forms were required for those persons we believe that all of our

executive officers and Directors complied with their reporting obligations during 2009 with the exception that one late

Form which was filed on February 26 2009 on behalf of Merrick RIS LLC and Michael Ferro Jr jointly with

respect to purchase made on February 23 2009

Item 11 Executive Compensation

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

This item describes our executive compensation program for 2009 and certain elements of the 2010 program We use this

program to attract motivate and retain colleagues whom the Board has selected to lead our business

This section of the Annual Report explains how the Compensation Committee made its compensation decisions for our

officers who also comprise our named executive officers Those Named Executive Officers are our Chief Executive

Officer Justin Dearborn our President Merge Fusion Nancy Koenig our Vice President General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary Ann MayberryFrench our Chief Financial Officer Steven Oreskovich and our President

Merge OEM Antonia Wells

MARKET AND BUSINESS CONDITIONS

Although the global economy rebounded somewhat toward the end of 2009 our business remained affected by the

downturn that started in 2008 Healthcare in particular showed country-by-country challenges and opportunities as

direct result of the local government investment In 2009 our major market the U.S passed dramatic healthcare

legislation intended to spark new investment in health IT While it originally served to freeze the market as elements of

the legislation were further defined market conditions improved toward the end of 2009 and major market segments are

forecasted for growth in 2010 onward At the same time legislation aimed at reducing reimbursement to our customers

hindered their ability to invest in our solutions Merge Healthcare improved its financial position during the second half

of 2008 and continued to grow top line revenue throughout 2009 Management successfully limited overhead while

growing revenue in order to improve our financial strength and sustain future performance In 2009 we continued to

operate two operational units Indirect selling customized software solutions to original equipment manufacturers in the

healthcare information technology industry CAD solutions and Merge solutions internationally and Direct selling

software solutions to endusers such as radiologists diagnostic imaging centers and hospitals as well as clinical trials

solutions to pharmaceutical companies and CROs These business units are focused on providing software solutions in

the health care market space Our business structure is designed to provide each global business unit with the authority

and accountability to make decisions as part of the overall Merge Healthcare global business quickly and with agility



in the best interest of its stakeholders including our customers We believe this business model has contributed to

improved performance and increased shareholder value

PHILOSOPHY AND GOALS OF OUR EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM

Compensation Philosophy

The primary objectives of our executive compensation policies are as follows

to attract and retain talented executives by providing compensation that is in alignment with the

compensation provided to executives at companies of comparable size and growth trajectory in the health

care information technology industry while maintaining compensation within levels that are consistent with

our annual budget financial objectives and operating performance and

to provide appropriate incentives for executives to work toward the achievement of our annual financial

performance and business goals based primarily on diluted earnings per share

Our incentive compensation programs are designed to reward executive and other employee contributions based on the

success of our organization Specifically they are designed to reward achievement of our annual financial performance

and business goals and creation of shareholder value

Compensation Mix

Historically we have used mix of shortterm compensation base salaries and annual cash incentive bonuses and long
term compensation stock option grants and restricted stock awards to meet the objectives of our compensation

programs We do not have fixed policy for allocating between longterm and shortterm compensation or between cash

and noncash compensation Because we believe that it is important to align the interests of our executives with those of

our shareholders equity incentive compensation has made up portion of each current executives overall compensation

package In the near term we plan to continue to use primarily shortterm compensation base salaries and annual cash

incentive bonuses as well as longterm compensation as appropriate

The compensation that we pay our Named Executive Officers consists of base salary cash incentive compensation and

stock option awards The following discussion explains the reason we pay each element of compensation how the

amount of each element is determined and how each element fits into our overall compensation philosophy and affects

decisions regarding other elements

We seek to pay executives base salary in alignment with salaries of executives at companies of comparable position in

the healthcare information technology industry and at rate that fits within our annual budget financial objectives and

operating performance We have not historically attempted to make base salary certain percentage of total

compensation

In light of the Companys 2009 annual performance and the public sentiment regarding corporate bonus payouts for

substandard annual corporate performance the Compensation Committee determined that Merge Healthcares

performance did not warrant cash incentive payments for 2009

In early 2010 the Compensation Committee established targets for bonuses for Merge Healthcares Named Executive

Officers However due to the Companys acquisition of AMICAS Inc such targets are no longer in effect The

Company intends to report the new targets for 2010 bonuses in Current Report on Form 8-K once such targets have

been determined

Role of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee of our Board is responsible for administering our compensation practices and ensuring

they are designed to drive corporate performance Our Compensation Committee reviews compensation policies

affecting our executive officers annually taking into consideration our financial performance our position within the

health care information technology industry the executive compensation policies of similar companies in similar

industries and when reviewing individual compensation levels certain individual factors including the executives level

10



of experience and responsibility and the personal contribution that the individual has made to our success Further our

Compensation Committee also considers the global economic trends and the macroeconomic environment

Annually our Compensation Committee reviews the base salaries of all executive officers and based on these reviews

may adjust these salaries to ensure external competitiveness and to reflect the executives individual position and

performance as well as the performance of our Company In addition to these factors our Compensation Committee

considers the recommendations of our Chief Executive Officer when adjusting base salaries of our Named Executive

Officers other than himself We may also make base salary adjustments during the year if the scope of an executive

officers responsibility changes relative to the other executives

Modifications To Our Executive Compensation Program

The Committee continues to focus its efforts to refine the executive compensation structure and process consistent with

evolving good governance practices

Beginning in June 2008 in connection with the investment by Merrick RIS LLC Merrick in our Company several

changes occurred in the makeup of our senior management team Specifically effective on the closing of the Merrick

investment Mr Dearborn became our Chief Executive Officer Mr Oreskovich became our Chief Financial Officer

Ms Koenig became our President of Merge Fusion and Ms Wells became our President of Merge OEM In connection

with these changes the Compensation Committee proposed and the Board accepted several modifications to our

executive officer and director compensation programs to ensure that we offer competitive compensation that will help us

to retain our executive officers and to reflect the views of the current members of our Board and the Compensation

Committee on appropriate compensation structures

During 2008 we also implemented different director compensation program than previously utilized for our Directors

as set forth in the Director compensation discussion

We have entered into employment agreements with four Named Executive Officers Mr Dearborn Ms Koenig

Mr Oreskovich and Ms Wells The agreements formalize and confirm the base compensation target annual bonus

amounts and the stock option grants that we agreed to in connection with the hiring of Mr Dearborn and Ms Koenig and

Mr Oreskovichs and Ms Wells promotions The agreements provide for twelve 12 months base salary as severance

upon termination other than for cause or other than due to the executive officers death or disability conditioned on the

executive officers execution of release agreement The agreements do not include definition of cause In addition

upon change of control of Merge Healthcare all of the executive officers stock options will vest We proposed the

amounts of these severance benefits and the triggering events based on the subjective judgments and experiences of the

members of the Compensation Committee indicating that these amounts are consistent with market practice and that the

triggering events are likely to involve circumstances in which it is customary and appropriate to offer the protections

embodied in the employment agreements

We established the terms of the compensation arrangements with four of our Named Executive Officers at the time of

the closing of the Merrick investment as noted above Under the employment agreements Mr Dearborn receives an

annual base salary of $250000 and has target annual bonus equal to his base salary Ms Koenig receives an annual

base salary of $200000 and has target annual bonus equal to her base salary Ms Wells receives an annual base salary

of CAD$200000 and has target annual bonus equal to her annual base salary Mr Oreskovich receives an annual base

salary of $200000 and has target annual bonus equal to 50% of his annual base salary The compensation arrangement

for Ms MayberryFrench was determined upon her date of hire Those arrangements are as follows Ms Mayberry

French was hired at an annual salary of $150000 and received salary increase effective on January 2009 due to

additional responsibility for the Human Resources function of Merge Healthcare Ms MaybenyFrench now receives an

annual salary of $160000 and has target annual bonus of thirty five percent 5% of her base salary Achievement of

bonus for each of the current executive officers is tied to factors defined by the Compensation Committee for the 2009

annual bonus program and could result in bonus amount that is more or less than the targeted bonus

Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

We separate the roles of Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors in recognition of the differences

between the two roles The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for setting the strategic direction for the Company and

the day to day leadership and performance of the Company while the Chairman of the Board of Directors provides
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guidance to the Chief Executive Officer and sets the agenda for Board meetings and presides over meetings of the full

Board We also believe that separation of the positions reinforces the independence of the Board in its oversight of the

business and affairs of the Company and creates an environment that is more conducive to objective evaluation and

oversight of managements performance increasing management accountability and improving the ability of the Board to

monitor whether managements actions are in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders We do not have

lead independent director

The Boards role in the Companys risk oversight process includes receiving regular reports from members of senior

management on areas of material risk to the Company including operational financial legal and regulatory and strategic

and reputational risks The full Board or the appropriate committee in the case of risks that are under the purview of

particular committee receives these reports to enable it to understand our risk identification risk management and risk

mitigation strategies The Companys Compensation Committee is responsible for overseeing the management of risks

relating to the Companys executive compensation plans and arrangements The Audit Committee oversees management

of financial risks The Nominating and Governance Committee manages risks associated with the independence of the

Board and potential conflicts of interest While each committee is responsible for evaluating certain risks and overseeing

the management of such risks the entire Board is regularly informed of such risks through committee reports at the Board

meeting following given committee meeting This enables the Board and its committees to coordinate the risk oversight

role particularly with respect to risk interrelationships

In addition to the Companys formal compliance program the Board encourages management to promote corporate

culture that understands risk management and incorporates it into the overall corporate strategy and day-to-day business

operations The Companys risk management structure also includes an ongoing effort to assess and analyze the most

likely areas of future risk for the Company As result the Board and its committees periodically asks the Companys
executives to discuss the most likely sources of material future risks and how the Company is addressing any significant

potential vulnerability The Company has reviewed its compensation policies and practices for its employees and does not

believe such policies and practices are reasonably likely to have material adverse effect on the Company

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by Item

402b of Regulation SK set forth above with management and based on such review and discussions the

Compensation Committee recommended to our Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this

Proxy Statement

The Compensation Committee

Dennis Brown Chairperson

Gregg Hartemayer

Richard Reck
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COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Summary Compensation Tables

The following table relates to the compensation earned by our current Named Executive Officers for the fiscal years

ended December 31 2007 2008 and 2009

Non Equity

Stock Option Incentive Plan All Other

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awardst2 Awards Compensation3 Compensation Total

Position Year

Justin Dearborn4 2009 250000 17453 267453

Chief Executive Officer 2008 143109 37880 70l8 188007

Steven Oreskovich6t 2009 200000 14475 214475

ChiefFinancialOfficer 2008 189583 26343 183051 10222 389199

and Treasurer 2007 175000 130000 2734 165166 5469 95l4 487883

Nancy Koenig4 2009 200000 4687 204687

President Merge Fusion 2008 114487 11203 2236 127926

Antonia Wells7 2009 199123 112238 205931

President Merge OEM 2008 160474 26343 68390 59758 261182

Ann Mayberry 2009 160.000 15535 175535

French9 2008 60288 7737 4882 72907

Vice President General

Counsel Corporate

Secretary

For 2007 reflects retention bonus of $105000 for Mr Oreskovich and discretionary bonus of $25000 for Mr Oreskovich

Our Named Executive Officers were not granted any stock or option awards in the fiscal year ended December 31 2009 The

dollar amounts for the awards represent the grant-date value calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 718 FASB ASC 718 for each Named Executive Officer

Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are included in Note to our audited financial statements for the fiscal year

ended December 31 2009 included in our Annual Report on Form 10K filed with the Commission on March 12 2010 as

amended March 17 2010

Represents the cash incentive award earned under our 2007 performancebased cash bonus plan

Mr Dearborn and Ms Koenig each began employment with us at the consummation of the Merrick transaction effective June

2008

For 2009 represents our matching contribution under our 401k employee retirement savings plan $6510 for Mr Dearborn

$6000 for Mr Oreskovich and $4800 for Ms MayberryFrench and medical dental optical long term disability and life

insurance benefits $10943 for Mr Dearborn $8475 for Mr Oreskovich $4687 for Ms Koenig and $10735 for

Ms MayberryFrench For 2008 represents our matching contribution under our 401k employee retirement savings plan

$1875 for Mr Dearborn $5688 for Mr Oreskovich and $1125 for Ms MayberryFrench and medical dental optical and life

insurance benefits $5143 for Mr Dearborn $4534 for Mr Oreskovich $2236 for Ms Koenig and $3757 for Ms Mayberry

French For 2007 represents our matching contribution under our 40 1k employee retirement savings plan $5250 for

Mr Oreskovich and medical dental optical and life insurance benefits $4264 for Mr Oreskovich

At the consummation of the Merrick transaction effective June 2008 Mr Oreskovich was promoted to the position of Chief

Financial Officer and Treasurer Prior to that time Mr Oreskovich held the position of Vice President of Internal Audit

At the consummation of the Merrick transaction effective June 2008 Ms Wells was promoted to the position of President

Merge OEM Prior to that time Ms Wells held the position of Vice President Customer Operations of our Cedara business

division

For 2009 represents our contribution of $5931 under our Deferred Profit Sharing Plan DPSP for Canadian employees and the

payment of $5292 in medical dental optical and life insurance and related costs for the benefit of Ms Wells For 2008

represents our contribution of $2207 under our Deferred Profit Sharing Plan DPSP for Canadian employees and the payment

of $3768 in medical dental optical and life insurance and related costs for the benefit of Ms Wells

Ms MayberryFrench began her employment with us effective August 2008

13



Grants Of PlanBased Awards For Fiscal Year 2009

Merge Healthcare did not grant any plan-based equity or non-equity awards to its Named Executed Officers in fiscal

2009

Outstanding Equity Awards At 2009 Fiscal YearEnd

The following table contains information concerning equity awards held by our current Named Executive Officers that

were outstanding as of December 31 2009

OPTION AWARDS STOCK AWARDS

Market

Number of Number of Number of Value of

Securities Securities Shares or Shares or

Underlying Underlying Option Units of Units of

Unexercised Unexercised Exercise Option Stock That Stock That

Options Options Price Expiration Have Not Have Not

Name Exercisable Unexercisable Date Vested Vested $2

Justin Dearborn 100000 300000 0.68 06/03/2014

50000 150000 1.47 08/18/2014

StevenM.Oreskovich 20000 15.00 04/01/2010 53333 179199

5000 12.96 07/16/2010

35000 17.50 05/31/2011

100000 8.05 09/05/2012

30000 15000 4.99 04/02/2013

50000 150000 0.68 06/03/2014

Nancy Koenig 50000 150000 0.68 06/03/20 14

AntoniaA Wells 25000 17.50 05/31/2011 53333 179199

10000 17.82 10/19/2011

18750 6250 6.34 11/16/2012

11500 17500 4.99 04/02/2013

50000 150000 0.68 06/03/2014

AnnG.MayberryFrench 25000 75000 1.47 08/18/2014

One hundred percent 100% of the restricted stock will vest on November 24 2010

Reflects the value as calculated using the closing market price of our Common Stock as of the last trading day in

fiscal year 2009 December 312009 $3.36

In 2009 none of our Named Executive Officers exercised any of their vested options

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

Description ofAgreements Providing for Potential Payments

Prior to the closing of the investment by Merrick in our Company we had in place agreements that required us to provide

compensation to certain of our executive officers in the event of termination of employment These agreements

generally called for increased payments if the termination of employment occurred in connection with change of

control

With respect to the restricted stock award agreements of Mr Oreskovich and Ms Wells the restrictions lapse and the

restricted stock becomes fully vested upon resignation for good reason as defined in the agreement The agreements
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also provide for the lapse of the restrictions and full vesting upon the executive officers termination of employment

due to disability the executive officers termination of employment by us without cause the executive officers

involuntary termination of employment within 365 days after change in control the executive officers resignation

for good reason within 365 days of change in control or the sale by us of the business unit with respect to which the

Named Executive Officer primarily performs services

number of former officers of Merge Healthcare had employment agreements with the potential for payment of certain

amounts upon termination or change in control However concurrent with the Merrick transaction described below

such former officers entered into severance agreements with us which resulted in us paying lower amount to them upon

their separation from Merge Healthcare For descriptions of the Named Executive Officers employment agreements see

Modifications To Our Executive Compensation Program above

COMPENSATION OF NONEMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Following the Merrick transaction discussed below our nonemployee Directors no longer receive cash

compensation Instead the Directors received stock options which options vest over sixteen equal quarterly increments

and have an exercise price equal to the closing price of Merge Healthcares shares on the date of grant For 2008 our

current Chairman of the Board was awarded an option grant to purchase 400000 shares of our Common Stock our

current Chairman of the Audit Committee was awarded an option grant to purchase 300000 shares of our Common

Stock and each of our other current non-employee Directors were awarded an option grant to purchase 225000 shares of

our Common Stock Our Directors were not granted any option awards in 2009

Director Compensation For Fiscal Year 2009

Our Directors did not receive any cash or equity compensation for their service on the Board in fiscal 2009
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS OF DIRECTORS AT FISCAL YEAR END

The following table contains information concerning equity awards held by our Directors that were outstanding as of

December 31 2009

Option Awards

Aggregate

Exercise Number of

Price of Securities

Number of Securities Option Underlying

Underlying Options Awards Expiration Options

Name Share Date

Dennis Brown 5000 9.78 05/21/2013 295000

10000 16.19 05/20/2014

15000 17.50 06/01/2015

15000 6.59 12/27/2016

10000 5.52 01/30/2017

15000 6.01 05/10/2017

2250002 1.47 08/18/2018

Michael Ferro Jr 400000 0.57 11/19/2018 400000

Gregg Hartemayer 2250002 1.47 08/18/2018 225000

RichardA Reck 411 7.46 04/23/2013 285411

5000 9.78 05/21/2013

10000 16.19 05/20/2014

15000 17.50 06/01/2015

15000 6.59 12/27/2016

15000 6.01 05/10/2017

2250002 1.47 08/18/2018

Neele Stearns Jr 300000 1.47 08/18/2018 300000

All options are fully vested and exercisable with the exception of the options granted on August 19 2008 with an

August 18 2018 expiration date and the options granted on November 20 2008 with November 19 2018

expiration date which options vest and are exercisable as noted below

Options vest in sixteen 16 equal quarterly increments of 14062.5 shares with the first increment vesting on the

date of grant August 19 2008 with subsequent increments vesting on November 30 February 28 May 31 and

August 31 thereafter

Options vest in sixteen 16 equal quarterly increments of 25000 shares with the first increment vesting on the date

of grant November 20 2008 with subsequent increments vesting on February 28 May 31 August 31 and November

30 thereafter

Options vest in sixteen 16 equal quarterly increments of 18750 shares with the first increment vesting on the date

of grant August 19 2008 with subsequent increments vesting on November 30 February 28 May 31 and August 31

thereafter

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table shows as of April 28 2010 the beneficial ownership of shares of our Common Stock by
each person that is known to us to beneficially own or exercise the voting or dispositive control of five percent 5% or

more of our outstanding Common Stock ii each of our Directors and Named Executive Officers and iii all of our

Directors and Named Executive Officers as group Except pursuant to marital property laws or as otherwise indicated

in the footnotes to the table each of the shareholders named below has sole voting and investment power with respect to
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the shares shown as beneficially owned by such shareholder In general person is deemed to be beneficial owner of

security if that person has or shares the power to vote or direct the voting of such security or the power to dispose of or

to direct the disposition of such security person is also deemed to be beneficial owner of any securities of which the

person has the right to acquire the beneficial ownership within sixty 60 days

Shares Beneficially Percentage of Total

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Outstandint

Merrick RIS LLC Michael Ferro Jr.t3 30090137 36.4%

NorthPointe Capital LLCt4 5625779 6.8%

Dennis Brown 594427

Justin Dearborn 290022

Gregg Hartemayer 201140

Nancy Koenig 122160

Ann MayberryFrench 53462

Steven Oreskovicht5 363092

Richard Reck 422549

Neele Stearns Jr 371610

Antonia Wells 244680

All Directors and Named Executive Officers as 32753279 39.6%

Group 10 persons

Less than 1% of outstanding Common Stock

The business address of each beneficial owner who is also Director or Named Executive Officer of Merge Healthcare is do Merge Healthcare

Incorporated 6737 West Washington Street Suite 2250 Milwaukee Wisconsin 532145650 The business address for Merrick RIS LLC is

233 North Michigan Avenue Suite 2330 Chicago Illinois 60601 The business address of NorthPointe Capital LLC is 101 West Big Beaver

Suite 745 Troy Michigan 48084

Share amounts include the following numbers of shares of Common Stock which may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options which are

currently exercisable or exercisable within sixty 60 days of April 28 2010 175000 for Mr Ferro 182.500 for Mr Brown 250000 for

Mr Dearborn 112500 for Mr Hartemayer 100000 for Ms Koenig 25000 for Ms MayberiyFrench 285000 for Mr Oreskovich 172911

for Mr Reck 150000 for Mr Stearns 180000 for Ms Wells and 1632911 for all Directors and Named Executive Officers as group

Merrick RIS LLC also holds 10000 shares of Series Preferred Stock of Merge Healthcare representing
24% of the shares of Series

Preferred Stock issued by Merge Healthcare in connection with its
acquisition

of AMICAS Inc

As reported on Schedule 3G/A filed with the Commission on April 2010 by NorthPointe Capital LLC registered investment advisor of

which NorthPointe Capital LLC has sole voting power with respect to 4508056 of the number of shares beneficially owned and sole

dispositive power with respect to 5625779 of the number of shares beneficially owned

Includes 53333 shares of Restricted Common Stock granted on November 24 2007 which shares shall become 100% vested and non

forfeitable on the third anniversary of the grant date

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN SUMMARY

The following table provides information about the Companys equity compensation plans as of December 31
2009

Number of securities

remaining

available for future

issuance under

equity compensation

Number of securities plans

to be issued upon Weighted-average excluding securities

exercise of exercise price of reflected in the first

outstanding options outstanding options column

Equity compensation plans approved by shareholders 502l995 $3.57 2.593.5062

Equity compensation plans not approved by shareholders
_________ _________

Total 5021995 2593506

Represents outstanding options to purchase the Companys common stock

Represents options available to purchase the Companys common stock under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan
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Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

REVIEW OF RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted written policies and procedures regarding related person transactions For purposes of these

policies and procedures

related person means any of our Directors executive officers nominees for director holder of five

percent 5% or more of our Common Stock or any of their immediate family members and

related person transaction generally is transaction including any indebtedness or guarantee of

indebtedness in which we were or are to be participant and the amount involved exceeds $50000 and in

which related person had or will have direct or indirect material interest

Each of our executive officers Directors or nominees for director is required to disclose certain information relating to

related persons transactions for review approval or ratification by our Audit Committee Disclosure to our Audit

Committee should occur before if possible or as soon as practicable after the related person transaction is effected but in

any event as soon as practicable after the executive officer Director or nominee for director becomes aware of the related

person transaction Our Audit Committees decision whether or not to approve or ratif related person transaction is to

be made in light of its determination that consummation of the transaction is not or was not contrary to the best interests

of Merge Healthcare Any related person transaction must be disclosed to our full Board

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

Software License Agreement with Merrick Healthcare Solutions

Effective March 2009 we entered into software license agreement with Merrick Healthcare Solutions an entity

doing business as Olivia Greets Olivia Greets is wholly owned by Merrick This transaction was approved by the Audit

Committee in accordance with its written policies and procedures regarding related person transactions The revenue

generated by this agreement is estimated to be $400000 exclusive of optional services which may be purchased by

Olivia Greets over its term

Repayment of Merrick Term Note

On November 18 2009 the Company used $18.1 million of the net proceeds from its registered direct public offering of

9084032 shares of its common stock to prepay in full the term note that was held by Merrick RIS LLC Merrick

pursuant to the securities purchase agreement that the Company entered into with Merrick in May of 2008 As result of

the prepayment the Company was required to pay 118% of the outstanding $15.0 million principal of the term note and

accrued and unpaid interest of $395000 Prior to its repayment the term note had an interest rate of 13.0% per annum
and was to become payable in single installment in June 2010 In connection with the prepayment of the term note

Merrick waived certain piggyback registration rights and Michael Ferro Jr agreed not to offer or sell any of the

Companys common stock held by him or any securities convertible into exercisable for or exchangeable or exercisable

for shares of common stock prior to 90 days following November 13 2009 subject to certain exceptions

Merrick beneficially owns as of April 28 2010 36.1% of the Companys outstanding common stock excluding 175000

shares of common stock which may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options which are currently exercisable or

exercisable within sixty 60 days by Michael Ferro Jr. Michael Ferro Jr the Companys Chairman of the

Board and trusts for the benefit of Mr Ferros family members beneficially own majority of the equity interest in

Merrick Mr Ferro also serves as the chairman and chief executive officer of Merrick Accordingly Mr Ferro indirectly

owned and controlled the term note and indirectly owns all of the shares of common stock owned by Merrick In

addition Justin Dearborn the Chief Executive Officer and Director of the Company served as Managing Director and

General Counsel of Merrick Ventures LLC an affiliate of Merrick from January 2007 until his appointment as Chief

Executive Officer on June 2008
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Amendment of Merrick Consulting Agreement

In January of 2009 the Company entered into Consulting Agreement with Merrick which was effective as of January

2009 had one year term and which allowed the Company to take advantage of certain consulting services offered by

Merrick to the Company These services included but were not limited to investor relations financial analysis and

strategic planning Effective on January 2010 the Company and Merrick entered into an amendment to extend the

term of this Consulting Agreement through December 31 2011 and modified the payment terms from flat fee

arrangement per quarter to per transaction or success based arrangement The Audit Committee of the Company

considered the amendment to the Consulting Agreement prior to its execution and approved its terms The fees under the

Consulting Agreement in 2009 were approximately $400000

Merrick Debt and Equity Investment in Connection with our Acquisition of AMICAS Inc

On April 28 2010 Merrick purchased an aggregate principal amount of $5.0 million of the $200 million of 11.75%

senior secured notes due 2015 that we offered in private placement pursuant to Rule l44A and Regulation under the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended The notes purchased by Merrick were purchased at the same purchase price per note

as the other investors in the offering Merrick has agreed for period of 180 days from the closing of the offering not to

without the prior written consent of Morgan Stanley Co Incorporated offer sell or contract to sell or otherwise

dispose of directly or indirectly or announce the offering of the notes purchased by it in the offering

In addition Merrick subscribed for and purchased 1.8 million shares of our common stock at the purchase price of $2.07

per share and 10000 shares of our Series Preferred Stock at the same purchase price as the of $627.40 per share in

private placement to fimd portion of our acquisition of AMICAS Inc The shares of common stock and Series

Preferred Stock purchased by Merrick were purchased at the same purchase price per share as the other investors in the

private placement

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Our Board follows the NASDAQ Global Market Rules regarding the independence of directors The Board recognizes

that independent directors play an important role in assuring investor confidence As such the Board has determined that

each of Messrs Brown Hartemayer Reck and Stearns is independent under the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global

Market

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by BDO Seidman LLP for the audit of Merge

Healthcares annual financial statements for the years ended December 31 2008 and December 31 2009

Audit fees

Auditrelated fees

Tax

All other fees

Total fees

2009 2008

$767814 $337000

$767814 $337000

Audit fees include fees for the annual financial statement audit quarterly reviews comfort letters consents and

review of and assistance with Current Reports on Form 8K In 2008 managements report on internal control over

financial reporting was not subject to attestation by BDO Seidman LLP pursuant to temporary rules of the

Commission that permitted us to provide only report from management
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POLICY ON AUDIT COMMITTEE PRE-APPROVAL OF AUDIT AND PERMISSIBLE NON-AUDIT
SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Consistent with the Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board PCAOB requirements

regarding auditor independence the Audit Committee has responsibility for appointing setting compensation and

overseeing the work of the independent registered public accounting firm In recognition of this responsibility the Audit

Committee has established policy to preapprove all audit and permissible nonaudit services provided by the

independent registered public accounting firm

Prior to engagement of the independent registered public accounting firm for each years audit management will submit

list to the Audit Committee for its approval of services and related fees expected to be rendered and fees expected to be

incurred during that year within each of four categories of services to the Audit Committee for approval

Audit services include audit work performed on the financial statements and internal control over financial

reporting as well as work that generally only the independent registered public accounting firm can

reasonably be expected to provide including quarterly reviews comfort letters statutory audits and

discussions surrounding the proper application of financial accounting and/or reporting standards

AuditRelated services are for assurance and related services that are traditionally performed by the

independent registered public accounting firm including due diligence related to mergers and acquisitions

employee benefit plan audits and special procedures required to meet certain regulatory requirements

Tax services include all services except those services specifically related to the audit of the financial

statements performed by the independent registered public accounting firms tax personnel including tax

analysis assisting with coordination of execution of taxrelated activities primarily in the area of corporate

development supporting other taxrelated regulatory requirements and tax compliance and reporting The

Company generally does not request such services from the independent registered public accounting firm

All Other services are those services not captured in the audit auditrelated or tax categories The

Company generally does not request such services from the independent registered public accounting firm

The Audit Committee requires the independent registered public accounting firm and management to report actual fees

versus the budget periodically throughout the year by category of service During the year circumstances may arise when

it may become necessary to engage the independent registered public accounting firm for additional services not

contemplated in the original preapproval categories In those instances the Audit Committee requires specific pre

approval before engaging the independent registered public accounting firm The Audit Committee may delegate pre

approval authority to one or more of its members The member to whom such authority is delegated must report any pre
approval decisions to the Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The information contained in this report shall not be deemed to be soliciting material or filed or incorporated by

reference in future filings with the Commission or subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act except to

the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into document filed under the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended or the Exchange Act

We the members of the Audit Committee represent the following

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed Merge Healthcares audited financial statements with

management

The Audit Committee has discussed with BDO Seidman LLP Merge Healthcares independent registered public

accounting firm for fiscal year 2009 the matters required to be discussed by Statement of Auditing Standards

No 61 Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards as may be modified or supplemented

The Audit Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from BDO Seidman LLP required by

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board rule that relates to independence Rule 3526 as may be
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modified or supplemented and has discussed with BDO Seidman LLP its independence as Merge Healthcares

independent registered public accounting firmand

Based on the review and discussions referred to above the Audit Committee recommended to our Board that the

audited financial statements be included in Merge Healthcares Annual Report on Form 10K for the year ended

December31 2008 for filing with the Commission

The Audit Committee

Neele Stearns Jr Chairperson

Dennis Brown

Richard Reck

Neele Stearns Jr
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Justin Dearborn certify that

have reviewed the annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated as amended by Amendment

No and this Amendment No together this report

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date April 30 2010

/5/ JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

ChielExecutive Qfficer

principal executive officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Steven Oreskovich certify that

have reviewed the annual report on Form 10-K of Merge Healthcare Incorporated as amended by Amendment

No and this Amendment No together this report

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and Sd- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period

in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal

control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or such other persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date April 30 2010

/5/ STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer and principal accounting officer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of MERGE HEALTHCARE INCORPORATED the Company on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 as filed with the SEC on March 12 2010 Amendment No as filed with

the SEC on March 17 2010 and Amendment No as filed with the SEC on the date hereof together the Report
Justin Dearborn as principal executive officer of the Company and Steven Oreskovich as principal financial

officer of the Company each hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of their knowledge

The Report filly complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

2The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company

Date April 30 2010 By Is JUSTIN DEARBORN

Justin Dearborn

Chief Executive Officer

principal executive officer

Date April 30 2010 By Is STEVEN ORESKOVICH

Steven Oreskovich

Chief Financial Officer

principal financial officer

and principal accounting officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not

be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended
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